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Company Structure
NERE

Goal Green Ltd

100% (BV)

INVESTMENT HOLDING itﬁ‘imﬁﬁ(‘}ﬁiﬂ)&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁj
PRC

Easyrich Group Holdings Ltd INVESTMENT HOLDING
(HK)

S IMENTHOIDING Honour Bright Investments Ltd
®V)

PetroAsian Energy International Ltd INVESTMENT HOLDING
(Cayman Islands)

INVESTMENT HOLDING Merry Boom Investment Ltd
(HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Winner Trend Enterprises Ltd
®VI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING TOPACT HOLDINGS LTD
(Cyprus)

Hai Yue Chemicals Co Ltd INVESTMENT HOLDING
(HK)

Northeast Oil (China)
Development Co. Ltd
HK

TP 0 B T SR AL e B B
BRELAF
PRC

INVESTMENT HOLDING OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS

Global Sougkaer Petroleum
Co. Ltd

EXPLOITATION DRILLING AT HRAE S ERAF
(PRC)
SR RS A R A ) CORRIRABINS
(PRC)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Jin Long Group Ltd
[

INVESTMENT HOLDING

PetroAsian Energy Exploration
Development Ltd
HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

PetroAsian Energy Ltd
(HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

PetroAsian Energy (North America) Corp.
(USA)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

PetroAsian Energy Group Ltd
(BV)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Ltd
(Cayman Islands) H.K. Listed

TELECOMMUNICATION

Jin Xin Investment Ltd
(HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

China Oil Resources Co. Ltd. PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Ltd
(HK) (BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING (Nc ) OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS (Note 1)

PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Ltd

(Cayman Islands)

Grand Fund International Ltd
(HK)
H.K. Listed

Hai Tai Ltd
(BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

Go Wealthy Investment Ltd Man Xin Ltd
(HK) BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS Shenzhen GalaLi Petroleum and
Chemical Ltd
PRC)

OIL TRADING

Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd
(HK)

FIKBEHCRYN AR AR
(PRC)
INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

Wing shing Chemical Macao
Commercial Offshore Co Ltd
Macao)

TRADING

Grand Rich Human Resources Ltd
(HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Creative Sense Industrial Ltd
(HK)

COAL TRADING

America Archi Colors Group Ltd Beijing Arch Technology Co Ltd
(BVI) (PRC)

INVESTMENT HOLDING PAINTS AND CONTRACT SERVICES

Wing Shing Colours Ltd
(HK)

INACTIVE

Wing Shing Chemical International Ltd
(BVI)

INACTIVE

100%
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Note:

1. Completed disposal on 2 April 2013
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Highlights

ES

2013 2012
—E—=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000 Change
BET T BT 28
Revenue U & 991,810 339,967 +191.74%
LBITDA' LBITDA' (86,420) (151,536) -42.97%
LBIT' LBIT (109,711) (174,191) -37.02%
Loss attributable to owners  AN2Q A% A A JE(E
of the Company 518 (115,255) (176,864) -34.83%
Add: Recognition of R EE
impairment loss on BEZRIE
Group's assets? and BB R AR5
share-based payments Y2 B 46,506 85,560 -45.65%
Loss attributable to owners  ANQ A% A A JE(E
of the Company before &8 (RETFER L
recognition of impairment ~ ANEBEE2ZRE
loss on Group's assets? B8 AR 2 1
and share-based payments 7 3I&) (68,749) (91,304) -24.70%
Loss per share (HK cents) BREE OBIL) (2.66) (4.28) -37.85%
Recurring loss per share3 BREE M ER
(HK cents) GEALD (1.59) (2.21) -28.05%

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Revenue grew 191.74% to HK$991,810,000.

LBITDA' and LBIT" improved 42.97% and 37.02% respectively.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company before recognition
of impairment loss on Group's assets? and share-based
payments, and recurring loss per share?, improved 24.70% and
28.05% respectively.

“LBITDA" is operating loss plus share of results of associates and net of
depreciation, depletion and amortisation. “LBIT” is operating loss plus share of
results of associates.

Recognition of impairment loss on Group's assets including trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, investment properties and prepaid
land lease payments, property, plant and equipment and available-for-sale
investments.

Recurring loss per share is calculated based on loss attributable to owners of the
Company excluding the recognition of impairment loss on Group's assets? and
share-based payments.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A75: R
Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFERHE

w2

w3

W5 H#N191.74% = & #991,810,000
7T|:o

LBITDA' R LBIT'HD Rl 2k F42.97% &
37.02% ©

RABEAANEBIEBERGTHEIRAE
BB EZRERBERARD 2508
R GREBEBRD AN E24.70% K
28.05% -

[LBITDA | A#S & B 1R D0 R B & 1R ) AR SR B AT 88
FER R [LBIT | REEBIBME G & AR A

RAREEERRZAEBREER S BRI BN
RE ReREMEERREA RAVERBNLHER
HIE-ME- -BERRBARATRBERE -

B EEBETYIEA R REA ARG B ERNRER
EEEEZAERERARN X2 HEHE -



Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

ARREBMAENREEREE #HEHK
BRORKBIENE ZES ARG RIE R M
KRR °

the Company was conservatively leveraging the
strengths on its solid base assets, new businesses
and efficient decision-making process to achieve
high growth and to reduce our risk profile.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board ("Board”) of PetroAsian Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 March, 2013.

Financial Results

For the year under review, the Company recorded a consolidated
sales revenue of approximately to HK$991,810,000 (2012:
HK$339,967,000), representing an increase of 191.74% as compared
with the previous year, while loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$115,255,000 (2012:
HK$176,864,000), representing a decrease of 34.83% as compared
with the previous year. The Company is continuously reducing its loss
by expanding its businesses and financial management.

Corporate Development Review

During the year, the global economy was still on a difficult way
recovery and the once-galloping China economy was also slowing
down. In addition, rising costs and oil price fluctuation were other
problems for all the upstream oil and gas companies. In face of these
situations, the Company was conservatively leveraging the strengths
on its solid base assets, new businesses and efficient decision-making
process to achieve high growth and to reduce our risk profile.

As in previous years, the Group expanded its operation rapidly on
all fronts. The Company is pleased to report that the Company has
successfully completed an acquisition of an oil service company in the
Republic of Kazakhstan. The total consideration was USD3,600,000 for
46.77% equity interest and was settled by shares. This business group
has approximately USD6,800,000 net assets at the year ended date.
With great potential market of the Republic of Kazakhstan and a profit
guarantee agreed by the China partner for three years, the Company
has confidence that this business sector will has brilliant future.

In addition, the Company achieved new records in sales revenue to
approximately HK$991,810,000. That is a 191.74% net increase as
compared with the previous year. Our new oil trading arm contributed
to approximately HK$797,799,000 sales revenue. The management
team of this business unit is keen for China and international fuel oil
trading. A total of approximately 150,000 tons fuel oil was traded
in the reporting year. As compared with the whole Asia Pacific
market, the trading volume is insignificant. The Company has strong
confidence that this business sector will have big contribution and
great improvement in the future.
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To focus on the businesses in oil and gas industry, the Company’s
resources have been allocated mainly to the Group’s major businesses.
During the year, we completed to dispose all the assets of paint
manufacturing operation and in return of cash for the use of the
Group’s major businesses.

Future Development

In June 2013, the Company proposed to conduct an international
offering of the Notes by way of public offering to institutional investors
in Switzerland only and by way of private placements to institutional
investors in certain jurisdiction outside of Switzerland, other than
the United States and other jurisdictions where an offering would be
prohibited by the applicable laws.

If the Notes is successful be issued, the Company intends to use
the net proceeds from the Notes mainly to develop and expand
the Group's existing Qigihar oil and gas exploration facility. We will
continue to improve our production technology, management system
and human resources, and to optimize existing assets including
expediting the development program of Qigihar and other projects so
as to convert reserves and resources into cash flow.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the members of the Board, the management and
all our dedicated staff for their invaluable services during the previous
year. | would also like to thank our shareholders, business partners and
stakeholders who have been supportive over the years.

By order of the Board

Poon Sum
Honorary Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market review

During the year under review, the global market situation was still
uncertain with slightly improvement compared to previous years.
Although the eurozone debt crisis was still the market focus such
as the financial crisis in Cyprus, the overall global financial risk and
recession concerns have been mitigated. The continuing easing
policies in U.S. and Japan and the possible reduction of interest rate
and buying bonds by European Central Bank would also stimulate the
market economic growth. The economic indicators in U.S. and the
United Kingdom also had slight improvement around the end of the
year under review such as better employment situation and a 2.5%
GDP growth in U.S. in the first quarter of 2013 after the dramatic
low at 0.4% in the last quarter of 2012. The momentum of economic
growth in emerging market and developing economies slowed down
during 2012 but it would still be the major global growth driver.

Although the economic growth of China was expected to slow down,
the demand for crude oil in China was still rising. During 2012, China
produced 207 million tons of crude oil while the consumption of oil
products reached 491 million tons which was highest among the past
five years and represented an increase by more than 9% compared to
2011. China also imported 271 million tons of crude oil during 2012,
increased by more than 6% compared to previous year and overtook
U.S. to become the world’s largest oil importer in December 2012 for
the first time.

The international crude oil price still fluctuated during the year under
review. After a significant drop in oil price during the first quarter
of the year under review, both WTI crude oil price and Brent crude
oil price rose again in the second quarter. During the second half
year, the monthly average WTI and Brent crude oil prices fluctuated
around US$86 to US$96 and US$109 to US$120 respectively. The
combination of different pros and cons such as uncertainties of the
pace of market recovery especially in the eurozone, possible deflation,
continuing eurozone debt crisis and decrease in crude oil export from
the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries made the crude
oil price prone to fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& D

Overview on consolidated operating results

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group achieved a
revenue of approximately HK$991,810,000 (2012: HK$339,967,000),
representing an increase of 191.74% over the year of 2012. The
Group's loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$115,255,000 (2012: HK$176,864,000), representing an
improvement with a decrease of 34.83% from the year of 2012.

The increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable from
the new business activity — trading of oil products, which recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$797,799,000 (2012: HK$4,707,000).
The Group's loss attributable to owners of the Company was mainly
as a result of the following: (1) recognition of impairment loss on
assets including trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
prepaid land lease payments and available-for-sale investments
amounting to approximately HK$30,046,000 (2012: HK$60,032,000)
and (2) recognition of fair value of share-based payments to the
Honorary Chairman and a consultant (2012: eligible Directors and
employees) amounting to HK$16,460,000 (2012: HK$25,528,000).

Excluding the above (1) and (2) totaling approximately HK$46,506,000
(2012: HK$85,560,000), the Group’s loss would be approximately
HK$68,749,000 (2012: HK$91,304,000).

Business review
Commodity trading

Since March 2012, new oil products trading business contributed the
majority revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2013,
amounting to approximately HK$797,799,000 (2012: HK$4,707,000)
and representing 80.44% of the Group’s revenue (2012: 1.38%),
resulted in a significant increase in the Group’s revenue for the current
year as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Even in the difficult global economic recovery and the growth rate
of the Chinese economy has slowed down in 2012, the Group
approached mainly to “stability” and “defense” strategy during the
year ended 31 March 2013, a total of 22,214 tons and 127,872 tons
fuel oil have been traded in China and in Malaysia respectively, and
maintained gross profit.

The performance is well satisfied by management. The oil trading
market is huge and should have good potential profit margin.
Although the Group does not have sufficient banking support to cope
with orders, it is still expected to have a booming contribution to the
Group in the foreseeable future.

Meanwhile, in the face of the continued downturn in the market
situation, the Group has proceeded the oil products trading operation
with open up sales in the second half of financial year, the operation
team has completed the fuel oil deep processing debugging, started
the rental of an oil depot, implemented the storage management
and processing procedures, the Group believes that both the revenue
and operation effectiveness of oil products trading business will have
another breakthrough in forthcoming yearly results.

The Group has decided to slow down the coal trading business, both
within China and international market, in view of the eroding coal
price and increasing stock level in China. The management had scaled
down the coal operation, reduced manpower to reduce operating
costs, and also to sell existing stock and recover debts and dues.
Management will continually monitor the coal price and market
situation before further commitments are made.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE W& D
Crude oil — Qigihar operations

The Group has a 95% interest, held through an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary Northeast Oil (China) Development Company Limited, of
Fulaerjiqu oilfield project located in Qigihar of Heilongjiang Province,
China. The Group is continuing to monitor and assess the operation
in the Fu 718 and Fu 710 areas, and is finding ways to maximise
production and project profitability. Among all the producing wells,
there are currently nine horizontal wells (four in Fu 710 area and five
in Fu 718 area) which are the major contributors of the Group’s crude
oil revenue. As previously stated, natural gas has been successfully
adopted for exploitative steam generation since November 2011
instead of fuel oil, thus reducing steaming costs by more than one
third, improving operating efficiency and profitability. The Group is
continually finding ways to reduce the production cost, the Group has
purchased the two steam machines previously rented in October 2012
and at the same time hired the same expert team to maintain smooth
operation. The payback period for this capital expenditure is around
one year.

Oil production and sales were temporarily halted for several weeks in
the summer due to local government regulatory and policy changes.
Hence, the production output and revenue for the year ended 31
March 2013 was lower as compared with the last year. However, all
operations returned to normal after coordinating and liaising with the
related governmental authorities and departments.

On the technical front, the Group is continually researching techniques
to increase the production and further streamline operation of the
oilfield, the Group visited several Canadian enhance production experts
of several heavy oil companies and governmental research institutes
in Alberta, Canada and discussed numerous ways on improving our
existing techniques. These updates will be implemented as seen fit in
the near future.

There were other ongoing improvements in the business and operation
of the oilfield. Among them, two more crude oil storage tanks have
been built to accommodate increasing oil production. A new waste
water treatment plant built last year was fully utilized to accommodate
additional waste water. A new fence was built along the river bank
in Fu 718 area for better environmental protection. A comprehensive
geological study on the project area was finished, which will help to
determine the future course of further development of the oilfield.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A azERIZ A4
Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F— = FFERHE

JR ok — 25

I

R EE

AEBEBB-HEE2ENBAR R AR (F
BE)#EBRERAFAFBENNRTEAEEIEABER
BT 2 & N ER S I8 B 2 95% s o AK @S
BEEARTEE718RE710EMENE  WIEHE
SRAEBEEREERAENRSEHAR
ETEMBMEEHF  BRIBNAKFEH (MO
URE710EEAAMVRE718E) » AASEA
Fiml S EERFR - e AT B =2 ——F
+— AR RARB R R G WA EE LSRR
FHER BMBEETEIRKA=22—NE"
REEEURELBREN AEBTHEKESE
FRUNREEERSN  AEBMR T ——F+ A
EREUMAENREEZRE RISEER—2
RA MR IFIB G E - 528 A5 X /945 & [l U 27
B—Frh-

MR T BARE RERRSRE < 5FERNA
HEEMEEEEHRER AL 822 —=
FZA=+—HLEE EEBERRAREFR
1K - PRI - A 568 B2 A A IR A 44 1 1% B8 P ) 163 50 %
a1 PTEEFCIMELE -

M E - REEF BT RMARS ER
A — AP HE e A E - R Sk B 7 N & K P B 1
BRAEDZREBELERRRARBFIHRAEEZZ
MNERERRFTHER LA wmEEIEANER
SEBARRM - ZFEIRENGEREEE

B
ERERE-

HAXBREEEHMTEFERE-EP B
5 A B3 R () B8 51 Rk 1 8 DA i = T B3R N g
OHES NEFREZHTKEERD 2HEE
FR - PABRIRRESNSIK « IR 71818 i A S A0 T
BT e - BB B IRRFRE - 10 B RAVER
B FEMR - E A B EE R K% 0m A
M — PR



Management Discussion and Analysis

Crude oil — Tunisia operations

On 17 December 2012, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Fame Achiever Holdings Limited, an
independent third party, to dispose of its entire 100% equity interests
in China Oil Resources Company Limited, which is holding company of
PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Limited, for a consideration of US$700,000
(approximately HK$5,425,000). Subsequently, on 2 April 2013, the
disposal has been completed once all the terms and conditions have
been fulfilled as per sale and purchase agreement.

Other businesses

The Group approaches to maintain its loyal customers and suppliers
for the chemical products trading business, a revenue of approximately
HK$144,855,000 was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2013
(2012: HK$240,277,000), representing a decrease of 39.71%. The
decrease of revenue was mainly due to the disposal of a chemical
trading unit in the reporting period. On the other hand, the industrial
and construction paints business, which is based in Beijing, recorded
a total revenue of approximately HK$19,817,000 for the year ended
31 March 2013 (2012: HK$23,328,000), representing a decrease of
15.05%.

On 6 June 2012, the Group completed a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of its entire 100% equity
interests in Huge Power Group Limited, which is the holding company
of Wing Shing Chemical Company Limited (“Wing Shing Chemical”),
for a consideration of HK$13,800,000. Subsequently, on or about 8
June 2012, the executive directors received a copy of the arbitration
decision (the "Arbitration Decision”) from the PRC legal advisers
in relation to the disputes over an investment agreement entered
between Wing Shing Chemical and an independent third party (the
“Claimant”) in or about 2004. According to the Arbitration Decision,
Wing Shing Chemical was directed to, among other things, pay
approximately RMB29,190,000 (together with interest of approximately
RMB12,290,000) to the Claimant as compensation. As advised by
the PRC legal advisers, as Wing Shing Chemical, being a party to
the arbitration proceedings, is no longer a member of the Group,
the Arbitration Decision shall have no impact on the operation and
financial position of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& D

To focus on the businesses in oil and gas industry, the Group’s
resources have been allocated mainly to the Group’s major businesses
as discussed above. The assets of paint manufacturing operation are
gradually reducing by disposal in return of cash for the use of the
Group’s other major businesses.

On 15 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (“Vendor”) to acquire
approximately 46.77% equity interests in Topact Holdings Ltd.
("Topact”). Topact, through its subsidiary, is principally engaged in
various businesses including but not limited to the exploitation of crude
oil and natural gas, production of crude oil products, exploring drilling,
crude oil and gas field and oilfield construction and installation works
in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The acquisition was considered to be
strategic fit to the Group’s corporate strategy, which was to become a
multi-national corporation focusing on energy related business. Further
to the oil services in the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Group is looking
for some potential upstream projects in the Republic of Kazakhstan
for the future expansion of business in the oil and gas sector in the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Group has an effective 34.4% interest in a vanadium mineral
project in the Xiaowujiang vanadium mining region, Yuging County,
Guizhou Province, China. Management of this business is being
undertaken by the major shareholder of the project company. The
project is in the final stage of exploitation licence application. In
recent years, both the central and local governments of China exercise
stringent control over the mining industry including in particular
the granting of new mining permits. This stringent attitude is good
for upgrading the quality standard of the entire mining industry
throughout the country. Management of the project is now under
the direct guidance of the local governmental authorities to take
positive measures in order to secure the relevant permits. Approval
has now been granted by the Department of Land and Resources of
the Guizhou Province of China and this approval, which is granted at
the provincial level, has been notified to the Department of Land and
Resources of the Zunyi City of Guizhou for further processing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business outlook

After the severe global market situation in 2012, the global market
is expected to recover slowly but steady in this year. According to the
forecast published by the International Monetary Fund, the growth
is estimated at 5.3% in 2013 and 5.7% in 2014 in emerging market
and developing economies and at 1.9% in 2013 and 3% in 2014 in
the U.S. On the other hand, the growth in the eurozone is estimated
at -0.3% in 2013 and 1.1% in 2014. The overall global growth is
expected at 3.25% in 2013 and 4% in 2014.

The overall global demand for oil is expected to drop due to weak
recovery in heavy industries especially in the eurozone. Recently, the
Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries has cut its forecast of
world oil demand growth by 40,000 barrels a day and the International
Energy Agency has also lowered the oil demand growth by 25,000
barrels a day for 2013. The U.S. Energy Information Administration
(“EIA") also cut its outlook on oil demand by 140,000 barrels a day.
On the contrary, oil demand is still expected to increase continuously
in China but would not be at the same pace as before because of
possible slowdown of economic growth. Nevertheless, in a recent
forum, the president of the Development Research Center of the State
Council still expressed an opinion that China could still maintain the
GDP growth at 7% per annum on average until 2020.

The international oil price in this year is not expected to rise
substantially but fluctuated because of the continuing sluggish global
economic situation and increasing use of other sources of energy such
as natural gas. In addition, on the supply side, the use of horizontal
drilling and fracking technique in shale oil drilling mainly in U.S. have
improved US crude oil production that would also influence WTI and
global oil prices. Daily production of crude oil in U.S. increased to 1
million barrels a day in the last quarter of 2012 largely contributed by
the development of technique in shale oil production. EIA has expected
that the average Brent crude oil price would be US$108 per barrel
in 2013 and US101 per barrel in 2014 while the average WTI crude
oil price would be US$94 per barrel in 2013 and US$92 per barrel in
2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR EREN S

In recent years, the Republic of Kazakhstan emphasises on attracting
foreign investments into the resource-rich, especially in oil and gas
resources, central Asian state as well as promoting trading business.

The Republic of Kazakhstan has seen a significant increase in foreign
investments following its independence in 1991 and there are
many international oil companies participating in the Republic of
Kazakhstan's major oil & gas projects. Foreign direct investments have
been increased from US$20.8 billion in 2011 to US$22.4 billion in
2012 and the Republic of Kazakhstan has attracted FDI of over US$160
billion since 1993. For the resources aspect, the Republic of Kazakhstan
produced 79.2 million tons of oil, gas and condensate with total liquid
production estimated at 1.6 million barrels per day (bbl/d) in 2012. It is
estimated that production rate will reach 1.7 million bbl/d by 2015.

Financial review
Revenue and operating results

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$991,810,000 (2012: HK$339,967,000),
representing an increase of 191.74% over the preceding year. The
Group recorded a loss for the year of approximately HK$109,874,000
(2012: HK$176,864,000), representing an improvement with a
decrease of 37.88% from the year in 2012.

The increase in the Group's revenue was mainly attributable to the new
business activity of trading of oil products, which recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$797,799,000. The loss for the year of the Group
decreased by 37.88% from approximately HK$176,864,000 for 2012
to HK$109,874,000 for 2013. This was mainly attributable to the
decrease in recognition of impairment loss on assets including trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, investment
properties and prepaid land lease payments, decrease in share-based
payments expenses and the waiver of other payables, net recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2013 as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Working capital

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's current assets were kept at
approximately HK$267,030,000 (2012: HK$292,132,000) whilst
current liabilities were approximately HK$153,049,000 (2012:
HK$186,248,000). The current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against current liabilities, was 1.74 (2012: 1.57).
The directors consider that the present working capital level is
conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$110,499,000 at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$77,505,000). The
Group's bank balances and cash were mostly held in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s total outstanding bank borrowings
were approximately HK$37,488,000 (2012: HK$53,826,000) and total
assets were approximately HK$885,144,000 (2012: HK$888,124,000).

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowing by the
total assets, was equal to 4.24% at 31 March 2013 (2012: 6.06%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& D

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2013, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's bank borrowings:

(i) trade receivables to the extent of carrying amount of
HK$25,850,000 (2012: HK$29,596,000) as first legal charges;

(i) 51.00% equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast
Qil (China) Development Company Limited, as a register of all
monies first share charge; and

(i) an investment property with a carrying value of HK$24,888,000
(2012: HK$25,401,000)

Information on crude oil reserves as of 31 March
2013

During the reporting period, the management appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. ("APEX"), as an independent professional
technical valuer (the “Technical Valuer”), to evaluate the estimated
oil reserve and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment
assessment purpose.

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
"PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the "Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Qilfield, including block Fu 710,
Fu 718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable
reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3") and the total 1P, 2P (“sum
of P1 and P2") and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar
oilfields as of 31 March 2013, are approximately 436,000 tons,
1,279,000 tons and 2,645,000 tons respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Report on crude oil reserve

BEE W& D

FRFAERSE
Proved Probable Possible Total oil
reserve reserve reserve reserve

RERE BMEH#E WHERHE BAARE
('000 tons) (000 tons)  ("000 tons)  ("000 tons)

(Fm) (FuE) (Fmg) (FmE)

Crude oil reserve FmE#E
As at 1 April 2011 W-_B——%mA—H 424 945 1,441 2,810
Technical adjustment AR E 80 (80) - -
Production of the year AEEER 9) - - 9
As at 31 March 2012 and RZE—ZF=A=1+—-HEK
1 April 2012 —E——#pmA—H 495 865 1,441 2,801
Adjustment to previous HAREEHEORIE*
estimation* (53) (22) (75) (150)
Production for the year REEES (6) - - 6
As at 31 March 2013 R-ZE-—=5=A=+-H 436 843 1,366 2,645
* As there is no production data of horizontal well available from other comparable * AR RERENAE SRR LM LER

company in the Fulaerji oilfield and the horizontal well exploitation of the
Company has commenced for not more than 2 years, the oil producing data is
derived from the actual performance. Due to experience and technical reason, the
current production of horizontal wells in the oilfield has not yet to achieve the
optimum status.

As the result of the report, the 3P reserve decreased from 2012 to 2013 but the
economic effectiveness does not declined, the best solution for exploitation on
the oilfield is steam injection which will also facilitate the conversion to steam
flooding in the future. The Company believes that after an appropriate technical
transformation and enhancement of site production management, the production
performance will have significantly improvement.

Reserve evaluation criteria

Due to limited production history of the Fulaerji, Qigihar, Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC oilfield, volumetric estimate method was used to
calculate hydrocarbon in place and then recovery using the huff and
puff recovery method. As at 31 March 2013, APEX has used the
deterministic method (as opposed to the Probabilistic method) to
calculate the reserves estimates, in which three discrete scenarios were
delineated to represent high, mid and low cases.
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BEENWmE DM
Reserve categories

Proved Reserve (“P1") — are those quantities of petroleum, which by
analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with
reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable, from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs and under defined economic
conditions, operating methods, and government regulations. The term
reasonable certainty is intended to express a high degree of confidence
that the quantities will be recovered. In this P1 calculation, APEX has
used a drainage area of 200m surrounding the development well paths
as “proved” area technically judged as continuous with drilled proved
area and commercially productive. The recovery efficiency applied to
proved reserves is defined with a high degree of certainty supported
by analog from fields with similar reservoir and fluid properties, and
recovery mechanism. In this evaluation, recovery efficiency of 25% was
used for P1 calculation.

Probable Reserve (“P2") — are those additional reserves, which by
analysis of geosciences and engineering data indicated, are less likely
to be recovered than P1 but more certain to be recovered than Possible
Reserve. It is equally likely that actual remaining recoverable quantities
would be greater than or less than the sum of the estimated Proved
plus Probable Reserves (2P). APEX's probable evaluation includes
reservoir areas delineated by net oil sand thickness of more than 4m.
In this evaluation, recovery efficiency of 25% was assumed for P2
calculation.

Possible Reserve (“P3"”) — are those additional reserves, which by
analysis of geosciences and engineering data suggested, are less likely
to be recoverable than Probable Reserve. The total quantities ultimately
recovered from the project have a low probability to exceed the sum of
Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves (3P). In this P3 evaluation,
APEX has included areas of net oil sand thickness between 2m and
4m. In addition to the 25% recovery efficiency factor used, incremental
oil recoverable from an incremental oil recovery factor of 10%,
arising from a notional development plan by steam flooding from
P1, P2 and P3 areas is included. This recovery mechanism is deemed
likely workable and economical (recompleting existing horizontal
wells parallel to each other) but substantial technical feasibility and
development planning work is required to firm up and hence included
only in P3 and not in other reserve categories.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting year.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk

The Group’s business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the interest
bearing bank borrowings of the Group are on floating rate basis. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest
rate exposures for hedging purpose only.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has an aggregate of 182 (2012: 188)
employees of which about 121 (2012: 155) were located in mainland
China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic of Kazakhstan
and Macau. The employee’s remuneration package includes salary,
bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group’s remuneration policy,
employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market conditions
and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective
jurisdiction where the employees located.
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Corporate Governance Report

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2013 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

Adoption of Corporate Governance Code

The Group has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which came
into effect on 1 January 2005. Pursuant to the amendments to
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules that came into effect on 1 April 2012,
the Company has then adopted the Corporate Governance Code
("New Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the
corporate governance codes of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the New Code except for the deviations as follows:

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs")) of the Company are not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

Code Provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Wang Bo, the Chairman of the Board, did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company which was held on 21 September
2012 ("AGM") as he had other business engagement. The Honorary
Chairman and the financial controller of the Company, the chairman
and the members of the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and corporate governance committee of the
Company attended the AGM. The Company considers that their
presence is sufficient for answering questions of the shareholders at
the AGM.

J/J:\‘ 'kk/l:l#ﬁm

AERERME ([REEARS ] EREEA
BMERSMABERAR (THRM])ESF LHRA
(TEHRUMDATHRERERE_T—=F=
A=+ Eﬁ%ﬁﬁf”m%ﬁ/%ﬁhmﬁ
EhEERERE-

R ER<TA

AEEBRA TR RIS T UM EEER
BASA([&TR))  B-FTRF—A—A&
ER-RER - —FHA-BEMHNLETR
AP SR T IAERT A - AR R E R D HRMA LR
AR s+ praEt g B a s Al (T#rsFRIL) -
ERARRRMEEE TR

AR NRB —EETH T RIFTE AT

REEER
P RIS 1 TP IR B R IR AR O

By Al

AR EALNVGRTE  ERTEETABREER
EFH YABEEE-

ARBNIFNTES (BREBELIFNTES ([B
SMIFMITER]) ) WEFEREFH  EARE
$”ﬂ@%§ﬁ%%%$@ﬁ%%%ﬁ¢ﬁ@
LTHESERILEESE-

SPAMENEEI2IKHTE  EF X RELFRR
BERg-
EESEEIRAETELEARRNR = —=
inﬂf+f5$7m%%@$ﬁgwh%@
FRg]) AFNEBBEMEBZE - AA7A
KETERVFERE ARRBZRLZEE  F
ZEg ﬁ%iﬂaﬁmiamiﬁgfrﬁﬁ
BEHEREAFAE AQERA HEZH
%%%m&%ﬁiﬁéi@%kihmmﬁh
TiERH -

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited H 25 aE/R1ZEAR YN
Annual Report 2012-13 ,Zﬁfiif EE SiRE 2 5




Corporate Governance Report

TEERME

Board of Directors

As at 31 March 2013, the Board comprised a total of eight Directors,
with four Executive Directors (“EDs”), one Non-executive Director
("NED") and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs have appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting, or related professional
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. During
the CG Period, 14 regular Board meetings were held.

During the CG period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

B

RIB-Z=ZF=ZA=+—H BFFa#BEN
MBS A ATES ([RTESF]) *ﬁ#
MOTEE (FTEE]) R=B I
= K RS IF AT %%%*ﬁim%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ENEESHERER HEEEXEEEMA
e MEEEIRHE ARBRITT +HREH
Bxged-

REXERBM ETeNELESSALEE
IFRTR

Director Board Capacity Attendance
= E=g549 HE=R
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 14/14
BEREE HMITEERFELRE

Mr. Wang Bo ED & Chairman 0/12#
R S HMITEEREIE

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 14/14
BEEREE MITEERITHER

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 14/14
EER L WITEFRVBER

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 0/4#
Zaid Latif4e & FHTES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 13/14
BREBIZSE A BAUERNTES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 14/14
BRI ER S A BAUERTES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 14/14
REBELE BAUERTES

All the 14 regular Board meetings were held to discuss and/or approve
the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss and/
or resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters, and the
corporate development and decisions.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

# The Board had convened 12 meetings after the appointment of
Mr. Wang Bo (during the period from 9 May 2012 to 31 March
2013).

# The Board had convened 4 meetings after the appointment of
Mr. Zaid Latif (during the period from 23 November 2012 to 31
March 2013).
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Corporate Governance Report

In addition, Mr. Wang Bo was appointed by the Board as Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board on 9 May 2012. At the same
time, Mr. Poon Sum resigned as the Chairman of the Board and was
appointed as Honorary Chairman of the Company. Besides, Mr. Zaid
Latif was appointed by the Board as Non-executive Director on 23
November 2012.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Wang Bo and Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
respectively. Besides, Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Pang Shu Min, Stephen
are Honorary Chairman and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company respectively.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility for
running the Company’s business. Details of the duties of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available on the
Company's website.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the New Code which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee include:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
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to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group.

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors.

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

to consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about
remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for
other Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary.
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For CG Period, the Remuneration Committee held 2 physical meetings. R ERAM  HFNEZESER LRTTMX
The composition of the Remuneration Committee and the respective &@ - HFMEEGMEKLZEGKEZELE
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows: BT

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
RE ZEg85% HE=
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 2/2
R 8712 5 4 ZEgERE

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
BoR At B2 5 A BIUFERITESF

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
REBIEE WY FRITES

Mr. Poon Sum ED 2/2
ERTE HITES

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chan Kam Ching,

Paul.
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The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
for the CG Period included:

o review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;

o consider and approve the grant of share options to Directors and
senior management;

J recommend to the Board the Director’s fee for the year ended 31
March 2013; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Directors
(including Directors appointed during the CG Period) and senior
management.

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
for the CG Period is set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during the CG
Period are inscribed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Equity
or Debt Securities” of the Report of the Directors.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the New Code which took
effect on 1 April 2012, all Directors should participate in continual
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has sent reading materials to Directors on regulatory updates
or information relevant to the Company or its business.
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The Company has received from all Directors records of their continual ARG EEZBEENEEERABEAERT
professional development trainings during the CG Period. Details of FEZH¥EREEN 2k  BEFFBEEHINDOT

which are set out below:

Type of Continuous Professional Development

Attending seminar
on regulatory
development and
directors’ duties

FEEXBR2ER

Reading regulatory
updates or
information Visiting
relevant to the Company'’s

the Company
or its business

projects in China
or overseas

MEEBREAQAAR NN

HEEERER HEBEE ERERENZ
EEHEWNS BHEMRER BH

Mr. Poon Sum EHREE v/ v v

Mr. Wang Bo eyt v

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung SERTAE v v v

Mr. Poon Wai Kong EEN A v v

Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif5t & v/

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul ~ FREBF25E 4 v v

Mr. Chan Shu Kin PR A8 B2 S A v/ v/

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REIB AL 4 v

Directors’ Securities Transaction ERETESRS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the CG Period.

Senior Management'’s Remuneration

For the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band is set out below:

Remuneration band

e E

ARATCEHRM ETRAMER T FAEA EHETA
BERETEFIZNERESTA ([RETRIL) -

ERESETESFRINTRTA - KHMEE
%f’ﬁﬁﬁign@{é IBEESEINEREEE

EHIRA D BT R EST PR R AR E R -

SNEE

28 2 i ip

Number of individuals

AH

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
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Further particulars regarding the five individuals with the highest
emoluments as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of
the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011 and
has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the New Code which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee was appointed by the Board and consists of three Non-
executive Directors and one Executive Director of the Company. The
meetings and proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in
the articles of association of the Company for regulating meetings and
proceedings of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination
Committee include:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The selection criteria for Directors are the candidate(s) must have
substantial experience in business relevant to the Company or in
corporate management, or in relevant profession and must be able
to contribute effectively to the objectives of the Company. Any
committee member may propose suitable candidates for directorship
for discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after which
the Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such nomination.

For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held 1 physical
meeting for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new Directors and change of Chairman of the Board.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

Member

K&

Committee Capacity

ZEE5H

REZEENEKRZEEKREEBLERBN

m -

Attendance

&R

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung

gR #9098 5 A ZEEER

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED

FR 812 55 A& BYIIERITES
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED

FeR faf BR 5 A= BYUFNITES
Mr. Poon Sum ED

ERTE HiTESE

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Cheung Kwan
Hung.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference
in accordance with the provisions set out in the New Code which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences and ensure
co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved,;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity

"external

that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Committee should report
to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;
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to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report, management reports and interim report, and to
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them. In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board,
the Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualified opinions;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditor;

to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;
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J to discuss problems and reservations arising from the annual
audit, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in the
absence of management where necessary);

o to review any material queries raised by the external auditor to
management about accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of controls and management’s response;

o to review the Company's statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

o where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

J to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised by the external auditor;

o to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor.

For the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held 2 regular meetings
for discussing and/or approving the periodic financial results of
the Group, discussing the auditor's performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budgets.
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The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective
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attendances of the committee members are presented as follows: e

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24=1 ZE8851% HE=R
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 2/2
BoR At B2 5 A ZEGXRE

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 2/2
FREBIZ ST A& BYERITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
FEB A B FNTEE f
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chan Shu Kin. ENLEES TR AMRBI R A-

Corporate Governance Committee TEERTET

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed ARAFZHAESALAEZEEER _ET——F+—A

on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the New Code
which are available on the website of the Company. The role and
function of the Corporate Governance Committee include:

o to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

J to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the New Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held 1
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members
are presented as follows:

Director Committee Capacity

Ex ZE885H

REEE)

£

=

PN

op
&

&

G- BXER
d

BHEBRZ750

7

Attendance

=R

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul

BRERIZ I & ZEREE

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED

BRI ER S A BIMFANTES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED

REBIEE BYFRITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller
R L WITEEFRV AR

The chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee is Mr. Chan
Kam Ching, Paul.

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee for the CG Period included:

o review the Company’s compliance with the New Code
o review the training and continual professional development of
Directors and senior management
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The analysis of the Auditor's remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:
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R AT &

MEEELRHR REMOMSOWE5/MT

Fee amount (HK$'000)

B (B%Tr)
Audit service 12 B R 7% 2,800
Non-audit services IEZ RS 100

Internal Control
Review of Internal Control System

The Board holds the responsibility for maintaining effective systems
of internal control and for the assessment and management of risk.
Accordingly, a mechanism of inspection and supervision is established
to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets are
safeguarded. The Board has authorised the management team to
design, implement and maintain systems of internal control such as
clearly defined job responsibilities of senior management team and
systems relating to investment decision and budgeting.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s systems of internal
controls aim for managing potential risks instead of completely
eliminating all risks. Therefore, internal control can only provide
reasonable assurance for achieving the above objectives in compliance
with basic principles under its inherent limitations. Moreover, whether
internal control is effective or not may also vary with the changes in
the internal or external environment or the operating conditions of
the Group. Accordingly, systems of internal controls can only render
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance for the achievement of the
operating objectives.
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With the establishment of an independent internal audit function
in recent years, the financial condition, operational control and
compliance control are examined and reviewed according to the risk-
based audit plan approved by Board. Different audit areas are assigned
according to risk priority. The Internal Audit Department monitors
compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of the
systems of internal controls. It plays an important role in the Group's
internal governance by performing periodic checking. After completion
of an internal audit, analysis, appraisals, recommendations related to
the activities inspected are delivered to the respective risk holders. The
Internal Audit Department reports to the Chief Executive Officer, Audit
Committee and the Board about the internal audit findings, internal
audit recommendation and the management responses. The Internal
Audit Department will, from time to time, review and follow up the
implementation of internal audit findings and recommendations.

For the CG Period, the Board was not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the systems of internal controls of the Group.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, their training programmes
and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during the
CG Period is set out as follows:
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Director Board Capacity Attendance
= Exg54 HE &
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 2/2
BRI MITEERRELRE

Mr. Wang Bo ED & Chairman 0/2
R S HMITEEREIE

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED 2/2
=ER KL HITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 2/2
R L WITEEFRV AR

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 0/0*
Zaid Latif5c 4 FRITES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 2/2
BR 8572 55 A4 BUIFATESF

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
BoR 5l BR 5 A BYERITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
RE\I®EE BIMFANTESF

* No general meeting has been convened after the appointment of Mr. Zaid Latif * HZaid Latif e A #ZE (B =T —=F+—A=+=H

(during the period from 23 November 2012 to 31 March 2013).

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures
for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any
business specified in such written requisition.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless Notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such Notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a Notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head office
or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notices are given, shall be at least 7 days.
The period for lodgment of such Notices shall commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring Director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong:—

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. a notice in writing signed by that person of his willingness to be
elected as a Director together with his written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 35 88R1% A%
Annual Report 2012-13 —ZZF—ZZ& —=F 4] ‘;i&

o m

BRERBRRASRHEBZER

REANRASERMXMSHESFE2ERT
E(—NAR—FFIRER &6 REEBFT) - #
BSOS RRRERRASREZR Z12F (R
}E% RBEEZZFHIN) o HQ%‘HEHFJ:L&F
BRBRE RS LEEHLN G ERRKE

EZEMEE-

BREBALTSHEZEARCZER

RBANREMERMANESSK  RIFEEEH
B2E RAKRERTESIN MEFAMALEE
BREMRREAE E2EEZEBA BIFHER
AEREEREYRE ERRZIRE (WIEHS
BADEZRE HRNKAREREBEEATL
SDEEEER WM EMREATEZRTE
B2EZVBARIAQNRIXREBNERIBS,
BRE EERBHAREZHRELAERIH M
EXAEEREZHEAETERNRZERMIEETE
AgBERL ARG B TEREBAEZH
RI7E&R -

SR AT FE AR SCE (R BTt 2 BRI A R 22 R 5 S
EARRFFELEME It AT ENELDHE
BB K EORE3601%E  IRE — L RIREE
FAEBFHEEINZEMALZEEE R

1. XABEREZALIZEEFEEDA
M ZEEBHAINAZALZEZE B
FEIRE ETRRFEI3S1MERTEZZA
TREEHBILE-ERREZT R

2. BRATEERPREZEER 2 EEAEA
@HHE\FJ%ﬁf./\é*#Z%EE%% o



Corporate Governance Report

Such documents shall be lodged with the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of such documents,
the Company shall verify the documents and, if the proposal is found
to be in order, publish an announcement and/or issue a supplemental
circular in respect of the proposal in accordance with Rule 13.70 of the
Listing Rules.

In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days' or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The contact details are as follows:

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited
Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway,
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email:  enquiries@petroasian.com
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the CG Period, the Directors have:

o based on a going concern basis;

J selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in detail in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 61 to 62.

On behalf of the Board

Poon Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographic Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year by business and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 63. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil). The
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 68 to 69 and note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$489,462,000, representing the amount standing
to the credit of the share premium amount after deduction of
accumulated losses. However, under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Report of the Directors
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EERE
Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 191 to 192.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

Share Options and Warrants
Warrants

On 29 November 2012, it was approved to issue 350,000,000 non-
listed warrants to an independent consultant. Each warrant entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one new share at the subscription price
of HK$0.18 at any time from 1 March 2013 to 28 November 2015.

Share options

Share options are granted to Directors, executives and employees
under a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) approved
by shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 21 October
2002.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made by
participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its discretion,
offer employees, Executive and Non-executive Directors, officers,
advisers and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries, the grant
of options to subscribe for shares of the Company. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The 10% limit was refreshed
by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 May 2012 which enabled the grant of
further options to subscribe up to 412,995,211 shares, representing
10% of the shares in issue as at the said date.
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As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted
under the Share Option Scheme was 211,500,000 shares (including
share options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
representing about 4.60% of the issued share capital of the Company,
of which 200,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Poon Sum, the
Executive Director of the Company was approved by shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2012. There is no
special condition or specific performance target to be fulfilled before
such share options can be exercised. Each share option is exercisable at
the subscription price of HK$0.198 at any time during the period from
1 July 2012 to 27 March 2015.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2013 which have HRZ-Z—=F=A=+—H REFEERLE

been granted under the scheme are as follows: MARITENEREFBOT
Number of Options Price of Company's shares
BREYE ARARGBER

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Exercisable Exercise as at during during during asat  ForOption  For Option
Participants grant Period price 1 April 2012 the year the year the year 31 March 2013 granted exercised

)3 )3

—g--f - 14

mA-A ZAZt-A
$8% HHEH IS ke HATE  REARE  RERTE  REREH HATE ERLBRE EIRBRE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(&) (k)
‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 ‘000 HK$ HK$
Fhk Tk Th Tk Fik it ok

\ Executive Directors

HiTES

Mr. Poon Sum 24 May 2012 1July 2012 to 27 March 2015 HK$0.198 - 200,000 - - 200,000 0.180 -

AREE ZE-ZF ZE-CEtA-BZ #50.1987

AAZ1mA Z2-R5ZA-t+A
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2013 HK$0.198 3,800 - - (3,800) - - -
ARRLE -3-C “3-CEtA-BE EH0.1987
ZA-tNR ZE3-ZFZAZTtRB
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to 12 August 2014 HK$0.251 100 - - - 100 - -
EERKE ZIINE “EZEMENATZAE EB0.251T
NAT=R “2-MENATZR
29 April 2009 29 April 2009 to 28 April 2012 HK$0.206 216 - - (216) - - -
ZITNE ZZENENAZTARE %%0.2067C
mAZ+1A Z2-ZEmAZTN\R
28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2013 HK$0.198 3,800 - - (3,800) - - -
i S “E-CE{A-RE 10,1987
=AZtNA =F=A=++H
Independent Non-executive
Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul 28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2014 HK$0.198 3,800 - - - 3,800 - -

R “F-CfF “E2-£tA-RHE EB0.198T

ZRZt/H “T-ME=A-ttR
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 28 March 2012 1July 2012 to 27 March 2014 HKS0.198 3,800 - - - 3,800 - -
REZLEE —3-Cf Z5--%tA-B%E HH0.1987
ZAZtNR Z2-WMEZR-t+tH
Mr. Cheung Kuan Hung 28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2014 HK$0.198 3,800 - - - 3,800 - -
REBEE “Z-If ZE-CEtA-BZ EB0.1987
Z2-ME=A-ttA
Senior Management 28 March 2012 1July 2012 to 27 March 2013 HK$0.198 6,800 - (400) (6,400) - - 0219
BREBAR 3= “I-CEtA-BE 10,1987
ZAZtNR ZE-ZEZAZTtRB
Employees 28 March 2012 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2013 HK$0.198 42,000 - (500) (41,500) - - 0207
-1 -3-Cf ZE-ZF¥ZRZTN\BE HH0.1987T
=RZt/H “I-ZEZA-ftR
68,116 200,000 (900) (55,716) 211,500

Notes: Mtz :

1. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price 1. HERLEREMBEENRQARRMNEE EEE
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted. BERSRE S AR IR I T (B -

2. The price of the Company'’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted 2. RETEEREMBENRNRARIRGER EEE
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the BN EETE BB RO A NEE B HE -
options were exercised.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the
year.

Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognize
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

During the reporting year, no share was purchased for the Share Award
Scheme.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Poon Sum

. Wang Bo (appointed on 9 May 2012)

. Wong Kwok Leung

. Poon Wai Kong

. Zaid Latif' (appointed on 23 November 2012)

S

<

. Chan Shu Kin?
. Chan Kam Ching, Paul?
. Cheung Kwan Hung?

=z

! Non-executive Director
2 Independent Non-executive Director
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In accordance with Article 86(3) and Article 87(1) of the Company's
Articles of Association, Mr. Zaid Latif shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, Mr. Poon Sum, Mr. Poon Wai
Kong and Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Sum, aged 49, is an Executive Director and one of the co-
founders of the Group. He was the Chairman of the Company and was
subsequently appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 9 May 2012.
Throughout the year, he has been, and still is, primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development, marketing and
formulation of overall corporate policies of the Group. He has over
23 years of experience in the oil, paints and coatings industry and the
trading of chemicals in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").
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Mr. Wang Bo, aged 38, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. He was appointed on 9 May 2012. He has over 10 years’
experience in international oil and gas business development. He was
the chief executive officer of two developed oilfield group, namely
Eagle Imran Mining Limited and Laws King Group Limited, and was
responsible for the business development of a range of comprehensive
projects, including oilfields, natural gas and gold mining in Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region, Jilin Province of the PRC, the Republic
of Kazakhstan, Turkmenistan and the United States of America. He had
participated in the exploration and mining development work of the
oilfield in Jilin in 2002, and had subsequently established Shi Xin Tai De
Investment Consulting Company, Ltd. (tH ¥ REIREHXANER Q7))
and entered into a co-development agreement in relation to the Jilin
Qian 122 Oilfield (F#M#2122)BEEHE) in 2004. He was responsible
for the operation and was one of the committee members of the joint
management committee of the oilfield.

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 55, is an Executive Director. He is
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effective from 1 April
2012 and responsible for the Group's daily operations, administration
and production management of the Group's subsidiary in Dongguan.
He obtained the qualification of LCC — Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from Hong
Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
the field of finance and accounting for over 17 years and has obtained
extensive knowledge therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 42, is an Executive Director. He is a member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Certified Practising Accountant of Australia and Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting and
Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, a
Master degree in Practising Accounting from the Monash University,
Australia and a Bachelor degree in Economics from the University of
London, United Kingdom. He has more than 22 years’ experience
in accounting and financial field. He joined the Group as Financial
Controller in September 2005. He was appointed as the Company
Secretary for the Company in September 2006.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Zaid Latif, aged 39, is a Non-executive Director. He was appointed
on 23 November 2012. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Accounting and Legal Studies from Charles Sturt University, Australia,
and a Diploma of Project Management from Brisbane North Institute
of TAFE, Queensland, Australia. He has extensive experience in various
industries ranging from oil & gas, government, infrastructure, private
equity, property to chartered accounting. Mr. Latif is a director of
Global Equity & Development Group Pty Ltd., which is a boutique
investment advisory firm that offers strategic, origination, risk and
investment consulting services to government state owned enterprises,
corporate and high net worth individuals. Clients are based in Australia
and Middle East and have exposure to the sectors of infrastructure,
mining, commodity trading (oil & gas, coal, iron ore etc.), property and
information technologies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 58, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 36 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (the “Society”) and currently
a committee member of the Society. He is also an independent
non-executive director of PYI Corporation Limited which is a listed
company on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul, aged 58, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is the proprietor
of Paul K. C. Chan & Partners, Solicitors & Notaries, and has been
practicing laws in Hong Kong for over 29 years. He obtained his Juris
Doctor Degree from University of Toronto in 1979. He was admitted
to practice as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1981,
and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and in England and Wales
in 1988, and as a barrister and solicitor of the Australian Capital
Territory in 1991, and an advocate and solicitor of Singapore in 1995.
He became a China Appointed Attesting Officer in 1995, a Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in 1996, a Notary Public
in Hong Kong in 1997, HKIAC Accredited Mediator in 1999, Hui
Zhou Arbitrator in 2005, a Civil Celebrant of Marriages in 2006, and
Certified Tax Adviser in 2010.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 11 years of
experience in accounting, finance and investment banking specializing
in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and corporate
and debt restructuring. He was also an executive director of publicly
listed companies undertaking corporate management, planning and
strategies development functions. Currently, he is an independent
non-executive director of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited, Great
Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Mobile Telecom Network
(Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors as regards their independence from the
Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independence of the Company.
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Senior Management

Professor Albert Kwong, aged 63, is the Vice Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 July 2008.
He is a renowned oil scholar and a seasoned senior petroleum engineer
with worldwide hands-on exploration and production experience, both
onshore and offshore, plus sharp cross-border business management
skills of an international standard. He has direct exposure to the
exploration and exploitation of oil and gas in North America (covering
both the United States and Canada), South America, Asia (especially
the PRC), Australia, North Africa and the Middle East.

Professor Kwong earned his Bachelor of Science in Computer Science
from the University of South Carolina in 1974 and Master of Science in
Petroleum Engineering from the University of Texas at Austin in 1977,
also later Master of Science in Engineering Management in Oklahoma,
the United States. He had worked as a research engineer for the
Department of Energy, the United States and later as drilling and
operations engineer for Atlantic Richfield Co. He then worked for Sun
Oil (USA) (“Sun”) in its South China Sea offshore drilling ventures with
CNOOC Limited and numerous projects with China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") and China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
("Sinopec”) and subsequently as Sun’s chief corporate representative in
the PRC based in Beijing. He was appointed as oil consultant working
for the United Nations and later oil advisor to the State of Kuwait in
the Middle East. He later worked with Triton Energy (USA), GE and
Conocophillips in its global oil ventures.

Mr. Pang Shu Min, Stephen, aged 54, is the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 14 February 2011 and is
a very experienced oil and gas professional. Mr. Pang has over 32 years
of experience in the worldwide oil industry, he obtained his Bachelor
of Science in Computation from the University of Manchester in 1981.
He was an established leader in Shell Exploration Asia Pacific (“Shell”).
He joined Shell since 1982 as Economics and Planning Engineer and
since then his career spanning almost three decades has gone through
well site petroleum engineering, reservoir engineering, integrated gas
supply development, corporate planning, capability and technology
management and human resources management. Before he left Shell,
he worked as general manager for Shell Non Operated Ventures and
joint venture businesses in Asia Pacific. He was the Shell shareholders’
representative to these projects, including Joint Management
Committee member to Xijiang Joint Venture operations and was the
Alternate Director to Sabah Gas Joint Operation Company. He also acts
as a member of Society of Petroleum Engineers (“SPE”) and was the
chairman of the development and operation subcommittee of Malaysia
International Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited & f
Annua\Reportzowzu -z *Tffii‘; R

REERE

it

BHRHE 63k RASEBXFEREER
H-BFER_ZZENFLA-—BNMATEE KA
MEH A mEE LR V= A E TA2AD
/\fﬁifiﬁxﬁigjﬁ HAE(BEREEFRE )M

BUAS B - WA E B B BOK T B5 B 3 75 5 I8
&ﬁ] cBHEEZ2MEREMAMRRARIE
B MR LA REEBN M aE =M
(BEXBERMEX) EEM M (CFRIES
Bl) SRAR T JbFEIM R RS

_'E_EEI

BRI A — N IO BR5 3 B R 28 SR AN M 3L
AEFRBBRESEN RNt FEER
EEMNRE (RETT)EAHRIRELSMN:
IREQE%I@%#“%M%I$ﬁ@ﬁi

o 18 S 7 35 B BT BB R SBAT B A 9T TARAT
E&EAtlantlc Richfield Co JEF#H RIEX TR
f-HizmREERANGABAR ([KB])E
FEEGEAPBEGFABERARISIEEHF I
BB EHERARER AR ([CNPC ) RFEA
BIEIRODBERAF ([PEAL])AIERARE
FEE HeHEABBELRNTRREREARNR
K-WEZTABAENORRERL EENFR
RS A HER - HEEE RN 2B A
5577 E LT H R Triton Energy (USA) B ER
‘A7) M B 3E (Conocophillips) ©

EBSE L 5S4 BAEBRITHREHE BN
—E—FZATHANMALREE B—EL
BRLEENHRBER - ZAEEFEBANFRARA
BITELR - BER— AN\ —FRESHIEFAR
BB RIPEE L B - 1§ AShell Exploration
Asia Pacific ([Shell]) z —fIZ2EEE KB
—NNAZFRRINAShel B EACRE &R B TI2E0

g BB =TF2BREEERSRISA
IR HEBIRE MeRXARBEER X
RE EREREMERRANEREE N H
ShellBE T AT+ R YE T Shell A2 K& 2 IF L BIRE
EBREEDEER 2 BICIE - 1 AShell R i%E
HEZRERXR (BEEIEAAEEEZHE
EEWZB8EMKE ) & ASabah Gas Joint Operation
CompanyZ BAEZ - BN EE LM IREMEE

(MAmTEMBE) 2B LREBRAE:
BRIEecERMEENEZBEEZER-



Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 32, is the Assistant Financial Controller of
the Group. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company
in December 2011, she had more than 9 years experience in auditing,
accounting and financial field in international accounting firms and in a
listed company on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho Chi Hung, Alan, aged 60, is Senior Manager of the Investment
Management Department. He joined the Group in February 2009 and
is responsible for all aspects of investment management matters in
relation to the Group's operations in Qigihar oilfield. He has over 12
years of experience in advising independent petroleum firms operating
in the PRC. Mr. Ho graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from
Indiana University in 1975 and a Master of Science degree from the
University of Michigan in 1977.

Ms. Liu Yu Qin, aged 45, is the General Manager and Director of
America Archi Colors Group Limited. She joined the Group in April
2007 and is responsible for the sales and marketing of paints products
in Northeast China Market. She has a postgraduate degree from the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She has 12 years of experience in
the coating industry in both the PRC and internationally and over 16
years of experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. Cao Quan, aged 41, is General Manager of the Qigihar Northeast
Oil currently. He held a Business Administration degree from South
China University of Technology in 1993 and had worked in numerous
senior management positions in various industries including the
construction of the Guangzhou Subway System. He joined the Group
in 2008 as committee member of joint management committee in the
oilfield area.

Mr. Yang Jin Feng, aged 42, is currently the Executive Deputy
General Manager of Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical
Limited (“GalalLi”) of the Group. He engaged in the gasoline and
fuel oil business from 1997 to 2009 in Boluo, Guangdong, during
which, through the cooperation with others, he conducted the sub-
contracting operation of Zhuyuan Gas Station and Longhua Gas
Station in Boluo, Guangdong, and acquired and operated Qingtang
Gas Station in Boluo, Guangdong since 1997 before beginning to
engage in the lubricating oil business in 2007. He possesses extensive
business experience. He engaged in the fuel oil trading business in
Shenzhen since 2010 until now and incorporated Galali Investment
Development Company Limited (&% 4% & % B B R A7) (being
the name of the registered company of Galali acquired by the
Group) in Shenzhen in the same year. He held the positions as Legal
Representative and Chairman in which the company is mainly engaged
in the fuel oil trading business.
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Ms. Lau Wai Wing, Vivian, aged 44, is currently the General Manager
of Galali of the Group. She holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Murdoch University in Perth Australia. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked in the financial and management
fields for over 20 years and held various positions such as financial
controller and marketing for a number of reputable groups, which
include Guangnan Holdings Limited ( EE % B AR A 7)), Guangdong
Petrochemical Company Limited (28 //tEBBR A7), Hong Kong
Eastern Hill International Limited (BB RIEBFEHRRAF]), Taishan
PetroChina Sales Company Limited ((FEIAM A& L E X EEGRAAF])
and Guangdong Dongchang Group Company Limited (ER R KEE
ABRZAF]) . She has been engaged in the imports, re-exports, domestic
trading and blending of fuel oil since 2001, and is very familiar with
the domestic fuel market.

Mr. Qiu Shuangli, aged 49, is currently the General Manager of Global
Songkaer Petroleum Co., Ltd (R FBAHEBEREEQF) (the
“Songkaer”) and a director of Topact Holdings Limited, which are
under the Group. He joined the Group in November 2012. He founded
the Songkaer in the Republic of Kazakhstan in 2006. Currently, Mr.
Qiu is also the officer of Liaohe Qilfield Industrial Group (A i A
E X% E) (a deputy bureau-level unit) in Central Asia office. He had
successively served as worker, security officer, political officer, head and
facilitator of oil production team, secretary, deputy instructor, head
of production group, instructor, and manager of market development
project division of Liaohe Qilfield. He graduated from Northeastern
University in 2006. He was also certified as the Senior Project Manager
by International Profession Certification Association in June 2012. He
has engaged in the domestic and international oil business for over 27
years, of which he has engaged in the oilfield business for over 9 years
in the Republic of Kazakhstan. He is very familiar with the oil business
management.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A az8ERIZ A4
Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFERHE

FEHREL L 4458 B BAREBE BTN M2
KR REANBRAN AR BERABTEE
BIAT 2 WRIMAREE 287 (R EHH K
EETEE20F TR TRAZRCEEEES
MIGRENTISRBERM  ZECEEEBH
FERAEEARAR BEBALARAR FBR
BEERERAR TEAOMSIUELHEAR
AE ERRREBEARAAE -FH_FTT—
FR-EREMROED EO NERFAME
% HEAORTISIER T # -

MEFIFEAE - 495%  BERR/RRNEERIRIFKIA TR
ERMEREELAR ([MFRAAAINAKLER
Topact Holdings Limitedf &% - fFR —F— &
T AMARER - HR T NFERERD
BHMBEK IR RERE KA REFERTEEE
¥5E (RIRREM)HTREREEET EE
RARETIA REBE BHIHE FHK
REIEEE WE AHEE SEAKE #E
B MBHAEERPLEBESHRE - R TN
FREENFILRE TR ZT—ZF N ARBRRE
REBEHELSSREREEM - KYFPEE
MR B AR TER27F - 2R RERRE
s HTIE AR M A E BT - RE AMmE
BERIETE TR



Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities

At 31 March 2013, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, and any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model code

were as follows:
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Nature of Number of Equity Total Total % of
Name Capacity Interests Shares held Derivative Interest Issued Shares
HERTT
®E F1 L $:3c3-1 FENRAHE RAfTATA BER RBBDL
Directors:
Es:
Mr. Poon Sum Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 187,298,453 650,000,000 1,147,561,011 24.944%
(Notes 1 & 5)
EREE EREEA EARR (ME1RS)
Founder of Discretionary Trust ~ Other Interest 310,262,558 -
(Notes 2 & 5)
2REFAHEA Higs (Ma2ks)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 16,285 100,000 116,285 0.003%
(Notes 3 & 5)
BEREE EREAA BARR (ME3KS)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 5) 7,900,000 - 7,900,000 0.172%
EEREE EREAA B A2 (FifaEs5)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 61,500 3,800,000 3,861,500 0.084%
(Notes 4 & 5)
BRIHB L& EREEA BN B2 (FiE4R5)
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul  Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 704,000 3,800,000 4,504,000 0.098%
(Notes 4 & 5)
BRI L& ERlEEA BN B2 (FiT4R5)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest 234,000 3,800,000 4,034,000 0.088%
(Notes 4 & 5)
RHBELE BRBEEA {E A8z (FiE4R5)
Notes: B 5 -
1. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests 1. RARBRATETEBBERG O EREBNIR

in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March
2015 to subscribe for 200,000,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per
share, interests in warrants of the Company which conferred rights to subscribe for
250,000,000 shares at an initial subscription price of HK$1.35 per share (subject
to adjustment) exercisable during the period from 21 June 2010 to 20 June 2013
and interests in warrants of the Company which conferred rights to subscribe for
200,000,000 shares at an initial subscription price of HK$0.45 per share (subject to
adjustment) exercisable during the period from 30 June 2011 to 29 June 2014.

BANABRERT ER AR R ERENERS

ZEBREINR - —FLA-RAE-_T—RF
Eﬁ‘thEE@F?TTEM?E??@;{E#HX/%%O198
#%200,000,000/% A& 1% « T2 7] 3R A% 4 3% H) 12
B ;Z—ira%ﬁx%m%&%%ﬂumﬁu B RE
#1.357T (Al FLAFHE ) 728E250,000,0008% 8% 15 * 17
FHAR-ZT—ZTFXA-+T—HEZZ—=FA
ZHHERAARRREENOE S  ZSRREE
TR T REFI AR R IE B F A E0.457T (AT F 1A
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2. These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share capital of
Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed to be interested in 310,262,558 shares,
representing approximately 6.74% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2013,
through his shareholding in Ever Source Enterprises Limited.

3. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 13 August 2004 to 12
August 2014 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$0.251 per share.

4. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27 March
2014 to subscribe for 3,800,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198 per share.

5. All interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are
long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests FERRVERS
R-E—=F=-ZA=+—H8 BREEHELBEK
I 533615817 B A B C M AT ac 8 AR (I 3EAC
AFMEERT BTHAL) RAA TR RAT
RO HEAENERIT

As at 31 March 2013, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Total %
Name of Substantial Number of Equity Total of
shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest Issued Shares
HERTRE
TERRBE LR 54 L $:3:31 FENRAHE RASTATA R MERS
Shareholders
R
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust ~ Trustee Other Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
Corporation Limited (Notes 1,2 & 3)
("BNP Paribas Jersey")  EFA Hibigs (B 2R3)
Ground Point Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
(“Ground Point”) Controlled Corporation (Notes 1,2 & 3)
XRthEEER AR (B 2K3)
Red Tiles Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
(“Red Tiles") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1,2 & 3)
XEthEEER AR (B 2K3)
Guidance Investment Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
Limited (“Guidance”) Controlled Corporation (Notes 1,2 & 3)
XEtEE RS AR (B 2K3)
Time Concord Limited Interest of Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
("Time Concord") Controlled Corporation (Notes 1,2 & 3)
XEthEE RS AR (B 2K3)
Ever Source Enterprises  Beneficial owner Corporate Interest 310,262,558 - 310,262,558 6.74%
Limited (“Ever Source”) (Notes 1,2 & 3)
BEHERA AR (B 2K3)
Mr. Poon Sau Tin Beneficial owner Personal Interest 16,292,453 - 326,555,011 7.10%
EERELE BEREEA [EPN:
Founder of Other Interest 310,262,558
a Discretionary Trust (Notes 1,2 & 3)
PREEFANBIA Hib iz (B 2K3)
Notes: B 3
1. All interests of BNP Paribas Jersey, Ground Point, Red Tiles, Guidance, Time Concord 1. FTBBNP Paribas Jersey Ground Point- Red Tiles

Guidance * Time Concord & Ever Sourcef) &z LA & & &5
B EmE s R — s -

and Ever Source and the other interest of Mr. Poon Sau Tin are duplicated.

TR R
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2. BNP Paribas Jersey is deemed to be interested in the shares in the capacity of a
trustee of the two discretionary trusts as mentioned in paragraph 3 below through

2. BNP Paribas Jerseyi i@ LA T~ (3 H 122 1l 1) 72 (8] 48 25 JA
TXEBRMIAMELEETINIAATORER

interests of corporations controlled by it as follows: HHERG RS :

Name of Controlled Corporation Name of Controlling Shareholder Percentage Control
ZEEEEERE ERRRNWER ZEREDH
Ground Point BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Red Tiles BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Guidance Ground Point 100%
Time Concord Red Tiles 100%
Ever Source Guidance 50%
Ever Source Time Concord 50%

3. These shares are held by Ever Source. The issued share capital of Ever Source is 3. ZE %15 B Ever Source#§ A © Ever SourceH) 2 1T

beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as to 50% by Guidance, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother
of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, each of Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Poon Sau Tin will
be deemed to be interested in 310,262,558 shares, which represent approximately
6.74% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2013, because each of them is the
respective founder of the aforesaid two discretionary trusts which indirectly own
50% beneficial interest in Ever Source respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the Directors
of the Company, other than a Director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2013 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were approximately 77% and the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer were approximately 30% of the
Group'’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 86% and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 64% of
the Group's total purchases.
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

Pension Scheme Rules

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Lau & Au Yeung C.PA. Limited resigned
as the joint auditors of the Company with effect from 28 December
2011. Besides, pursuant to a board resolution dated 30 December
2011, PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed by the Board to act as
the new auditor of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Poon Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROASIAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (the
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 190, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31

“Company”) and its subsidiaries

March 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

B
/I,
N
g
o
=H

Ht
>3d
off

}ﬁx‘

B Jo Rk K 1

W

HPTRRERERQAARR
(RAEEHSTME LA ERAA])

ANZEED (ARS8 (B BEE
Z190EH DRERER AR (A TEHHEIE
AR REMBRAR (HEBIESE])NEKEH
ﬁﬁ%’mFAﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%—*fiiiﬁ
=t —BHGEMR AP BKAREREZA
IEFERNEGE]Y ﬁ% RAEEEKER REE
HEBDEARGARERER URTBSHBER
M2 R ARFEE R

A3 E R 63

BERAEFARARBEEBSMASRMY

FEMBHEERREE CRAIED) HBER
ERBREPBEREL NEEVMBRRIELE

MAFHRE  REREERBRRESMBR
i’%ﬁﬁbxﬁ’]ﬁ\]*ﬁ? Bl A AR E M RR A FE
A R S B AR T S B ) B K S AR R -

BN EERRIERFIN T Y % F ?./:.\57}7}%
BREHBR URBEMANDZBIERERR
PERBERMNER BRI Z IR E R %E\Eﬁﬂ
BH) - HM PSR AR BRENADT M EFMEMAL
B LA EFEE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013

Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFFRHE

o

=
AN

\F’Ej(i:

HMERBEESFMASRMONTERTE
APETTRAT - R FEAZRARMETBIERE
WHHRB RITERT WA EBEGRAMBRRE
BNFEEMEARERBR AL

FRDS LRITIEF ABRE R 6 M MR
HERREBEERNEEE - TEERIZFE
R Z BN B HI B - SRR b N KEF SRR T
EREA BRI FEERERRANER - £
AR ERRE  ZEAEBEZ R RRRES
B 75 ¥R 3R DA VR H B B 1 2 T 8 [ B AR B A P9 6
B ARFHEE MBS BB ML IEEA
AIAEME I A RIE R R B R - Et NRIETE
EEMEA ST RENABEEREL EFAF
E RN AR ELRA M BRI ERTIHRT
e

HIEE  HPESENETRERARNEE
WARFINESERIRHER-

HMRR ZERAVBRRERBEETEUBR
SEAEEMAFHRE EARE EXEM
“E=F=ZA=T—BNEKERR- Kk B
BEREZALFENBERREERE YRR
BEARAHEDD) MBREREZR/RE -

BERKEGTMERR
S E - 4ia]



BlE*x

n‘/-.ﬁ
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-T—=F=A=+—HIEFE
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T ST T
Revenue Wz 5 991,810 339,967
Other income E U A 6 140 5,815
Other losses, net HinEia  JFEE 7 (6,688) (54,184)
Purchases, processing and BE- NI RAEERAX
related expenses (951,363) (303,637)
Wages, salaries and other benefits T & - ¥ < K HEMEF 8 (31,271) (36,703)
Share-based payments LARR 3 2 1+ 2 518 (16,460) (25,528)
Depreciation, depletion and e FEKEE
amortisation (23,291) (22,655)
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRR 8
written off 17 - (9,637)
Other operating expenses HEi&EME (59,817) (58,656)
Operating loss Sl = 9 (96,940) (165,218)
Finance income BB WA 10 1,199 611
Finance costs A KA 10 (2,080) (1,688)
Share of results of associates FE(REE & A A2 R (12,771) (8,973)
Loss before income tax BRATERER(FX)A
credit/(expenses) &8 (110,592) (175,268)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FissiEe, (AX) 11 718 (1,596)
Loss for the year REANEE (109,874) (176,864)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT ATEIERER
&8
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ Z= DN 14 (115,255) (176,864)
Non-controlling interests FEF5E 1 e 5,381 =
(109,874) (176,864)
Loss per share (HK cents) TRk EE BW) 15
Basic FH A (2.66) (4.28)
Diluted iy (2.66) (4.28)

The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

medmElEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —EF——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss for the year RERNEE (109,874) (176,864)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: HEmem(EE) e
Exchange differences arising on RMEBINEBEEZELEZH
translation of foreign operations (779) 5,764
Change in fair value of available-for- ~ At H&ERE 2 A FEE S
sale investments (773) (297)
(1,552) 5,467
Total comprehensive loss for the year A% 2 H &5 18 42 58 (111,426) (171,397)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ILTALTEGEZE (BE)
attributable to: U 2% 42 58 -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ ¥ =N (116,925) (171,452)
Non-controlling interests FEE I M fE 5,499 55
(111,426) (171,397)

The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these H73HZE1908 2 M&ETiRZEREMBTHMEKE
consolidated financial statements. gz —#n-

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A azgE/RIER%4
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As at 31 March 2013

an\

BN R

RZE—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
=—2—= —EF——4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T ST T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 17 220,359 137,220
Prepaid land lease payments TE AT b HH & RIE 18 - 3,180
Investment properties SE-EZ/ES 19 24,888 41,815
Goodwill EES 20 16,457 16,457
Other intangible assets N I 21 240,499 239,827
Interests in associates RN = 23 42,554 110,083
Prepayments and other receivables 815 3B K& H fth & W FUB 24 16,255 40,978
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 25 57,102 6,432
618,114 595,992
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 26 5,670 15,161
Trade receivables B 5 W KIA 27 37,408 70,443
Prepayments, deposits and BAHIE Ze Rk
other receivables H h fE R IE 24 112,816 124,865
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE 28 145 2,988
Derivative financial assets MESBEE 29 181 256
Tax recoverables A] U Bl 7 18 311 914
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEIER 30 110,499 77,505
267,030 292,132
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade payables B 5 ENRIA 31 64,076 41,573
Accruals and other payables E\Eﬂ‘mﬁ&ﬁﬁzfgﬁm 32 42,488 84,797
Derivative financial liabilities ESBEE 29 8,997 5,406
Tax payables FE S R 18 - 646
Bank borrowings RITHEE 33 37,488 53,826
153,049 186,248
Net current assets REBEEFE 113,981 105,884
Total assets less current BEERRBAMSE
liabilities 732,095 701,876
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As at 31 March 2013 RZZ—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Capital and reserves BRA K 18
Share capital N 34 46,006 41,299
Reserves ] 639,722 654,315
Equity attributable to owners of N2 FEHE AL 2B
the Company 685,728 695,614
Non-controlling interests FEPE S M 37,045 2,370
Total equity ERBEH 722,773 697,984
Non-current liabilities FrREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEETIAA G 37 9,322 3,892
732,095 701,876

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 190 were F63EZ190EMHZGANBHRERCEES=S

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June RZ-ZZT—=FNA=-+—BHERBETZE I
2013 and are signed on its behalf by: BT EERKREE:
Poon Sum Poon Wai Kong
& & R
Director Director
EE EF

The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these ZE73EZE190B W AZESLEAMERRE
consolidated financial statements. BB —#n-
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BAFEAR AR

As at 31 March 2013 R=—Z—=F=H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T TEEEF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LIERY = A 17 2,662 3,776
Interests in subsidiaries NN =N 22 429,401 547,738
Prepayments and deposits ERRIEBERES 24 10,300 2,700
442,363 554,214
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE - He Rk
other receivables H i B W s IE 24 40,581 52,691
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B) 2 FX B 22 103,995 45,333
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEERE 30 33,225 32,126
177,801 130,150
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JE 5 R I8 K B At 5ROE 32 4,445 4,198
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEH B AR 258 22 2,968 2,915
7.413 7,113
Net current assets REBEEFE 170,388 123,037
Total assets less current liabilities EEERREE & 612,751 677,251
Capital and reserves B R f#
Share capital [N 34 46,006 41,299
Reserves G 35 566,745 635,952
Total equity AR 612,751 677,251

The financial statements on pages 63 to 190 were approved and F63EZ1908f & BEREREBEETSH
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2013 and are T —=F A=+ —H#ERZETZE WHT

signed on its behalf by: NEERKREE:
Poon Sum Poon Wai Kong
&R & E
Director Director
EF BFE

N
48
&
i
ﬂi
%
£
4
i

The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these Z73E 21908 2 MizT) Az
consolidated financial statements. Bz —#n -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERSERK

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDARAEAEL
Share-
based Non-
Share Share payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total ~interests Total
SR %A FiHM
Re  ROEE  RERFE  HERE  ERRE  RHEE ag | $:3 &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT  BETn  AE%Tr  A%Tn A%t B¥Tn  A¥Tn E%Tn BETn
(Note (a))
(MiE@)
At 1 April 2011 W=2--£mMA-A 41,299 1,751,622 64,067 (217,699) 33,330 (832,018) 840,601 4384 844,985
Comprehensive income 2EME
Loss for the year REREE - - - - - (176864  (176,864) - (176,864
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ E {12 (H18) /i
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELN
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - 5,709 - 5,709 55 5,764
Change in fair value of ARHEREZATE
available-for-sale investments 28 = = = (297) = = (297) = (297)
Total other comprehensive (loss)income  E {27 (1) /&% - - - (297) 5,709 - 5,412 55 5,467
Total comprehensive (loss)/income RER2E (BB)/
for the year Yaes = - - (297) 5709 (176864 (17145) 55 (171,397)
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Acquisition of non-controlling D Fautilia o
interests (Note (b) (£ (b) - - - (1,067) - - (1,067) (2,069) (3,136)
Recognition of equity-settled RAREEE AR
share-based payments SR ZHE - - 25,528 - - - 25,528 - 25,528
Exercise of warrants IS = 4 2,000 = = = 2,004 = 2,004
Lapse of share options BEMRIE = = (44,698) = = 44,698 = = =
Total transactions with owners BEEAIRFRE - 4 (17,170) (1,067) = 44,698 26,465 (2,069) 24,3%
At 31 March 2012 W=2-—%=f=1-H 41,299 1,751,626 46,897 (219,063) 39,039 (964,184) 695,614 2,370 697,984

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 35 8E/R1% /A PR 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=4
RERmEERE
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RRARBAELR
Share-
based Non-
Share Share payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests Total
MR Z A FiRt
& REEE FERE AR ERRRE 2itEE g | 32 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BETT BETT AETT AETT AETT BET AETT BETT
(Note (a))
(Mi@)
t 1 April 2012 W=2-—f#mMA-A 41,299 1,751,626 46,897 (219,063) 39,039 (964,184) 695,614 2,370 697,984
Comprehensive income 2EME
Loss for the year AERER - - - - - (115255 (115.255) 5,381 (109,874)
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ E {12 (H18) /i
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELN
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - (897) - (897) 118 (779)
Change in fair value of AfHERBZATE
available-for-sale investments 29 - - - (173) - - (173) - (173)
Total other comprehensive (los)income ~ E{t 27 (1) /&% - - - (773) (897) - (1,670) 118 (1,552)
Total comprehensive (loss)income rER2E(FR)/
for the year Wistag = = - (773) (897) (115,255) (116,925) 5499 (111,426)
Transactions with owners fﬁi}?ﬁﬁ AR5
Recognition of equity-settled BANRAEE AR
share-based payments IRZHE - - 32,940 - - - 32,940 - 32,940
Issue of new shares for acquisition SUERBARRIHRA
of subsidiaries (Note 38(a)) (Mz38(a)) 1573 24,032 - - - - 25,605 29,176 54,781
Placement of new shares REF KRR 3,125 45,191 = = = = 48316 = 48316
Exercise of share options e RE 9 209 (40) - - - 178 = 178
Lapse of share options BRERN - - (2,514) - - 2514 - - -
Total transactions with owners BEENIRFEE 4707 69,432 30,386 - - 2,514 107,039 29,176 136,215
At 31 March 2013 W=2-=F=f=1-H 46,006 1,821,058 77,283 (219,836) 38,142 (1,076,925 685,728 37,045 122,773
Notes: W
(a) Other reserves mainly represents the difference of approximately a debit of (a) HhHEEFTZEVRBEARMBAOREEZDH 2 X5 (%
HK$221,862,000 (2012: a debit of HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or ERGUTGEBRENZMBA R 2% 4#) B 31
received from transactions related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries BB EBmEMKER SRR =8
without the loss of control and the non-controlling interests being acquired or #) B8R 15221,862,0000T (=T — ZF B REE
disposed of. Other reserves also comprise investment revaluation reserve, merger 221,862,0007T) ° Efﬁﬁ%ﬁ)‘f@%&’éiﬁ%ﬁﬁ\é\ﬁ
reserve and statutory reserve of approximately a debit of HK$1,458,000 (2012: a ﬁﬁﬁﬁii B D RIA) 7B R ¥1,458,000T (=
debit of HK$685,000), a credit of HK$3,248,000 (2012: a credit of HK$3,248,000) BB #6685,0007T) - i Bk B #63,248,000
and a credit of HK$236,000 (2012: a credit of HK$236,000) respectively. (, T — —FHRB 3,248,000 ) REREE
236,0007T ( =% — —4F : # 8R##236,0007T) °
(b) On 8 March 2012, the Group acquired additional 30% equity interests in a (b) R-ZT—Z—F=A /B NEEKHE—REHEQRET
subsidiary, IR ME 5B AR, resulting in a reduction of non-controlling TEME SHER AT ZFEIN30%AE « 85312 H 1
interests. @ e

The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —ZFT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cash flows from operating RELETBHNEERE
activities
Loss before income tax BRATERE R (FX
credit/(expenses) BB (110,592) (175,268)
Adjustments for: FHE
Finance income & A (1,199) 611)
Finance costs & R AR 2,080 1,688
Share of results of associates FEIhEE DR 2 E4E 12,771 8,973
Depreciation, depletion and e FiEREE
amortisation 23,291 22,655
Property, plant and equipment E NN E SR
written off - 9,637
Reversal/(recognition) of HEHEKFIERRE
impairment loss on (HER) 2 R EEE
trade receivables (4,368) 3,502
Recognition of impairment loss on  FLTEFUIA 2 & K E b
prepayments, deposits and FE W IE T R
other receivables REEE 9,590 26,431
Recognition of impairment loss ML EYE RIEN i
on investment properties and MEFIARER
prepaid land leased payments ﬁéfﬁﬁiﬂa 8,524 20,790
Recognition of impairment loss on L% - M= KR EER
property, plant and equipment BB E B 8,617 6,787
Recognition of impairment loss on LAl B & & E#ER
an available-for-sale investment A EE 3,315 2,522
Discount on acquisition W EIE 2 iT3E (1,956) =
(Gains)/losses on disposals of HEME WMERLZEZ
property, plant and equipment Wzs) /EiE (7,550) 2,295
Losses on disposals of subsidiaries/ H&EMBE AR, EK 2
business, net B8 F58 6,214 =
Loss/(gain) from changes in fair PTEEMTIAEZRAFE
value of derivative financial BHEE ()
instruments 3,000 (11,086)
Loss from changes in fair value of FEEERE 2 A FAE
held-for-trading investments BE)EE 654 12,018
Wavier of other payables, net HMhERRIBRR R  F5 (16,258) =
Share-based payment expenses LARR 9 2 1+ 2 SRIB R 32 16,460 25,528
Operating cash flows before HEECEYR KL
movements in working capital ﬁ% (47,407) (44,139)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFEmL () 2,086 (1,249)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e W R TE R 18,268 10,845
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AN ZIE &% M H A
deposits and other receivables R FRIER A (38 h0) 3,109 (11,449)
Decrease in held-for-trading FHEEERER D
investments 2,189 20,293
Increase/(decrease) in derivative PTESm A &L,
financial liabilities, net ORid) - %58 666 (2,313)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables = 5 &I M, CF ) 27,079 (3,922)
Increase in accruals and JE 5T SR T8 K2 B JE < FRIE
other payables 0 16,063 19,355
Cash generated from/(used in) HECEEBE
operations carried forward (AR z2B% 22,053 (12,579)

Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFFRHE



IE@/}ILE%:Z

n‘/j_\
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-T—=F=A=+—HIEFE
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT
Cash generated from/(used in) AR EEBE (FTA)

operations brought forward ZHE 22,053 (12,579)
Purchase of tax reserve certificates B E 5 ([HHA])

("TRC") (105) (1,263)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B ERERER - (4,376)
Net cash generated from/ EEEFRE (A2

(used in) operating activities Tﬁ.ﬁ FE 21,948 (18,218)
Cash flows from investing RERETHNEESRE

activities
Repayment of deposits and BEMEEL

receivables for acquisitions of BEZERE RERIR

businesses/assets - 8,277
Settlement of consideration payables #)5 f&~f X & (21,238) =
Net cash outflow on acquisition of ~ WHEN B AR ZIRE R

subsidiaries, net of cash and )%’*%E MR B WERS &

cash equivalent acquired ©EEIEE 38(b) - (1,283)
Net cash inflow arising on o % MEBAR, EBEL

disposal of subsidiaries/business 2B RN 39 6,309 =
Increase in shares/acquisition of A&7 & n, e s —

an associate iR /NE] - (17,778)
Return of investment from REAHEEREZ

available-for-sale investments & & B R - 14,163
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE WFENMEH

equipment (10,054) (28,368)
Purchase of investment properties  FEERE Y% - (25,659)
Proceeds from disposals of HEWE - BRER&E

property, plant and equipment FT1S 308 10,136 2,404
Interest received =& RSN 1,199 611
Net cash used in investing RETBHFARSFHE

activities (13,648) (47,633)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Cash flows from financing REBMETBHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from placement of Bic & #7 AR 10 Fr 15 5/ 18
new shares 34(b) 48,316 -
Proceeds from exercise of warrants  171# 32 B& # % B 15 30 18 35 = 2,004
Proceeds from exercise of FT{E RS AR RE P15 IR
share options 34(a) 178 -
Increase in bank borrowings RITEE LN 19,991 9,600
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (36,329) (24,528)
Interest paid B 5B (2,080) (1,688)
Net cash generated from/ RMETEME (A2
(used in) financing activities HEFE 30,076 (14,612)
Net increase/(decrease) incash BHERBESEEER
and cash equivalents ®i CRd) B8 38,376 (80,463)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNESRESEE
beginning of the year EA 77,505 165,566
Effect of foreign exchange IBERBE 2
rate changes (5,382) (7,598)
Cash and cash equivalents RERNBEESRESEE
at end of the year HH 30 110,499 77,505
The notes on pages 73 to 190 are an integral part of these ZE73EEH190B W NAZSGEAVKRE
consolidated financial statements. Bz —&H-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour
City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the exploration and sale
of crude oil, sale of chemical products, provision of exploration
drilling and painting services, trading of commodities and
property investment.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved by the
Board of Directors on 21 June 2013.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by certain available-
for-sale financial investments, held-for-trading investments
and derivative financial assets and liabilities.

R RIERER AT ([RARR]) AR
Eﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiiZﬁ@@ﬁT'ﬁHﬁﬁE
EREBARSMBERAA ([BRA]) £
Mo ARRzEAMPEEREEZEFEM
2k 7 31 Bl A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands &7 NLEER A IRE
BB BN E6/E3601 % °

ARBEEXRBR/IREER - LB A A
ZEZREBARRREERH HE(LT
Em REOREROHRRE BmE
HRMERE -

BRBIERAN ZEREUBERRABE
(TB¥]) 25 - ZEEAMBHRRER
—:i/\ﬂ_+_55§§$@ﬁt/ﬁ°

REZSERAMBRRAERAZEIES:
BRI T - bR Z B A ZFHE
RIFBEZIFREACERER -

ARRREMB AR (5 A%
B ) 2R MBREDRIERES
R AE (BB EEAE ) Bk
ZEBUBREER ([BEFBHR
SHEADMER -FaWBRKRE
BRELRAERE X3 E T
HHEERE BEREEZRERID
teREEMBBEELER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates.

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) B ERRREEZEEF
disclosures
(i)  Revision and amendments to existing standards (i)
and interpretation effective but not relevant to
the Group )
HKAS 1 Presentation of financial EitgsrEl
statements E1%
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate BAEES
financial statements F275% ({871
Amendment to Classification of rights issues FitgsrEl
HKAS 32 F305H 2
AR
HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting Bitg st
F34%
HKFRS 3 (Revised)  Business combinations EAMBREE
3% (FET
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: EAMBREE
Disclosures ET%,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes it (BRI %
BEREZER)
—REH 135
Amendment to Prepayments of a minimum B8 (BB %
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 funding requirement nEREZEE)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 8EIR1ZEAR
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(ii) New Standards, amendments to existing

e PR R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early

adopted

(ii)

CE—=F=A=+—HILFE

BHEMAEAR £ A 5 A 187
BAZHER BEER R
BZIETA

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

AT BES

ZEREZ

FEHBER
Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
BEBGHENEIRZEITER HHBREZZES —E——_F+H—H
Amendment to HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
BERGFERE1REZEFIER EEREH —T—=%—H—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
BB G ERIFE275R 18 3 B 7 ok —T—=%—H—H

(=2——%)
HKAS 28 (2011)

FE G ERIE285E

(=F——%)
Amendment to HKAS 32

BB G ERIEI2R ZEFTAR

Amendment to HKFRS 7

BEMBHREEANETR 2
1BE] A

HKFRS 9

BB 3RS AR E 5

HKFRS 10

B R A 2RI 1058

HKFRS 11

B ERELERIFE 1158

HKFRS 12

B IRAE LRI 1258

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

YN

REEREZRE

Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

ERIA: 27— HBHEMEER
ERAR

Financial instruments: Disclosure
— Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

cRTHE: BE-HHEREER
TRAR

Financial instruments

E@IA

Consolidated financial statements

fra sk

Joint arrangements

HRAZHE

Disclosure of interests in other
entities

BENHEMER 2 #S
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

(i) New Standards, amendments to existing (i) EBMHERENASKRIEE
Standards and interpretations have been issued R ZHER BEEER 2
but are not effective and have not been early BZEFT (&)

adopted (Continued)

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUAT B#=R
ZEREZ
FEHBER

HKFRS 13
B BHHREERE135%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

B8 (BEBHmE2E
ZEg) —RZEF20%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

5 (BEBHmERE
ZEg) RES219%

Amendment to HKFRS 7
and 9

BBV BREEAETR K
FIPZIEFT A
Amendment to HKFRS 1

BERGHHRELEE 152
EET AR

Amendment to HKFRS 10,
11 and 12

BRI B EERE 1055

Fair value measurement

AVEHE

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

BE R WE 5 A AP B Z FBRBAR

Levies
e

Disclosures: Mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 and
transitional disclosures

BE BB B mELERFESR 2
58 i A= R H HA RE 1 B ER

First time adoption on government
loan

BIRBRNBUTE K

Transition guidance

BIE$E 5l

F115E R E129R 2 BTN

The Group is assessing the impact of these
amendments, standards and interpretations. The
Group will apply these amendments and standards
when respective annual periods are effective. The
Group anticipates that the application of HKFRS
10 has no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

(iii) Changes in functional currencies

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

In prior years, the Board regarded Renminbi (“RMB")
as the functional currency of the Company. Since
March 2012, the Group has commenced a new
business activity — trading of oil products, of which
the sales price is mainly denominated in US dollars
(“US$"). During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
trading of oil products business grew significantly. As
such, the Board reassessed the Company's functional
currency and considered to change the functional
currency of the Company from RMB to US$ during
the year as US$ has become the currency that mainly
influences the operation of the Group's significant
entities.

The change in functional currency of the Company
was applied prospectively from date of change in
accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effect of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rate”. On the date of the change
of functional currency, all assets, liabilities, issued
capital and other components of equity and income
statement items were translated into US$ at the
exchange rate on that date. The change in functional
currencies has no significant impact on the financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2013, or the
results and cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

In prior years, the Board regarded Renminbi ("RMB”) as
the functional currency of the Company. Since March
2012, the Group has commenced a new business activity
— trading of oil products, of which the sales price is mainly
denominated in US dollars (“US$"). During the year ended
31 March 2013, the trading of oil products business
grew significantly. As such, the Board reassessed the
Company's functional currency and considered to change
the functional currency of the Company from RMB to
US$ during the year as US$ has become the currency that
mainly influences the operation of the Group's significant
entities.

The change in functional currency of the Company was
applied prospectively from date of change in accordance
with HKAS 21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rate”. On the date of the change of functional currency,
all assets, liabilities, issued capital and other components
of equity and income statement items were translated
into US$ at the exchange rate on that date. The change
in functional currencies has no significant impact on the
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2013, or
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013.
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(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where
it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-
facto control may arise from circumstances such
as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognised in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited =5 gE/RIZEAR%
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(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #;

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

(i)

(i)

Annual Report 2012-13

Consolidation (Continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of results of associates” in the consolidated income
statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.

Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in

associates are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(i)

Annual Report 2012-13

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Group's presentation currency. In
prior years, the Board of Directors regarded Renminbi
("RMB") as the functional currency of the Company.
Since March 2012, the Group has commenced a new
business activity — trading of oil products, of which
the sales price is mainly denominated in US dollars
(“US$"). During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
trading of oil products business grew significantly.
As such, the Board of Directors reassessed the
Company's functional currency and considered to
change the functional currency of the Company from
RMB to US$ during the year as US$ has become the
currency that mainly influences the operation of the
Group's significant entities.
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(i)

(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Functional and presentation currency (Continued)

The change in functional currency of the Company
was applied prospectively from date of change in
accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effect of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rate”. On the date of the change
of functional currency, all assets, liabilities, issued
capital and other components of equity and income
statement items were translated into US$ at the
exchange rate on that date.

The change in functional currencies has no
significant impact on the financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2013, or the results and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within “Other
losses, net”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

(i)

(iii)

Annual Report 2012-13

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

(iii) Group companies (Continued)

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

() all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly building,
plant and machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment,
motor vehicles, oil properties (Note 2(h)) and properties
under construction, is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Shorter of term of lease and
21 years

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Others 3 - 11 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(1)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other losses, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

(i)  Exploration and evaluation

Oil exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the “successful efforts” method
of accounting. Costs are accumulated on a field-
by-field basis. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed as incurred. Costs directly associated with
an exploration well, and exploration and property
leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised until
the determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is
determined that commercial discovery has not been
achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Capitalisation is made within property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets according to the
nature of the expenditure.

Annual Report 2012-13 —T——Z—=FFERE

RmBERIN T EZ T E AT
ERFHMUBERERE HERA

BN = H R EE

gF FAHA 214
(AEREEA%E)

BERKRE 5-114F

Hph 3-114

EREMKL BRI EERSE
ERTERES LEBEERT
L

MEERTERREMFTRE S
RERT - 37 BN % B EE 2 AR TE (B HORL
ZHAWEEFE (MaE20)

A Y g K B 18 T B 3Bt B AT 1S 3K
BEERHEET IRERE RaR
WIER & [HMmEE FE] -

(i) EBEREFE

Ao B R R AP s YR A
[ARIE] EFHEARK A
A ARG 2 EERG - E
Ko s 3R )38 PR AR TR EE AR I 5
e - B ERH R B IR AN
W E UK E R 2 K
REREA  EEETERE
EEHF AR - R EIR
WEEE R TEEEE) RIZERK
AEBARAXAME-

RIES B2 HEEDE BB
LEERELEETETE
e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETEEBERME (#)

(Continued)

(h) Oil properties (Continued)

(i)  Exploration and evaluation (Continued) (i) BFERFE &)
Once commercial reserves are found, exploration —BEREERER  BEK
and evaluation assets are tested for impairment and FHEEESERERNS W
transferred to development tangible and intangible BERRAVRENEE -
assets. No depreciation and/or amortisation is IR MG B - S = kR
charged during the exploration and evaluation P8RS
phase.

(i) Development assets (i) RREE
Expenditure on the construction, installation or B RELTHEFR B
completion of infrastructure facilities such as BEARRBANEBREE
platforms, pipelines and the drilling of commercially AEREEECRERIZ
proven development wells, is capitalised within X BIBEZER 2 EER
property, plant and equipment and other intangible Y - R B AR A DA I ELAth
assets according to nature. When development is WEERERER - R ERE
completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil H .z %R HEERE
properties or intangible assets. EhmEESEBREE-

(iii)  Oil properties (i) HEHEE
Oil properties are aggregated exploration and FKhmEEEBEBYMR KT
evaluation tangible assets, and development EREERBEEEZERS
expenditures associated with the production of HEA 2 BERAX
proved reserves.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR ZngEiRIEAR B R AR
Annual Report 2012-13 —Z— =& —=FFERE m

(h) BREE (@)




e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE=-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

(iv)

Annual Report 2012-13

Depreciation/amortisation

Oil properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation, depreciation and
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The successful efforts method of accounting
is used for oil properties. Under this method, all
costs for development wells, support equipment
and facilities, and acquired proven mineral interests
in oil properties are capitalised. Proven oil reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to the recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as
of the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices provided
only by contractual arrangements, but not on
escalations based upon future conditions.

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of
capitalised costs of oil properties is calculated on
the unit-of-production basis over the total proven
and probable reserves of the relevant area. The unit-
of-production rate for depletion, depreciation and
amortisation of oil properties takes into account
the expenditure incurred to date, together with
projected future development expenditure and the
volume of oil produced in the current year.
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(vi)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for
impairment when reclassified to development
assets, or whenever facts and circumstances indicate
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the exploration and evaluation
assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less
costs to sell and their value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, the exploration and
evaluation assets subject to testing are grouped with
existing cash-generating units of production fields
that are located in the same geographical region.

Impairment — development assets and oil
properties

Development assets and oil properties are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows.

Prepaid land lease payments representing prepaid land
costs are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Prepaid
land lease payments are amortised to the consolidated
income statement over the term of relevant land leases.
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Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and building, are properties held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. Land held under operating leases
are accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as
if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the shorter of the term of the
lease and 50 years, using the straight-line method.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates represents the excess of consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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(i)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical
cost and have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using unit-of-production method. The
units of exploitation rights are reviewed annually in
accordance with the production plans of the Group
and the proved and probable reserves of the crude
oil.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method of ten years over the expected
life of the customer relationship.
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as held-
for-trading investments, loans and receivables and
available for sale. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Held-for-trading investments

Held-for-trading investments are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
2. FESTEHREE |

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Classification (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “Trade

receivables” (Note 2(q)), “Deposits and other
receivables” (Notes 2(q)) and “Cash and cash
equivalents” (Note 2(r)) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

(m) €@MEE (&)

(i) ¥
(b) EAREKTE
B M ERFIRRIENT

(©)
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(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Held-
for-trading investments are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial investments and financial
assets held-for-trading investments are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the held-for-trading investments are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other
losses, net” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from held-for-trading investments
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other income when the Group's right to
received payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=+—HIEFE

(i) Recognition and measurement (Continued) (i) ERRIE &)
When securities classified as available for sale ENHARAIHEHEZELFE
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value S SR B - PR I BERR
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the Z R R FEFAEET AR
consolidated income statement. GlERA -
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated FERERNSAFTE Z AT #
using the effective interest method is recognised HER S 2 H BREGEE W
in the consolidated income statement as part of RERREMBAZ —FH
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity AHEERATAZRER
instruments are recognised in the consolidated 7R 52 B B 7 WO AR B 2 HE R
income statement as part of other income when the B - fE4R A W R IR A H A
Group's right to receive payments is established. WAz —8 15 -

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments (iii) HHEELMTA
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net ERFEABORRIT 2 EFHE
amount reported in the consolidated statements of HEBRREBEREERFHE
financial position when there is a legally enforceable ERLHANFRAREREER
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is BEAER SREEHEAE
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the HEH - BRIEF RN AR A MR
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. MRANEM e

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (i) HZHEBHKLD R EE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting REBERERE ARG E R
period whether there is objective evidence that S —HeMEERR FAERM
a financial asset or group of financial assets is ENEEBERETTIH -EH
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial EERERBERASREE
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred TEX) MR & F 8 & —Task
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as ZHEEH([BEEH]) B
a result of one or more events that occurred after ZEBKEMHAEMAZ
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) HeMEENZEAETREE
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the W ARREREETE
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset B - RIZIE S 2 e B E =
or group of financial assets that can be reliably REBDFHEREIL T IE R
estimated. EEE-
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(i)

Annual Report 2012-13

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any subsequent events or evidence proved that
the impaired amount cannot be recoverable, it was
written off and derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position.

T ECEFERE

(i)

BHERALTRIEE (&)

MENEREE  BREBA
F—HEBABELBRETR
W EE 8 S REE R SR
e BB A A REERE
TEMMBER BRREN
ERBEREFARARRERE
BAFTERRED - HIIR R
B & B ok 8278 HA & SKAR B
B 48 PR 0

FE R MW IR RS
BERBZRZEENRE S
HEZTHEERRRER
MEFREDBARRIRE
(T RERAREENRRE
1R B IR (E 2 ol #) 2= REE
Tt B -ZEENRESHES
%ﬁd\'ESTé/\%EjIﬁE%W‘\%?é%
RN W —HERHFFE
ﬂ%&é&@@%+ﬁ%’ﬁ
EEMRESERNFTEES
BRESNETHNRITERT
Ko B b AN B IRA] LASR
RERINTSEREEX
AL TANRFE WAL
TEREEFERIE-

WREAZ AR REFER
SERL  EREREER
MEAZEENEHARTEH

BlanfER A= A s A AR
) Bl Z BB REREE
1B T B &I R A ek &
MTER o (T H 12 BTEE R
FBRRESBELRRD  ER
iR B B AROR 2R M8 R AR 1E
TR e



(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Assets and liabilities are
classified as current if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the derivatives are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other losses, net” in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EL:

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE=-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management and
often fluctuate from being positive to overdrawn. In the
consolidated and company statement of financial position,
bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 4 FREiE:
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense and
included in finance costs in consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ij) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 ##ZE—_ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE—ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately

administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,

contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further

payment obligations once the contributions have been

paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit

expen

se when they are due. Prepaid contributions are

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

(i)

Annual Report 2012-13 =

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees or
suppliers as consideration for equity instruments
(options or warrants) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or warrants granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

3 excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options or warrants that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition,
in some circumstances employees or suppliers may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options
or warrants that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options or warrants are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed
over to the granter, are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sale of crude oil, coal and goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ETZEEBERBE (#)

(Continued)

(aa) Revenue recognition (Continued) (aa) TR W= (4)

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price service contract is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. When the outcome of a service contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that is probable will
be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures. The financial instruments held by
the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are set out as
follows:
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2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PRI
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables ERREWGIE (2F
(including cash and RekBReFEIELH)
cash equivalents) 221,149 313,791
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEIKRE 145 2,988
Derivative financial instruments 3 {EEE 2 {TE @M T A
held-for-trading 181 256
Available-for-sale investments A {ft {H E & & 57,102 6,432
278,577 323,467
Financial liabilities LRLEE
Trade and other payables REHEKARZENCE S R
stated at amortised cost E A fE S 5IE 99,150 126,370
Derivative financial instruments S {EEBE 2 TE @M T A
held-for-trading 8,997 5,406
Bank borrowings RITEE 37,488 53,826
145,635 185,602
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Management monitors and manages the financial risk
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. The risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and

EREEBRATRARSEEZENA
BERFEEENEEEHEASHE
MERER - ZFRAREETSER
(BREINE R - F X @ R ERE
2) EERRERBE SRR -1
AR B 5% B B BRSR L 51 a0 T e
ﬁi@%f@&ﬁt@iﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ S

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures BRERERANEEEER-
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(i)  Market risk () 7THEEE
Foreign currency risk management SN B HE
The Group conducts its treasury function and REBEETEMEEL R
maintains certain cash and cash equivalents and INERFBETRERRESE
bank borrowings in foreign currencies, hence BIEE MIRITEE  BEE
is exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group SNEE R o AR EIE B E ) B
manages its foreign currency risk by closely RINEE R EBLAEIEH
monitoring the movements of the foreign currency SNEE LB o ZNER B B A A SN
exchange rates. The Group currently does not MR- A EREE
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, BINERRR - REEREEER
management monitors foreign exchange exposure = R E RN R B o
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REEAINEDER G E
currency denominated monetary assets and ERE¥EBENRHREH BN
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as BREEMT :
follows:
Assets Liabilities
gE &
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T ZB-=f "ZT—_fF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BT T AT T
HK$ B 187,212 103,747 44,854 88,186
Us$ e 20,260 52,931 30,682 =
RMB ARE 65,792 112,284 69,510 91,032
Kazakhstani Tenge MEiER HTEER K
("Kz1) (rgxl) 5,313 - 589 -
T E EEERE



()

n‘/T\

B IR R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's loss in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive/(negative) number below indicates a
decrease/(increase) in post-tax loss (2012: a decrease/
(increase) in post-tax loss) where RMB (2012:
US$), HK$ and KZT strengthen against the relevant
functional currency of the Group entities, that is US$
(2012: RMB). For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of
RMB (2012: US$), HK$ and KZT against the relevant
functional currency of the Group entities, that is US$
(2012: RMB), there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss.
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Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (Note 33).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings and derivative financial liabilities.

The Group’s cash flow interest risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the
Group’s HK$ denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances, variable-rate bank borrowings and
derivative financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2012: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease for variable-rate bank
borrowings and 10 basis point (2012: 10 basis point)
increase or decrease for bank balances are used
for interest rate sensitivity analysis and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

In order to keep borrowings at fixed rate and to
minimise the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
enters into floating to fixed interest rate swaps to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk exposure
associated with certain amount of borrowings
that carry interests at floating rate totalling
HK$37,488,000 (2012: HK$53,826,000). In addition,
fixed rate bank borrowings expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. At 31 March 2013, no bank
borrowings (2012: Nil) were at fixed rate.
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Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss derived
from variable-rate borrowings and interest rate swap
for the year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$187,000 (2012: HK$269,000).

There is no material cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances.

Price risk

The Group is engaged in a wide range of petroleum-
related activities. Prices of crude oil and petroleum
products are affected by a wide range of global and
domestic factors which are beyond the control of
the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have
favourable or unfavorable impacts to the Group. The
Group did not enter into any material hedging of its
price risk during the year.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities and
unquoted equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell
listed equity securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities compared
to index of relevant stock markets and other
industry indicators. There is no material equity price
risk in relation to the investments in listed equity
securities. No sensitivity analysis is presented as the
Group’s investments in unquoted equity securities
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.
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Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at
the reporting date. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% (2012: 10%)
higher/lower, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2013 would decrease/increase by
HK$15,000 (2012: HK$299,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the Group’s
investments in unquoted equity securities are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #;

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39%
(2012: 35%) and 76% (2012: 57%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors respectively
within the commodity trading, chemical products
and service contract segments (2012: chemical
products segment). The Group has assessed the
credit worthiness of these customers and all of these
customers have good historical repayment records
and of low default rate. In this regard, the directors
considered that the credit risk is low. The Group also
has concentration of geographical risk as over 68%
(2012: 81%) of the Group's revenue was generated
from the customers from Malaysia (2012: the PRC).

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if
any non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as an
additional source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2013,
the Group has available unutilised overdraft and
short-term bank loan facilities of HK$15,259,000
(2012: HK$10,099,000).
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(iii)

Annual Report 2012-13

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the weighted average interest rates
by reference to the HIBOR of the Group's variable-
rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the
Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments, except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments, since
the settlement of which would be satisfied by the
issue of new ordinary shares and does not involve
any cash outflows. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative instruments (except for the
issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments) that settle on a net basis. When the
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the weighted average
interest rate by reference to HIBOR of the Group's
variable-rate borrowings and the terms stipulated
in the contract of derivative financial instruments
existing at the end of the reporting period. The
liquidity analysis for the Group's derivative financial
instruments (except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments) are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BBERERE @
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BFEREkER (8
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) FEBBRZRE &)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) HEBEZ RFIFER K (%)
Weighted Total
average Within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years cash flows amount
MELH KRR
Gl MER 126 2-5% SENE RELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT  E%Tr A%t BT E%Tr BETx
As at 31 March 2013 R-B-=F
ZA=t+-H
Trade payables B EMNFHE 64,076 - - - 64,076 64,076
Accruals and JEETIE B REA
other payables e3R8 42,488 - - - 42,488 42,488
Bank borrowings (Note (a) ~ R{T(EE
(P+F(a) 3.39 38,760 - - - 38,760 37,488
Derivative - net settlement 74T & —/F%8
(Note (b)) #8 (M:Eb)
Interest rate swaps ipset i (157) 1,276 17 - 1,236 1,195
Foreign currency INERBAY
forward contracts 4,474 3,541 - - 8,015 7,802
As at 31 March 2012 R-B-=f
=A=1+-A
Trade payables B SR FE 41,573 - - - 41,573 41,573
Accruals and EETEE REM
other payables R RE 84,797 - - - 84,797 84,797
Bank borrowings (Note (a))  R{THEE
(M) 2.76 35,071 20,241 - - 55,312 53,826
Derivative - net settlement  $74 T A%
(Note (b)) #E (Fi3Eb)
Interest rate swaps ki 8 2,708 1,377 1,413 - 5,498 5,308
Foreign currency SNEREIEH
forward contracts 57 43 - - 100 98
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited = 25 AE)R{2Ef NS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes:

(@) For the Group's variable-rate interest borrowings, the
weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period
is used for undiscounted cash flow analysis.

(b) The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial
instruments was determined assuming all variables used in
the fair value calculation at the end of each reporting period
remained the same until maturity.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowings (Note 33), net of cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 EIR1ZEAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Capital management (Continued)

(c)

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated by bank borrowings divided by the
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March
2013 was 4.24% (2012: 6.06%).

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BBERERE @#m
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (0 &2MIAENATE@
The following table presents the Group's assets and TREINR-_Z—=FR-ZT—Z
liabilities that are measured at their fair values at 31 March FZA=1+—HAUATFEFEZR
2013 and 2012. SECEERBE-
2013 2012
—E-=% —T—-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
\ -8 £-8 £=8 Y S S =Y S = At
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETr  B¥Tz  ATx  BETr BT B%Tr  A%Tx
Available-for-sale THHEERE
investments 52,980 4122 = 57,102 = 3117 = 3,117
Financial assets at FVTPL R AFE: ABHEH
SREE
Held-for-trading investments  #{EE B % & 145 - - 145 2,988 - - 2,988
Derivative financial assets ~ TA2REE - 181 - 181 - 256 = 256
145 181 = 326 2,988 256 = 3,244
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT Ezt ABHEH
tRERE
Derivative financial liabilities #7144 B & & - 8,997 = 8,997 - 5,406 - 5,406
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in both RREFERN F—REE Kz
years. fi I o 4 o
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited R Eag8/RIZIRBIR AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BBERERE @
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (0 =RMIAMNATEH
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TEREZVNFRE=MRITE 2 EH):

instruments during the year:

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—_F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT K
At beginning of the year R F ) - (12,942)
Settlement e - (2,150)
Change in fair value RERERN AT EZE)
recognised in profit or loss - 14,994
Transfer to level 2 EEEE N - 98
At end of the year NGRS = -
The above change in fair value is included in “other A ERFEZE 55T A [ EMEE
losses, net” and reported as “(loss)/gain from changes FE RS RERERR [1TE
in fair value of derivative financial instruments” in the SBMIAZATEES (BE) K
consolidated income statement. ] e
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 28 aE/RIZERE AR A A
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Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Oil reserves are key elements in the Group's investment
decision-making process. They are also an important
element in determining the amount of amortisation of the
oil exploitation rights included in other intangible assets
and depreciation of oil properties included in property,
plant and equipment, and for testing for impairment.
Changes in proved and probable oil reserves, will affect
unit-of-production amortisation, depreciation and
depletion recorded in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the oil exploitation rights and oil properties
related to oil production activities.

A reduction in proved and probable reserves or an
increase in future development expenditure will increase
amortisation charges, depreciation and depletion and
increase net loss. Proved and probable reserve and future
development expenditure estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on new information,
such as from development drilling and production
activities or from changes in economic factors, including
product prices, contract terms or development plans. In
general, changes in the technical maturity of oil reserves
resulting from new information becoming available from
development and production activities have tended to be
the most significant cause of annual revisions.
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4. BERETHEFTRAE @)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of oil exploitation licences
included in other intangible assets and oil
properties included in property, plant and
equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation licences and
oil properties are assessed for impairment when facts
and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts of
them may exceed their recoverable amounts. The Group's
determination as to whether they are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the assets. The
Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects
for the discovery of oil in the oil field and estimated the
value of oil to be produced in the future at a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. For
drilling costs and other exploration and evaluation assets,
the Group determined whether the related well costs are
expensed if it is determined that such economic viability
is not attained after performing further feasibility studies
that is usually completed within one year of completion of
drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition, and requires the use
of judgments and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each statement of financial position date.

(b)

(c)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Management uses its judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments
not quoted in an active market. For derivative financial
instruments such as interest rate swaps and currency
swaps, assumptions are based on quoted market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument based on
inputs supported by observable market prices or rates.

The Group’s employees have participated in various share-
based incentive schemes of the Company. The Company
has also granted warrants to suppliers for the provision
of services. Management of the Group have used the
Binomial Model to determine the total value of the options
or warrants granted, which is based on fair value and
various attributes of the underlying shares of the Company.
Significant estimates and assumptions are required to
be made in determining the parameters for applying the
Binomial Model, including estimates and assumptions
regarding the risk-free rate of return, expected dividend
yield and volatility of the underlying shares and the
expected life of the share options or warrants. In addition,
the Group is required to estimate the expected percentage
of grantees that will remain in employment or terms
with the Group or, where applicable, if the performance
conditions for vesting will be met at the end of the vesting
period. The Group only recognises an expense for those
options or warrants expected to vest over the vesting
period during which the grantees become unconditionally
entitled to theses share-based awards. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material effect
on the determination of the fair value of the options or
warrants and the amount of such share-based awards
expected to become vested, which may in turn significantly
impact the determination of the share-based payments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

4. BERETHEFTRAE @)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired through business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations, which requires the Group to
record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair
values on the date of acquisition. Significant judgement is
used to estimate the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including estimating future cash flows from the
acquired business, determining appropriate discount rates
and other assumptions.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and other jurisdictions. Judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes in each of
these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income
tax assets and taxation charges in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

(f)

(9)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

The executive directors of the Company have been regarded as
the Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM"). The Group's
operating segments, based on information reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, are as follows:

° Trading of commodity products (“commodity trading”);

. Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“crude oil”);

o Manufacture and sale of paints, blended solvents and
plastic colorants (“chemical products”, formerly known as
“paints, blended solvents and plastic colorants”);

o Provision of painting and exploration drilling services
(“service contract”); and

° Lease and trading of investment properties (“property
investment”).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, service contract did not
qualify as a reportable operating segment. However, service
contract qualifies as a reportable operating segment during
the year ended 31 March 2013, the comparatives have been
restated.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment loss/
profit represents the loss made or profit earned by each
segment without allocation of incomes or expenses which
are not recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group’s
operating performance, including bank interest income, central
administration costs, directors’ emoluments, share of results of
associates, changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments
and derivative financial instruments and finance costs.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than interests in associates, available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments, derivative
financial assets, tax recoverables, cash and cash equivalents and
other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liability is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expenses, depreciation, depletion
and amortisation, unallocated other income less expenses and
non-controlling interests (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA") of the Group.
Accordingly, EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

5.

Wi R o BER (@)

?fﬁﬂ? PRKRBE LR BESEERM
HBEEANEEREDE (R E

Alem AIHHERE HIEEER
PTESREE JREHRE Re KR
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Hb m; L\) ll3
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FELERRENBENLAEEZBRRE
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FEREH ROBEEMBARBXR
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR ZngEiRIEAR B R A A
Annual Report 2012-13 —Z——F—=FFEHE

127




n‘/T\

B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBRAZEHMREEDTE D 2
results by reportable and operating segments. Was REEDTAT o
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-E-=F=A=1-ALFE
Commodity Chemical Service Segment
trading  Crudeoil  products  contract Others total Eliminations Total
BRER B {tIER REEH 2t AEAR 8 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT B¥Tr  BTn  B%Tn  BMTr  B%Tn  B%Tn
Segment revenue AERE
External sales HiMEE 798,439 29226 144,855 19,290 - 991,810 - 991,810
Inter-segment sales DEHEE - - 3,044 5,305 - 8,349 (8,349) =
Total At 798,439 29226 147,899 24,595 - 1,000,159 (8,349) 991,810
Segment (LBITDA)/EBITDA 48 (LBITDA)/EBITDA (6,856) (168) 6,040 17,920 (2,029) 14,907 - 14,907
Segment depreciation, PENE FERESR
depletion and amortisation (1,734) (9,898) (3,284) (6,115) (543)  (21,574) - (21,574)
Segment results DEEE (8,590) (10,066) 2,756 11,805 (2,572) (6,667) - (6,667)
Unallocated other income RAREMBA =
Unallocated expenses ) Eﬁﬂ X (90,273)
Finance income BERA 1,199
Finance costs BERKA (2,080)
Share of results of associates  JE/EEEE N A] 2 £48 (12,7m)
Loss before income tax BEEHES/ (FZ)
credit/(expenses) RiEE (110,592)
Annual Report 2012-13 —T——Z—=FFERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WHERDEEFR (&)
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) () Z7ERERFESE ®)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HEZZ-—#=A=1-HIFE
Commodity Chemical Service Segment
trading  Crude oil products contract Others total  Eliminations Total
Emgs Ra  IEm RHaH At HEA sy At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT BT BETr  B%Tr  A%Tn  ABTn  BETr  BETx

(restated) ﬁ
(mE5)

Segment revenue AENH

External sales HIMHE 56,481 40,686 240277 2,523 - 339967 - 33997

Inter-segment sales NEREE - - 5,026 - - 5,026 (5,026) =
Total At 56,481 40,686 245303 2,523 - 344,993 (5,026) 339,967
Segment 2 48(LBITDAVEBITDA

(LBITDA)/EBITDA (8,836) 2,717 (97,492) (2,048) (6,655)  (112,314) - (112,314)
Segment depreciation, PENE EEREH

depletion and amortisation (329) (15,464) (6,466) (109) (287) (22,655) - (22,655)
Segment results PEEE (9,165) (12,747)  (103,958) (2,157) (6,942)  (134,969) - (134,969)
Unallocated other income KA EHAHRA 11,086
Unallocated expenses RARFR (41,335)
Finance income BERA 611
Finance costs BERAK (1,688)
Share of results of associates JE(RE SRR 2 £E (8,973)
Loss before income tax BEEHES/ (FZ)

credit/(expenses) RiEE (175,268)
Revenue from three customers (2012: one customer) in REARBES (ZE—ZF:1tT
relation to commodity trading (2012: chemical products) E i ) mME RE=ZBEF(ZF
amounted to approximately HK$679,142,000 (2012: — BB 2R BEE
HK$98,288,000), which individually represents more than 679,142,00075 (ZE—ZF 88
10% of the Group's total. 98,288,0007T ) & BG4S E Yz 42

FRHBE10% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

N

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WaER7EER |
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets (b) PEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by REHZAEMELEDEEDZE
reportable operating segment: ESNAT:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Segment assets PEEE
Commodity trading HmE 5 83,530 93,388
Crude ol JRH 352,641 351,192
Chemical products (L ITE® 24,424 129,629
Service contract BR 7% & 49 114,482 15,158
Others HAh 24,968 64,083
Total segment assets DIEEERE 600,045 653,450
Unallocated RO 285,099 234,674
Total assets HMEE 885,144 888,124
130 oGP R i
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information 5. WHERDEEFR (&)
(Continued)

(c) Other segment information (0 HibnpEEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-E-ZEZA=t-ALEE

Commodity Chemical Service
trading  Crude oil products contract Others  Unallocated Total
BmEs Ba  LIER  REEH Hity FAE it
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr ATz BMTn BRI BT B¥Tr BE¥Tx ﬁ
Amount included in the measure  F AN EEEXHEEE
of segment results or FTEZRE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  AEIFRBEE 6,088 9,746 180 103,778 7 10,300 130,119
Recognition of impairment HNE BERXERER
loss on property, plant and ZRBER
equipment - - (8,617) - - - (8,617)
Recognition of impairment loss 3% E¥1% AR 13t
on investment properties and  FEFERER
prepaid land lease payments HEESR - - (8,524) - - - (8,524)
Reversal of impairment HEHERFERR
loss on trade receivables ZREER - = 4,368 = = = 4,368
Recognition of impairment loss ~ SEMFE EE R
on prepayments, depositsand  E A EWFUERER 2
other receivables REBE (9,538) - (52) - - = (9,590)
Gains/(losses) on disposals of HENE BRERREZ
property, plant and equipment Wiz / (BR) (587) - 5,913 2,338 - (114) 7,550
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR 25 BER1Z%] NS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

N

5. WEKkDB\ER (4

i}

)

Bl

§
2

(0 HnEER (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-Z-—#-A=1-ALFE

Commodity Chemical Service
trading Crude ol products contract Others  Unallocated Total
BEnES Fa kIER  RBAH Hih RO &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
AETT  AMTT  AMTn  AETn  AETn BT BBt
(restated)
(m=Z3)
Amount included in the measure  FADEEEXHEEE
of segment results or FTEZEE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  REEREHEE 31,144 25,990 464 17 25,702 = 83,317
Property, plant and equipment  #1% * BE Rk EHH
written off - (9,502) (135) - - - (9,637)
Recognition of impairment AARNERERRL
loss on available-for-sale HEBE
investments - - - - (297) - (297)
Recognition of impairment AME BE kR
loss on property, plant and BRZAEER
equipment - - (6,787) - - - (6,787)
Recognition of impairment loss ~ SEREMERZ L
on investment properties REER - - (20,790) - - - (20,790)
Recognition of impairment loss 58 5 & i ZERE A
on trade receivables HEER = (751) 2,751) = = = (3,502)
Recognition of impairment loss ~ B FE: k&R
on prepayments, depositsand ~ H{t ERFIBRA 2
other receivables BEER (4,132) (1,806) (4,500) - - (15993)  (26,431)
Losses on disposals of property,  HENE HE R
plant and equipment RELER - = (2,295) = = = (2,295)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 &E/RIZERE A IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WREkDEER (#H)
(Continued)

(d) Geographical information d) HEERE
The Group's operations are located in the PRC, Hong REBZEBURPEH FERE
Kong and others. The Group’s revenue from external fth 30 [ o 7N &2 (] 2 AR & i [ &l
customers is based on the location of their operations ZREINREF Z WA R REEE
and information about its non-current assets is based on FiEM I &l 2 IEm BN & ZE 2 B #}
geographical location of the assets that are detailed below: IR
Revenue from r
external customers Non-current assets
REIREF W FRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT T
Malaysia BRAE 679,142 = = =
PRC s 220,927 276,315 373,589 431,307
Hong Kong B 75,774 63,652 147,156 123,707
The Republic of Kazakhstan 05 7% 52 H 38 2L A 15,967 = 97,369 40,978
991,810 339,967 618,114 595,992
6. Other Income 6. HAA
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Rental income from leasing of REEEWME BER
property, plant and equipment BBz BSWA 80 4,765
Dividend income from REFEEERREZ
held-for-trading investments g WA - 246
Others EAfh 60 804
140 5,815
PetroAsian Ene Holdings Limited 7 R B R AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EB—=F —T—_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BET T BT
Exchange gains, net bE 5 Wz JF R 3,656 7,985
Reversal/(recognition) of TE SR GRIERE
impairment loss on trade (FER) 2 M EEE
receivables 27(d) 4,368 (3,502)
Recognition of impairment MIERFKIE L E &
loss on prepayments, Hh e R IBRE R 2
deposits and other NEREYEi=!
receivables 24(e) (9,590) (26,431)
Recognition of impairment ?ﬁ&ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁiﬂﬂ
loss on investment T E IR
properties and prepaid VERIEN. SE =
land lease payments 18, 19 (8,524) (20,790)
Recognition of impairment MIE BB K&
loss on property, plant and RERRZBEERE
equipment 17 (8,617) (6,787)
Recognition of impairment MAIHEERERRZ
loss on an available-for-sale  JR{EE &
investment 25(c) (3,315) (2,522)
Discount on acquisition WEE =18 2 e 38(a) 1,956 =
Losses on disposals of HEMRBRAR %K
subsidiaries/business, net Ei - F 8 39 (6,214) =
Gains/(losses) on disposals HEWE BER&EZ
of property, plant and Wz (F518)
equipment 7,550 (2,295)
(Loss)/gain from changes in PTESRMIAZAFEE
fair value of derivative 25 (ER) =
financial instruments (3,000) 11,086
Loss from changes in fair FIEEEREZATE
value of held-for-trading BEyEE
investments (654) (12,018)
Waiver of other payables, net Efh B FIEZ & - F 5 32(a) 16,258 =
Others Hih (562) 1,090
(6,688) (54,184)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

Staff Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments) 8. EIXAX (BREESE#ME)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe LEREMER 30,956 36,336
Contributions to defined contribution  7& %8 fit FR R 51 2 &9 it 3%
retirement plan 315 367
31,271 36,703
Share-based payments to MEBEFIELZ A
Honorary Chairman f&1n 25 2 A 14,400 25,528
Total staff costs BT AN4R%8 45,671 62,231
Operating Loss RERE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Items charged in arriving at the REBREBERNRZ
operating loss include: BB
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B
Audit services EZIRT
— Current year —KREE 2,800 2,618
— Under-provision for prior years —BEFERETE 251 -
Non-audit services IEEZ R 100 362
Operating lease expenses MERERAY 9,857 7,735
Share-based payments in respect of 5 BARER & 2 ARR (D 14 2
consultant fee (Note 24(c)) KIE (MTEE24(0)) 2,060 =
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 28 aE/RIZERE AR A A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

10. Finance Income and Costs 10. BEUWA K KA
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Interest expenses on bank loans and ZBRAFRNBEEE 2
overdrafts wholly repayable within ~ RITERMES 2

5 years FEF X (2,080) (1,688)
Interest income on: AT&EEZFSWA :
- bank deposits —RITTFER 152 522
— available-for-sale investments — A HERE 415 89
— other receivables — H i E W SR IE 632 =
1,199 611
Finance costs, net BB KA - FER (881) (1,077)
11. Income Tax Credit/(Expenses) 1. FrEHEsR, (FAX)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
PRC Corporate Income Tax: RS
Current year KEE (1) (36)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR - (1,559)
Deferred income tax (Note 37) RIEFTISE (HI5E37) 719 (1)
718 (1,596)
In accordance with relevant PRC income tax rules and BEBEPEAEBENEER #EA
regulations, the PRC Corporate Income Tax rate applicable to the RAEBRFBEKZZHBRRZH
Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC is principally 25% PEMBHEFER% (ZT—ZF:
(2012: 25%). 25%) °
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group BN EBRF R EEEBEETAE
did not have any assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year R ot v ] - I A 5 R4S B VR B
(2012: Nil). T —F o E)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited PR %
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Up to 28 March 2013, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD") has issued protective profits tax
assessments of approximately HK$22,078,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$17,881,000) in aggregate for years ended 31 March 1997
to 2006 (i.e. assessment years 1996/97 to 2005/06) against
certain subsidiaries of the Company. In prior years, the Group
has paid and recognised Hong Kong profits tax amounting to
approximately HK$6,332,000, and lodged objections with the
IRD against the protective assessments. Pending the outcome of
the objections, the IRD agreed to completely hold over the tax
in disputes of HK$11,654,000 (31 March 2012: HK$11,549,000)
on the condition that the tax reserve certificates (“TRC") in
equivalent amounts were purchased for respective assessment
years 1996/97 to 2005/06. These TRC were accounted for as
prepayments, deposits and other receivables under current
assets. On 9 May 2012, the IRD agreed to hold over the
remaining tax in disputes of HK$4,092,000 unconditionally.

On 28 March 2013, the IRD further issued protective profits tax
assessments of approximately HK$10,340,000 for the year ended
31 March 2007 (i.e. assessment year 2006/07). On 26 April
2013, the Group lodged an objection with the IRD against this
protective assessment. Subsequently, the IRD agreed to hold over
the tax in dispute unconditionally on 24 May 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, 50% of the profits of a relevant
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong derived for the years
ended 31 March 1997 to 2001 should not be chargeable to
Hong Kong profits tax whereas the remaining subsidiaries in
dispute did not carry on any business nor derive any profit in
Hong Kong and thus, not chargeable to Hong Kong profits
tax from the year ended 31 March 2002 onwards. Moreover,
Mr. Poon Sum, the Honorary Chairman of the Company, has
committed to indemnify the potential exposure prior to the
listing of the Company in 2003. Having taken the advice from
the Group's tax representative, the Board considers that no Hong
Kong profits tax should be payable by the Group for these years
or for any other years, and accordingly, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax is required. The Board is also considering various
approaches in the best interest of the Group to resolve the
dispute with the IRD.

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year (2012: Nil).

HE-_ZT-—=Z=ZA-1+N\A &K
BR([BARBER)RBE—AALSF
é:%%ﬁizﬂ_+—aﬁiﬁwﬂ
— AN/ NEEZETH " TRERE
E) mARRETHBARES EELHR
B 14 ) 15 B4 5T Bt 4975 #522,078,0007T (=
T——F=A=+—R:%%17,881,000
L) cRIBAEFE AKEEE XN RER
BEFEH 4745 86,332,0007T * W HLRE
MIRABESTERIRERE -ARHRY
ZER BAVBERRAEEBERMMEZ
TRz B #11,654,000T (—ZF——F = A
=+—H :/8%11,549,0005T) ' HEARE
— AN NEEZETH TR RE
ERBEZHE2HEBF ([BRE]) - ZE5RH
MERREEE TIEBGRIE - RE& R
HEKRRB-R=ZE—=FRAANA"
EBARERRAEREHERRTAEER
& 4,092,0007T °

RZZE—=F=A=+N\B BERKR
E—ITHEBEE_ZTLF=A=+—Hit
FE (=TT TERBFE) BLR
B 14 1) 15 5t =T i 40 75 %5 10,340,0007T © 7
—E-=FWMAZ+B AEEHZR
TR S AT BRI RE R
ERARBRR T —=FAA=-+THMBER
EERKRGESMFRITR

EZeRA NEBEMAKIL 2 BENE
RARBE-NNELFE_TET—F=
A=t—BILFEELZHHN 250%MEH
AME B m,ﬁﬁ_7q_¢ ﬁ
=t+t—BAAR-BRTEABZMBER
BREBFRREMES ﬁﬂéiﬁﬁ%
ﬂil%ﬂmﬁ%%%ﬂ ﬁEMW$
RAKBIEERELECHEERAR
—RE=F LA EERRIEHS Aﬁ
B -BEIRBRAEEBBRRZER
BRR AEEBARZFFERERME
EEXNBENEH WBAELERE
NShEE -E=ZRNEERERETA
SEKENTR 2 7E  AFREFERB
BzFE-

RAEE  $HEE A2 EKR AR
BBETE(ZT——_F &)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax expenses differs ERAAREE 2 RATSH A ATEE 2 IR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate ERER AR SR [ P B A 2 B A R G i A
in the PRC applicable to the Group as follows: EBEmME ZRNT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss before income tax BRATERE R (FAX)ATEE
credit/(expenses) (110,592) (175,268)

Tax at domestic income tax rate of B FT S BT E25%

25% (2012: 25%) (ZZ—=%F:25%)
STEMRIE (27,648) (43,817)

Tax effect of share of results of FE(GHE & A Al 2 AR

associates A’%ﬁ%gﬂ 3,193 2,243
Effect of different tax rates of R EL At B [ AR = /Y

subsidiaries operating in other iy EpNEIl RN RS A

jurisdictions - (104)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHR G REZN

differences not recognised B2 6,680 9,811
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible &)/ %t B & #5722 7] H1 8

temporary differences previously EREENNETE

not recognised = (248)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised &R IBE BN IS FE 5,842 23,253
Tax effect of income not taxable R ON Y -2

for tax purpose (48,095) (43,164)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] $175 55 % 9 5 75 57 £

for tax purpose 59,310 48,885
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREDR - 1,559
Others H At - 3,178
Income tax (credit)/expenses Fisfi (%) FAx (718) 1,596
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of eight (2012: six) ENSERTFNAE(ZE——F %) E
directors were as follows: EEZEMMSOT

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-E-ZF=A=+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Director's and benefits scheme Share-based
fees in kind contributions payments Total
¥ RER R MR 4
Esne B97E TR XNZHE CE

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT  B¥TR

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Poon Sum EREE = 4,824 15 14,400 19,239

Mr. Wang Bo (Note (a)) TR (K@) - 110 - - 110

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (b)) HER L& (MFD) - 462 15 - 477

Mr. Poon Wai Kong EBERLE - 1,176 15 - 1,191

- 6,572 45 14,400 21,017

Non-Executive Director EHTES

Mr. Zaid Latif (Note (c)) Zaid Latif% 4 (F{zE(0) 85 - - - 85

Independent Non-Executive BUkHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin TR B B2 5 A 264 - - - 264

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul BREBIELAE 264 - - - 264

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REE KL 264 - - - 264
792 - - - 792

Total Ch 871 6,572 45 14,400 21,894
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE
12. Directors’ and Chief Executive's Emoluments 12. EERFETHRAEME (@)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-Z-—F-A=+-HIEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Director's  and benefits scheme  Share-based
fees in kind  contributions payments Total
e 2R RIK PABR 3
ik EMA= FEMR  IRZFE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BAETT A%t BBTr  AET:R

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Poon Sum ERITE - 4,824 12 22,294 27,130

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (b)) HER 4 (M3 b)) - 462 12 173 647

Mr. Poon Wai Kong EERITAE = 1,176 12 173 1,361

- 6,462 36 22,640 29,138
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin BRIBIER 4 240 - - 233 473

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul BREgRR LA 240 = = 233 473

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REEEE 240 - - 233 473
720 - - 699 1,419

Total A%t 720 6,462 36 23,339 30,557

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments REEER AR REEHEREEMA

payable by the Group in both years. rEEENZHE -

Notes: B 3 «

(a) Mr. Wang Bo was appointed on 9 May 2012. (a) ERAEER-_F——_FOLANARE(E-

(b) Mr. Wong Kwok Leung was also appointed as chief executive officer of the (b) FERAETR-_ZT——FNA—BEZTA

Group on 1 April 2012. AREBITRAH,
(c) Mr. Zaid Latif was appointed on 23 November 2012. (e} Zaid Latif E£BER-_ZE——F+—A=-+=H
BRE-
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited HaEaEIRIEARBIR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2012: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note 12. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2012: three) individuals were as follows:

AEEFHEENRAEALTER  HHH
%(:?*_E'W%)Eﬁ/‘ﬂ§$'
FENMEENME12 - HEer =5 (=
——F:ZR)ALHBENT:

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMiNe 3,753 4,125

Share-based payments VAR 19 2 1+ 2 53R - 411
Contributions to defined contribution & %8 it ZR (R 5121 B9 (2%

retirement plan 45 36

3,798 4,572

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

%5 BB & 57 A T EBIE -

Number of individuals

AE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 B #500,0017T 2
75 #1,000,0007T 1 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 75 81,000,001 T &
7 #1,500,0007T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 T &
75 #2,000,0007T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 T E
75 #2,500,0007T - 1
3 3

During the current and prior years no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the above directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

RAFEFBEFE AR E W EEER
ERBBERA L RS H A LR B
T AERMAREBE IR IMALEE R
RENIFERBEREE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

14.

15.

16.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of
the Company

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$171,539,000 (2012:
HK$130,337,000).

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company is
calculated by dividing loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year.

14.

15.

RRABEBEABERFREE

RARBEAABRGAFANERTR
ARRZHBEREANEE BEROB
#171,539,000c (ZTE—ZF: B¥
130,337,0007T) ©

FHREE
AR TG AR FREARRTRES

RAFEBANBHRFANRERAFANE 3
TTRAD 2 A I Bt &

2013 2012
—EBE—=F —_F—=

Loss for the year attributable RRAFHE NEGERER

to owners of the Company B8 (BT )

(HK$'000) (115,255) (176,864)
Weighted average number of BRETETERKRZ

ordinary shares in issue g8 (FH%)

(shares in thousands) 4,329,075 4,129,952
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BRREAREE (BL) (2.66) (4.28)

The share options and warrants outstanding as at 31 March
2013 and 2012 have no dilutive effect on basic loss per share.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
during the year (2012: Nil).

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited R 3EREIRIZAR AR A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

17. ME BENRZRME

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

H{F

Group Company
A58 LN
Furniture,
il Plant and Motor Construction fixture and
properties machinery vehicles Others in progress Total equipment
BE-
FHEE HERHS RE Hib HEIR &t RERRA
(Note (a))
(FizE@)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost: RAE:

At 1 April 2011 WZE-—5MA—-H 82,670 40,886 11,776 11,645 30,257 177,234 5,562
Additions RE 2,567 835 705 24,261 28,368 "
Disposals HeE = (13,736) = 87) - (13,823) -
Witten off (Note (b)) i (FiE) - - (3,387) (9,502) (12,889) -
Transfers B3 38,871 - - - (38,871) - -
Exchange realignment ERAE 3,580 214 153 57 659 4,663 -
At 31 March 2012 ——#=ZfA=+-H 125,121 29,931 12,764 8,933 6,804 183,553 5573

Acquisition of subsidiaries u&ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%’ &) (Mi38(a))

(Note 38(a)) - 61,715 704 413 - 62,832 -
Additions "E 6,259 40,978 3,440 245 110 51,032 =
Disposals tE (1,012) (1,208) (700) = (2,920 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAR - - (5,355) = (5,355) =
Transfers o 1,099 - - - (1,099) - -
Exchange realignment RS 1,664 39 47 17 177 1,944 =

At 31 March 2013 WZE-=#=A=1-H 134,143 131,651 10,392 8,908 5,992 291,086 5,573
Accumulated depreciation Rt TERM(E:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2011 RZE-——FmA-A 3,540 15,385 5,935 6,697 - 31,557 683
Depreciation for the year ~ AFEHE 13,202 3212 1,828 1,647 - 19,889 1,114
Disposals HE - (9,114) - (10) - (9,124) -
Witten off (Note (b) i (KsE) = = = (3.252) - (3.252) -
Recognition of impairment 2B

loss (Notes (c) and 7) (HEEOR7) - 6,787 - - - 6,787 -
Exchange realignment L 279 14 47 36 = 476 =
At 31 March 2012 W=Z--f=f=+-H 17,021 16,384 7,810 5118 - 46,333 1,797
Depreciation for the year ~ AFEHTE 7,757 9,490 1,357 1,438 = 20,042 1,114
Disposals hE - (144) (50) (140) - (334) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (4,290) = = (4,290) =
Recognition of impairment 2 EE R

loss (Notes (c) and 7) (MEQRT) - 7,087 155 56 1319 8,617 -
Exchange realignment 5% B 188 5 23 26 17 359 -

At 31 March 2013 RZE-=#=A=1-H 24,966 32,822 5,005 6,498 1,436 70,727 2911
Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2013 WZ%-=f=A=+-H 109,177 98,829 5,387 2,410 4,556 220,359 2,662
At 31 March 2012 W=Z-—f=f=+-H 108,100 13,547 4,954 3,815 6,804 137,220 3,776
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A28 aE/RIZEAR AR A A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(]

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A7 35 gEJRIZR%
Annual Report 2012-13 =& ——

The amount mainly comprises furniture, fixture and equipment with net
carrying value of HK$2,410,000 (2012: buildings and furniture, fixture and
equipment with net carrying values of HK$380,000 and HK$3,435,000,
respectively).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the amount mainly represents the
write-off of oil wells with net carrying value of HK$9,502,000 that are
plugged and abandoned. The Board of Directors concluded these assets no
longer have economic value and therefore derecognised the same amount in
the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$8,617,000 (2012: HK$6,787,000) in respect of certain plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and furniture, fixture and equipment. The Board
of Directors concluded these assets no longer have economic value and
therefore derecognised the same amount in the consolidated income
statement.

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standard on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC
in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental measures.
The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected by any
environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new environment
policies and/or standards.

Dff a0

E-=FEER

17. W% -BEKRKRE (@)

B :

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

ZEeREZRERMFERBERE2,410,0007TH
RE KBRRH (ZF——F  REFEIH
7 380,000 I 74 #3,435,0007T B 1 F LA
FARE - EBHEREE) -

BE-Z——F=A=+—RHLFEAN %
2B ZHEMHEREF(E /78 159,502,0007THE
EERBENAH BEFERR ZFEETH
&R AR

AEKERE Bt THRA
HHREEE -

R-Z—=F=ZA=+—H0 AKHERETHE
Rgss MERRA KERREERRERSR
75 168,617,0007T (= Z — =4 : % %6,787,000
) BEEERR RZAETHABKER
B At THRGRE REXAERZEE -

ER AR IR T AR - ARE R E
FXILABRIE R IR G HEEEMERFX
A BEAREFTEEHERAETEEHEA
BEOBRERRR RBREERBE UBAE
B ARBUR S 16 - R B A AR EBR R
SRR BLEEMEIRR ARG AR A E
B 0 fA TS AR AE PR N R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
18. FE{Y L b E KT

18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost: MAME
At beginning of the year REA) 4,893 4,893
Disposals H & (1,083) =
3,810 4,893
Accumulated amortisation and Rt oy RORE
impairment:
At beginning of the year REA) 1,713 1,603
Amortisation for the year RNEFEH 58 110
Recognition of impairment loss BRREEE ([H:7)

(Note 7) 2,213 -
Disposals & (174) =
At end of the year RER 3,810 1,713

Carrying value: BRIEIME :
At end of the year RER = 3,180
The Group's prepaid land lease payments represents leasehold AEESTFEN T EERBRUREB N

land outside Hong Kong under medium-term leases.

SR SN EE T

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

: o S AR B A ]
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

19. Investment properties 19. BREYE
Group
TEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —=g2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost: MRAE :
At beginning of the year REA) 79,639 53,980
Additions NE - 25,659
Disposals of subsidiaries L EM B A A (53,981) -
At end of the year RER 25,658 79,639
Accumulated depreciation and ZItHERAE:
impairment:
At beginning of the year REA) 37,824 15,589
Depreciation for the year REEHE 616 1,445
Recognition of impairment R EEE (M@ k7)
loss (Notes (a) and 7) 6,311 20,790
Disposals of subsidiaries B EHTE R A (43,981) =
At end of the year RE 770 37,824
Carrying value: BRIEIME :
At end of the year RER 24,888 41,815
Notes: B -

(a) The Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$6,311,000 in respect of
investment properties held outside Hong Kong with reference to the fair
value of the Group's investment properties on disposal date.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 5z FR s
Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFFHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
19. REY (&)

Investment Properties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

The Group's investment properties at their net carrying value are analysed as
follows:

Fit 5 - ()

(b)

AEEARREFEHENREMESTAT :

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
In Hong Kong under medium-term leases ~ R &BUF A ERFE 24,888 25,415
Outside Hong Kong under REBAINGE AR BREERHE
medium-term leases - 16,400
24,888 41,815

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's investment properties in Hong
Kong with an aggregate net carrying value of HK$24,888,000 (2012:
HK$25,401,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 33(c)(iii)).

As at 31 March 2013, the aggregate fair values of the Group's investment
properties amounted to HK$29,000,000 (2012: three investment properties
at fair value of HK$44,858,000).

The above fair values have been arrived at based on valuations carried out
by independent professional valuers. The valuations were determined with
reference to recent market prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

(©

(d)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

R-ZE—=F=A=+—8 AEEUREH

IR EYE - AR FEM T R 124,888,000
—T— — % : 5%25,401,0007T) B {EIKH - DA

RERTARENRITEE (MEE33(0i))

—=f=A=t+—R FEEREMEZ
AR A 1529,000,0000T (ZF— =4 :
RFEARZ =R E Y5 % ¥%44,858,000
) °

IR I2

AL RFETIRBLEEGEMET 2 GEE
Bz EHEDK2ZRBAMENER B R
RS2 5 FA T (B A 5E o

54
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE
20. Goodwill 20. &
Group
TEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost: MRAE :
At beginning of the year REA) 37,404 20,947
\ Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — B R A
(Note 38(b)) (KtEE38(b)) - 16,457
Disposal of a business HE—IHER (6.524) =
At end of the year RER 30,880 37,404
Accumulated impairment: RItREE:
At beginning and end of the year REJRER 20,947 20,947
Disposal of a business HE—BER (6,524) =
At end of the year RER 14,423 20,947
Carrying value: BRIEIME :
At end of the year RER 16,457 16,457

BERBELE S EHREAEE 2 EHE
HeEABN ([ReEEEN]) N2
—Z4R-T--#=A=1—H B8

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units
("CGUs") identified according to operating segment. As at 31
March 2013 and 2012, goodwill is allocated to the commodity

segment.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 5z LI
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

20. Goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by Board of
Directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as
follows:

20. B2 (&)

I A BB AR AT U Bl & B DR R (5 (B
BB EEE - ASEIRBEEFSMH
BERESFHRRMNM G  BHRAHRE
mETRRFEEREE - BESFHRNER
ERMEBTIAT XA HEEREHES

AR HEREENEERRWT

2013 2012
—® =% —EF——F

Growth rate # R R
Inflation rate BIRE
Discount rate iR =

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment.

Management determined the weight average growth rate
based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the operating segment.

No more than No more than

2.00% 8.00%
Ti#iB2.00% T 488.00%
3.07% 3.78%
18.05% 18.68%

ZEBRRCARDITREDRHRBEANZ
REeEEBM-

EEERBEARRLEEMSRR A
HIEE T DN 1938 R K - PRER A AV T 3R
BEHA R RRELE D BAR ABE

e

VNG|
Eix#é

s Limited AR 3BEEIRI
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Other Intangible Assets 21. HtEFEEE
Group
A5EE
Oil exploitation Customer
licences relationship Others Total
RORBRETATE EFR% Hity CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT
(Note)
(PsE)
\ Cost: ESUNE'
At 1 April 2011 T**ﬁpﬂﬂ =] 241,069 15,190 1,733 257,992
Acquisition of a subsidiary ﬂﬁlﬁ%*ﬁsﬁ B
(Note 38(h) (B =E38(b) ) - 15,221 - 15,221
Exchange realignment XA 8,959 - - 8,959
At 31 March 2012 RZE——$=A=+—A 250,028 30,411 1,733 282,172
Exchange realignment I 5 50 % 3,382 206 - 3,588
At 31 March 2013 R=ZZE—=%#=A=+—A 253,410 30,617 1,733 285,760
Amortisation and impairment: &R
At 1 April 2011 R=-ZZ——%MA—AH 23,326 15,190 1,733 40,249
Amortisation for the year AEEHH 1,211 - - 1,211
Exchange realignment R 885 - - 885
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE-—#=A=+—A 25,422 15,190 1,733 42,345
Amortisation for the year AEFHH 1,031 1,544 = 2,575
Exchange realignment B 5 50 B 340 1 - 341
At 31 March 2013 RZZ—=%=A=+—A 26,793 16,735 1,733 45,261
Carrying value: BREE:
At 31 March 2013 RZZE-—=%=A=+—A 226,617 13,882 - 240,499
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—-F=A=+—H 224,606 15,221 - 239,827
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

Note:

Qil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the location of
Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and 2028 respectively.

At 31 March 2013, the Board of Directors assessed the recoverability of these oil
exploitation licences and concluded no impairment loss was required. The key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

21.

HihE\EEE (&)

B :

A FER FF ] B 1R P B R BRI & M (B B IR G My
M AR B LER_F_N\FEW-

RZTE—=ZF=ZA=+—R EFE2FHREHHHA
ERFF AL 8 2 A R Y0 45 A v - B R ME IR E RS 1B -
AR EERRENEZHRENAT

2013 2012

—EB—=F —T——4F

Oil price per tonne (RMB) BAHE (ARE) 4,522 - 4,974 4,588 — 6,957
Inflation rate miRx 3.07% 3.78%
Discount rate biEEES 13.92% 15.17%

At 31 March 2013, if the estimated oil price applied decreased to RMB3,618 per
tonne, with all other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired
or otherwise no additional impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2013, if the estimated inflation rate applied increased to 10.22%, with
all other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or otherwise
no additional impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2013, if the discount rate applied increased to 28.01%, with all other
variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or otherwise no
additional impairment charge will be required.

—ER—=F=A=+—R HWARAZEFHETR
BAMARE36187T (A HEMBBURIETE) - A
B B BR T AT B SR E S B R A K 75 AEH BN
EX -

i
ES

RoF-=F=A=+—A - WARA2EHERESE
E10.22% (A RIBBRETR) - AT HARST
B A BRI KA RS MEL I -

RZB-—ZF=ZA=+—0 WAKBZHRREE
28.01% (P B AL ERENE) - R A FEREE Al &
BB A B R A B 75 B B INRE S

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited #F 25 gERIERE AR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

22. Interests in and Amounts Due from/to 22. RIBARIZERREWR FE

Subsidiaries {TBY B B 2 FR I8

Company
AT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost I EMRD - AR E 3,254 3,254

Contributions to subsidiaries Mkt B R RELANEE

(Note (a)) (PFif7EG@@)) 423,041 873,956
Equity share-based payment in KB R Bl 2 B AN 4 E DARR D

subsidiaries (Note (b)) XAz /A (KEE (b)) 6,832 7,247

Less: Provision for impairment R EEE (M &E)

(Notes (c) and (e)) (3,726) (336,719)
426,147 544,484
429,401 547,738

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT /&8 & B R IE (M 3E(d))

(Note (d)) 301,026 426,333

Less: Provision for impairment R E RS (MR & (M)

(Notes (c) and (f)) (197,031) (381,000)
103,995 45,333

Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBR R A B3R IE (K4 3E(d))

(Note (d)) (2,968) (2,915)
101,027 42,418

Notes: P & :

(@) The contributions to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and considered @) 1e0 Y B 2 R 1 2 B 0 AR - S B RR
as capital in nature. REBEARNE-

(b)  In accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, share-based payment b)  REFBMBREENBE2HR (MRS 2%
transactions in which an entity receives services from its employees as B ERUDARSRBEAERZRATA
consideration for equity instruments of the entity are accounted for as REZARBIARBR S DERERERR
equity-settled transactions (Note 2(y)(ii)). The Company has recognised SN (HRE2(y)i)) - A AR EHERRME R A
the grant of equity instruments to subsidiaries’ employees amounting to ZEB RTS8 RE6,832,0007T (= F—=
HK$6,832,000 (2012: HK$7,247,000) as contributions to its subsidiaries. 4 1 B#7,247,0007T ) 2 AR T ASE R AL B

REZEE -

(© Provisions for impairment on contributions to and amounts due from © re B 8 R )2 0% B e M PR R 1 R R 2 R B
subsidiaries were as a result of the impairment of assets made by the BEDERHBARNBEFEIEL 2 AER
subsidiaries in prior years. (=05

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited PR %
1 52 Annual Report 2012-13 —Z——E—=FHFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e R R AR B T

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
22. AfB AR ZERREWR &

22. Interests in and Amounts Due from/to
Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(e)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
denominated in the following currencies:

B QR 2

RIB (&)

P&« ()

(d)

FE U FE <SS 22 B3R

R BB 2 R BB IR T T 2 T
W

BAREEN RERIE

2013 2012
—B—=F —T——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

HK$ ot 68,062 32,282
us$ eI 3,364 843
RMB AR¥ 29,601 9,293
101,027 42,418

Movements in the provision for impairment of contributions to subsidiaries
are as follows:

(e)

mM A BN 2T E 2R EREZSHOT

2013 2012

—B—=F —ET——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year REF) 336,719 336,719
Recognition of impairment loss HRAEEE 3,582 =
Written off (Note) s (MEEE) (336,575) =
At end of the year RER 3,726 336,719

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Company resolved to waive the repayment of the contributions to
subsidiaries of approximately HK$438,021,000 (2012: Nil), of which
impairment loss of approximately HK$336,575,000 (2012: Nil) has already
bean recognised in previous years.

The remaining amount of approximately HK$101,446,000 (2012: Nil) has
already been written off and recognised in the profit or loss of the Company
during the current year.

Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries
are as follows:

B :

BE-Z-—=6=A=+—RAILFE ARA
EECHARRAEBANBAREL ZEELD
75%438,021,0007C (=T ——F &) - HPH
75#336,575,0007T (=T ——4F : &) ERBE
FREWER-

HREEHIEH101,446,0007C (=B ——F ) B
RANE FR MW A R 7 B2 AR -

FE Bt BB R R R IR 2 BB B R B AN T

2013 2012

— 2= —E——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year REL) 381,000 506,000
Recognition of impairment loss HERAEEE 2,106 75,000
Written off (Note) HeH (P L) (186,075) (200,000)
At end of the year RER 197,031 381,000

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Company resolved to waive the repayment of the amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$186,075,000 (2012: HK$200,000,000), and
the respective impairment loss recognised has been written off.

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2013 and
2012 are set out as in Note 44.

B :

BE-Z-—=6=A=t+—RALFE ARA
EEGHARN MBI WM B D R RIBL A
186,075,0007T ( =% — =4 : & ¥200,000,000
TT) + AT RR 2 AR BRI E S 1B B S o

AARR-ZE—=FR-_FT——F=A=1+—
B2z EZMBARFEHAN T4

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 3EaEIRIEAR AR A
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e IR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Group
TEH
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —T—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok e
Cost of investments in associates RESE R R 2R EKAE

~ Unlisted (Note (a)) — 3k £ (KiEE@)) 75,592 75,592

— Listed (Note (b)) — i (MEE(b)) - 56,699
Share of post-acquisition SRR E 2 EEE

comprehensive losses (42,365) (31,535)
Contributions to an unlisted associate A — M 3F & Q& H &

(Note (c)) (FFFE(0) 9,327 9,327

42,554 110,083
During the year, the movements in the Group's interests in RER AREREE ARz Em# 3 m
associates are as follows: T
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Carrying amount at beginning of FYREE

the year 110,083 91,951
Increase in additional interest of N — R E AR 2 BBIMER

an associate - 17,778
Re-designation of amount due from EF R EEW—[HH L Q7

an associate as capital contribution ~ FIEAEAE A (Ki7ECQ)

(Note (o)) - 9,327
Share of results of associates FE(RE & N 2 ¥ E (12,771) (8,973)
Re-designation of an associate to BHMATE —RABEQR A —E

an available-for-sale investment A ERE (HEED))

(Note (b)) (54,758) -
Carrying amount at end of the year S REREE 42,554 110,083

Annual Report 2012-13 —T——Z—=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRMNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group held 43.00% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining Co., Ltd (“Lee
Shing Mining”), which directly holds 100% equity interests in Guizhou
Rongfa Mining Company Limited (& /N & # % 5 R A 7)) (“Guizhou
Rongfa Mining”), which possesses an exclusive exploration right of vanadium
mining in Guizhou Province, the PRC.

On 3 July 2012, the Board of the Company agreed to forgo the right to
nominate any person to the board of directors of Mobile Telecom Network
(Holdings) Limited (“Mobile Telecom”). Accordingly, the interest in Mobile
Telecom was re-designated from an associate to an available-for-sale
investment of the Group, resulting in a gain of approximately HK$7,120,000
recognised within “share of results of associates”. It is measured at fair value
with reference to the bid prices on the Stock Exchange at 31 March 2013.
The fair value of Mobile Telecom decreased by HK$ 1,778,000 from the date
of re-designation to the statement of financial position date. Accordingly, the
same amount was charged to the investment revaluation reserve.

Pursuant to a board resolution of the associate dated 31 March 2012, the
board of directors of the associate resolved to re-designate the entire amount
due from an associate as capital contribution. Accordingly, the Group had
reclassified the entire amount to interests in associates under non-current
assets since 31 March 2012.

Particulars of the Group's associates as at 31 March 2013 are set out as
follows:

23.

nv-_r\
REEE QR 2 (&
Bt

(a)

(b)

(d)

AEEFEMKEEER AT ([FIKHEE]) 2
43.00%[5 7 - 1M R e 2 B B A B M ST
FERAR ([EMREmE]) (REFHEE
& S Y B SR B R ) 2 B B A o

—E-ZHFtAZB ARAEEERERE
REEMALMARDBALLE (FR) BRA
A([RBEA)EEE 2 #EF - Ht Wi
Bl Z S —EBMEARBENAT AN E
B —ERELERE  TEEZRROBE
7,120,0007T14 [ FEAGHE &S A R 2 348 | AHER
ETM&%%%:?*:@:H:+ EEH#
iz RGBEREATEAE - RBBAZAF
BEEEH AT B BEHBMRRR B ER DB
1,778,0007C - B it - A £ T B R E B
(RIS

REBEARAPAE-_T——-F=A=+—H
ZEESREAR BERTIZEEGHRGE
WS AR 2 2 BHIBEEHRERELRR
ABlt - BE=FT—=-F=A=+—BE K&
EEREHRBEENSEAFERDEEETZ
S NC e

R-B-—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H AEEHELQA
BRI T -

Name of Place of Proportion of voting power
associate incorporation held indirectly Principal activities
BERNR BB o A RS2 4tk B HEFEREELLA FEEK
2013 2012
—E2—=f —E——fF
Lee Shing Mining Hong Kong 43.00% 43.00% Investment holding of an exclusive exploration
right of vanadium mining in Guizhou Province,
the PRC
M R B 25 BE HEEMNERERBR P RE 2 IREER
Mobile Telecom Cayman Islands N/A 30.18% Development, provision and sale of mobile and
(Note (b)) internet communication, telecommunications
and other related services in Hong Kong and
other Asia Pacific countries
mEBE FEHS FEA REBREMTE KEFERFE REKLEER
(KEE(b)) o6 48 B AT - BB AT N HL {th 4R A AR S

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR ZngEiRIEAR B R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is (e)

1N

23. REEE N T 2R (1

il

5)

H

b

Pt aE : ()

AEEBERARNMBARBERIINT

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 5z 11
Annual Report 2012-13 =2 ——F—=FFFHE

set out below:

Group

AER
2013 2012
—2-=5 —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total assets BEE 141,342 354,053
Total liabilities wamE (25,708) (73,783)
Net assets BEFE 115,634 280,270
Revenue & - 31,602
Loss for the year AEERE (50,900) (34,094)

24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

24. FENFUE Rl &R EMEWFIE

Receivables
Group Company
rEE AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F —E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Prepayment for acquisition of property, W% - BE R&E 2
plant and equipment (Note (a)) FERFRIE (f5E@)) - 40,978 = =
Deposits and receivables in respect of i HE Z & Rk
acquisitions/disposals (Note (b)) FEYCRIE (B EE(D)) 52,658 50,627 30,276 50,627
Advances to suppliers [r) {14 8 72 A 30 45,596 50,925 = -
Prepaid TRC (Notes 11 and 39) FENR eSS
(P 5E11%39) 11,654 11,549 - =
Prepaid consultation fee (Note (c)) ERERE (M) 16,480 - 16,480 -
Other receivables (Note (d)) H YRR (FifRE(d)) 32,426 32,064 4,125 4,764
158,814 186,143 50,881 55,391
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (M)
(Note (e)) (29,743) (20,300) - -
129,071 165,843 50,881 55,391
Less: amount shown under W ERBEEET
non-current assets Pl (16,255) (40,978) (10,300) (2,700)
Amount shown under current assets BB EE T
Fi3lne s 112,816 124,865 40,581 52,691



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 8 December 2010, the Group entered into a purchase agreement to
acquire two sets of oil drilling equipment from an independent third party
at a purchase price of RMB65,406,000 (approximately HK$77,656,000) for
leasing to Global Songkaer Petroleum Co., Ltd., a subsidiary acquired during
the year, operating in Kazakhstan. At as 31 March 2013, the transaction
was partially completed and one set of oil drilling equipment was delivered.
Accordingly, the amount paid and related transaction costs incurred were
transferred to property, plant and equipment. The price of the remaining set
of oil drilling equipment is included under capital commitment in Note 40.

The amounts mainly comprise the following:

(i) Pursuant to a letter of intent (the “LOI") dated 12 May 2010 relating
to an acquisition of 52.00% participating interests in an oil and
gas exploration and exploitation project in Modamuji Sagin Hailaer
Basin (the “Modamuiji Project”), the Company paid an amount of
RMB35,000,000 (approximately HK$39,998,000) as an initial deposit
(the “Deposit”) to an independent third party (“Vendor”), who holds
100.00% participating interests in the Modamuiji Project. The amount
is refundable if no sale and purchase agreement is entered into by
the Company and Vendor within 90 days from the date of the LOI.
Given the size of the Modamuiji Project, the Group needed additional
time for furnishing the technical review/valuation of the Modamuji
Project. The expiry date of the LOI was extended to 31 December
2011.

AR 7T & R AR YCROE

(#&)
i :

(a) RZZ—ZTF+=-AN\AB AEETZ KB
3 AR RS (B A R#65,406,0007T (474 #
77,656,0007T) B —EBLE=H BERERH
EIRR %Mﬁﬂ%ﬁwgﬁ%mMﬁwimw
BIHBARBRRARREAARETA
RZE—=F= +favai%a%ﬁ%
B —ERHERZED R Bt B
BERAEEZEBERSIKRACHBENE K
EREHE - BT —ERHERREZEEHR
M EE40E8 AFEBIET

(b) ZECREIBERETIEE

(i) BERSHA-_ZT-—ZTFAA+_HRA
A8 BB B Modamuiji Sagin Hailaer
BasinZ A R R AR MEKFAKER
([E#EAFIEAR ) 252.00%% 8 i
#ZEME([EAME]) AAREM
BUE=H ([EH] BHAEEERS
THH 2100.00%2 i) X HEEA
R #35,000,0007T ( #)7% #39,998,000
TEREET2 ([512]) - WART]
HER A EMEH L08Rl
BT EME R G AZEEN TR
Bl ERBEEATEE ZRE A&H
RN R TEE AN E 10 B 2 R E
&/ fEE - BEREERBEHEEHE=
FT——&+=-A=+—8-

54
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts mainly comprise the following: (Continued)

@)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

Upon the expiry of the LOI on 31 December 2011, no agreement
was reached between the Company and the Vendor. On 5 January
2012, both parties agreed to enter into a deed of termination,
pursuant to which, both parties agreed that the LOI was ceased and
terminated and all obligations and responsibilities of both parties
were released save for the obligation on the part of the Vendor to
return the Deposit (without interest) to the Company. In the prior
year, the Company bore an amount of RMB5,000,000 (approximately
HK$6,163,000) to cover the pre-operating expenses paid or
incurred for the Modamuji Project whereas the Vendor has repaid
RMB3,000,000 (approximately HK$3,559,000) to the Company
and agreed to settle the remaining RMB27,000,000 (approximately
HK$30,276,000) by 30 September 2012.

As at 31 March 2013, the entire amount brought forward from last
year remained outstanding. The Company has continued to negotiate
with the Vendor for settlement of the outstanding amount. On 31
December 2012, the Company, the Vendor and an independent third
party guarantor entered into an agreement pursuant to which the
guarantor undertakes the settlement on behalf of the Vendor and
pledged its 5% equity interests in another oil and gas exploitation
project as a security for settlement of the entire amount.

In connection with the acquisition of the Modamuji Project on 12
August 2010, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a
key management of the Vendor (“Borrower”) to advance an amount
of RMB25,000,000 (approximately HK$27,769,000) to the Borrower,
which was applied solely for the purpose of financing the 3D seismic
data collection, drilling and exploration work of the Modamuiji Project
for a period of 6 months from the drawn down date. The loan bore
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate (“HIBOR"). On 28
June 2011, the repayment date of the loan was extended to 2 July
2012. At the request of the Borrower, the repayment date of the
loan was extended to 31 December 2012. As of 31 March 2013, the
amount was settled in full.

A consideration receivable from a sub-contractor of chemical
products segment of RMB7,891,000 (approximately HK$10,280,000)
relating to the disposal of a business as set out in Note 39.

An amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of Topact
Holdings Limited (“Topact”) in respect of certain excluded assets and
liabilities of approximately HK$12,102,000. Details of which are set
out in Note 38(a).

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited R 3EREIRIZAR AR A
Annual Report 2012-13 —Z——F—=FFERE
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ZESRIBRAETISE: (8

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(&)

BERER-_T——F+-A=+—A
JE 1% - AN A B O I R K 1R e o
R-ZTE——F—ARB EFREF

IEREIE REFZMEEBREL
ERBR EBEH - HEEERES
(FHEB)FERRAABRI EF AR
A)# & 58 A R #5,000,0007T (4978
#£6,163,0007C) A St K EARH H
B eka Bz Al ER S
&5 B RARQ R EEREARE3,000000
7T (#97%#3,559,00070) I [/ B R =
Z—_FAA=ZTHAMENBRBEAR
#£27,000,0007T (#)7% #30,276,000
7)) ©

R-BE—=6=A=+—0 BEF#4&
B2 2 MHRIEMAREE - RNAREER
BHRBEREBETIEETERE K=
T——F+ZA=+—H ARFA-&E
FR—BBLE=ZFERATL—H
HaE - it ERARBERREHEE
WHERER S —HEHERIE B Z5%K
B ERBEE2BRIAZER-

RR-ZZT—TFNAT+-AKBEEE
ATEAMS  ARAEREH 2z
TEEEAL ([BERADTLERR
0 AE AR A R #25,000,0007T
(#97%%27,769,0007T) * 2 2 {2
EAREARTIER 2 =#ERA - &
ERMEIEREES  GEGRA B
st REANEAR - R ERREBETR
AR ([BARITRERE TR
RZZE——FXAZ+N\B ZEHE
HEHEEHE_T——FtA=RH-
EERAZBERT ZERERBYE
EHE—ZT——F+-A=+—A-K
ZE—=F=A=+—H ZFBEEE
HHEE

B & — A (W EE39RTH) M AR
W TERXB 2D BEZIKEA
R #57,891,0007T (477% #10,280,000
7T)°

RETHRIMNEERGBEHEYE
12,102,0007 ifi f& Y2 Topact Holdings
Limited ([Topact |) 2 —%& 3E#E R AR
ZRIE - B R B R B E38(a) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HEZZT—=F=A=1+—HIFE
24, FAMNFIE Rl REMEWTRIE

24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

On 29 November 2012, the Company entered into a service agreement with
an external consultant for the provision of business development strategies
and advisory services (the “Service Agreement”). Pursuant to the Service
Agreement, the Company should grant to the external consultant a total
of 350,000,000 warrants conferring to subscribe up to HK$63,000,000
for new ordinary shares of the Company during a period of 33 months
commencing from the date 3 months from the date of issue of the warrants
at an exercise price of HK$0.18 per share. The transaction is accounted for a
share-based payment in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”.
The fair value of the warrants amounted to HK$18,540,000 was credited to
share-based payment reserve. During the year ended 31 March 2013, share-
based payment expense of HK$2,060,000 (Note 9) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

(%8

i

P =E : (40

(©

(d)

RZZE—=—F+—A=+NA AQFE-F
SIS 68 )k HR 1L B B IR R RS % B R AR S BT 32
— R ([FRSHBE]) - BRIBRBHE
ARA R ER T HMNERR A $£350,000,00017 3R
R A ERRERRITASEIEA 2 AR
#3318 A L B AR B R E 60,187 2 1768
B3R 0E AN A 7] % % #1563,000,00070 2 3T & iE
fR 5222 2 TR IR & VS B 15 R 5 A RIE25% [ 1A
B9 XA 2 3RIB] ABRFIELARR 19 X 4 2 K38 »
R E 2 N F{E A 18,540,000 JhEF A LA
B NRERE - BE—TE—=F=A=1—
B I E - PARRS 2 5 3R IE B 2 7 #52,060,000
TC (BI5E9) Thid & Wz R AR

FZERBABRER 2ERAR—FREE-

(e) Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows: (e) REREZSHMT
Group
REE
2013 2012
—B—=f —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REL) 20,300 23,711
Recognition of impairment loss (Note 7) TR E E1E (M EE7) 9,590 26,431
Written off 5K (147) (30,355)
Exchange realignment ERZECE - 513
At end of the year RER 29,743 20,300

(f)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised an impairment
loss totalling HK$9,590,000 (2012: HK$6,098,000) in respect of the
advances to suppliers amounting to HK$9,443,000 (2012: HK$3,469,000),
deposits and other receivables amounting to HK$147,000 (2012:
HK$2,629,000) after assessing the recoverability of these balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group also recognised
impairment loss of HK$20,333,000 relating to receivables in respect of
acquisitions/disposals.

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

HE-ZT—=F=A=+—ALFE KAEER
BT AE % S A R 2 AT MR 11 Bt T PR R 2 B
75 1£9,443,0007T (= — =4 : /5 %3,469,000
JT) &l & RE b EWGRIEAE ¥ 147,0007T (=%
— — 4 ##2,629,0007T) R ERK B A £
75 #59,590,0007T ( =F — =4 : /% #6,098,000
JT) °

BE-ZT——-—F=A=+t—RHLFE X~5EH
TRERUIE =1 /& 218 2 BB R R
B &5 184 #20,333,0007T

08 - 3T R E A 508 2 B T 75 12
TR EHE:

Group Company
& AR

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$ ok 22,125 18,321 19,767 4,765
us$ e 34,480 79,398 838 -
RMB AREE 69,949 68,124 30,276 50,626
KzT 2354 2,517 - - -
129,071 165,843 50,881 55,391

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 3R aERIA
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z%

25. Available-For-Sale Investments

TR =HE=A=1t—HILFE

25. AMEHERE

Group
TEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted debt security: REMBEBES:
— Senior Notes with fixed interest —RFEENEI0EFE R
of 10.5% per annum and RZT—NFHHA
maturity date in 2016, BERE BATE
at fair value (Note (a)) (Mt5E(@@)) 4,122 3,117
Unlisted equity security: RETRAFZS -
— Equity investment, at cost — R E R
(Note (b)) (FFaE(Db)) 5,837 5,837
— Less: Provision for impairment — R ERE (D))
(Note (b)) (5,837) (2,522)
- 3,315
Listed equity security: ERAES
— Equity security in Hong Kong —RBEBZRAEFH
(Note 23(b)) (KtEE23(b)) 52,980 -
57,102 6,432
Market value of listed security EmREHECHE 52,980 =

Notes:

(a)

PetroAsian

The amount represents the Group’s subscription of RMB3,200,000
(approximately HK$3,802,000) 10.50% Senior Notes due in 2016 issued
by a company listed on the Stock Exchange. It is measured at fair value
will reference to the valuation provided by a financial institution, and a
fair value gain of HK$1,005,000 (2012: HK$297,000) has been credited to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve at end of the year.

The unlisted equity investment represents the Group's long-term investment
in the 15.00% equity interests in Man Xin Limited (“Man Xin"), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). As at 31 March 2013, the
Group assessed the recoverable amount of the unlisted equity investment
and determined that an amount to the extent of HK$5,837,000 (2012:
HK$2,522,000) may not be recoverable, resulting in the recognition of
impairment loss of HK$3,315,000 (Note 7).

nergy Holdings Limited A7 &2 gEf

Annual Report 2012-13 —Z——F—=FFERE

it & -

(b)

ZEREIEAN R E R —HER AT E M A R
1T858 A ARM3,200,0007T (#97%%3,802,000
JT) ~ FRIER10.50B RN T — R FHHNE
KRB - KLZE M MEBIRENGEER X
BEZEDIRAFEE A FERSSE
1,005,0007C ( =& — — 4 : £ #297,0007T) &
RERFARMEER ST RIRE BEFEER
Rite

RETRAREIEAEERREERAR ([H
Z]) (—HREBELHS ([EBELES])
A B AR HEA15.00% K AN EH K
PRE-R=-_T—=F=A=+—0 X&£H
PPt R ETRARE 2 A KB & 8@ E A
BE % UL 5] 75 65,837,000 (ZF——F : /8
#2,522,0007T ) - B T 28 B 2R Rl (6 5 18 78 M
3,315,0007¢ (KizE7) °



26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr e IR R AR B T

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE=-T—=

F=A=1+—RHIEFE

Inventories 26. 78
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Consumables =) 3,705 3,641
Raw materials JR R 1,401 6,325
Finished goods B & 564 5,195
5,670 15,161
The cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to R BT E R A &5 %936,637,000
HK$936,637,000 (2012: HK$285,258,000). 7T (=& — — 4 : 5#¥285,258,0007T ) °
Trade Receivables 27. BZEWNIEA

The balance includes trade and bills receivables as follows:

R (BIEE S EYGRAERERER) N

T
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Trade receivables E 5 ' WA 40,074 72,432
Less: Provision for impairment R E R E (FTEEd))
(Note (d)) (2,666) (6,866)
37,408 65,566
Bills receivables (Note (e)) FEW =R (st (e)) = 4,877
37,408 70,443
Notes: Pt & :
(a) Before accepting any new customers, the Group uses an internal credit (@ REMERHEFA - AREEERNBEEF

assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer and considers adequate allowance has been
made at end of the year. Balances which are neither past due nor impaired
are all with good historical repayment records and good credit quality.

ERGAEECERPZEREARREEP &R
FEERE INFREFSTEMHREERE-
BEARIBE IR SR 2 SRR R R P AR (HE
RHERRIFEEER

PetroAsian Energy Holdings

s Limited A 35 GEIRIA
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Annual Report 2012-13 77§*:§* EE SiRE




162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

27. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(9

Trade and bills receivables are due within 30 to 90 days (2012: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of invoicing or billing.

Aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date net of impairment is

27.

B 2 BWKIE ()

Bt 5+ (80)

(b) B SRR R R IR m R R E A
HFEFBEEATB(ZB—=F:=+HEAT
B)REIH-

(0 B 5 IR (R RME) RS R A 82 iRk

as follows: DITMT :
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TrR—1MEA 12,101 45,779
1 month to 3 months —EBAE=EA 17,284 6,087
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #Bi&=1{EFEFE—4 4,138 13,145
Over 1 year i —F 3,885 555
37,408 65,566
Movement in the provision for impairment during the year is as follows: (d) FROREBREBEZSHNOT
Group
AEER
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the year REH) 6,866 7,344
(Reversal)/recognition of (B[ TR ERE (ME7)
impairment loss (Note 7) (4,368) 3,502
Written off g5 - (4,231)
Exchange realignment IE 5 38 8 168 251
At end of the year RER 2,666 6,866

As of 31 March 2013, trade receivables of HK$2,666,000 (2012:
HK$6,866,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was
HK$2,666,000 as of 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$6,866,000). The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to individual customers, which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. These receivables have been aged

over 1 year.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 35 88)R1%
Annual Report 2012-13 —Z—=% EEJ‘
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R-ZT—=F=ZA=+—H EHEEREEE
2,666,0007T ( =T — = 4 : % #6,866,0007T )
BEHRRAE-R-_T—=F=A=+—H &
H& R ABK2,666000T (ZF——F: F%
6,866,0007T) - AR ERERKKEEERT
SNEERMEE R R 2 BRI 5 A B - 5% 5 UK
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

27. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

Aging analysis of bills receivables net of impairment is as follows:

27.

B 5 BWKIE ()

Fit & - ()
(e) FEM R IR (FNBRIRME) Z BRI DT LT -

Group

AER
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month —f&@A - 3,274
1 month to 3 months —1I)El Z=fEA - 371
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BA=EABTR—%F - 1,232
- 4,877

Aging analysis of trade receivables based on due date which are past due but

® EAMEY FRENE SRR REE

not impaired is as follows: BHEREDTAOT

Group

AER
2013 2012
—B-=F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—MEA 3,183 3,209
1 month to 3 months —EAAZE=EA 2,008 2,869
More than 3 months but less than 1 year BB =AAETRE—F 5,307 9,398
Over 1 year HBiB—F 440 _
10,938 15,476
Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with an FEEE S REKGRER R IEREAERER

aggregate carrying amount of HK$10,938,000 (2012: HK$15,476,000),
which are past due at end of the year for which the Group has not provided
for any impairment as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables are denominated in the

10,938,0007C (=T — =% :

7 415,476,000

7)) BERFRE B HAR AR - i 78 58 8 3 f%
REMELHEMRERE ARAERERTES
AREE) - ARIBEDHR AR U o 785 8 3 55
ZERBBE EMERR -

(9) B 5 R WO IR B e R R 2 BREE T A AR

following currencies: BESHE

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$ B 17,427 29,596
Us$ EV 8,423 -
RMB AR 9,066 40,847
KzZT B’ 2,492 -
37,408 70,443

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$25,850,000 (2012: HK$29,596,000) were pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 33(c)(i)).

(h)

T-ZFZA=t-H AEEEEL

B /7% #25,850,000L (=T —ZF: ¥
29,596,0007T) 2 & 5 WA IE B EHE R » LAER
BRTAREZBTEE (HE33(0)) °

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

28. Held-For-Trading Investments 28. HIFEBERE

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—ZE2—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Equity securities held-for-trading: FHIEEERAES

— listed in Hong Kong —RBEE LT 145 2,988

Notes: Pt & :

(a) The held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value at end of the year. (@) RER FHIEEEREVEAFEIIR LW
The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with reference to the BHODTFEIZ2RA_ZE—=ZF=A=1+—
bid prices on the Stock Exchange at 31 March 2013. B8t 32 P 6 B B 1 8 5E ©

(b) The carrying amount of held-for-trading investments is mainly denominated (b) HFEEREMNREENEZABKE.
in HK$.

29. Derivative Financial Instruments 29. {TEEmTIA
Group
ey
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BE 8 BE BfE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Derivative financial instruments BEEEZ
held-for-trading: TEEMIA:
Interest rate swaps (Note (a)) =2 B (FfisE(a)) 65 1,195 256 5,308
Foreign currency forward contracts INEREIE K
(Note (b)) (FfEE(b)) 116 7,802 - 98
181 8,997 256 5,406
The derivative financial instruments are held-for-trading MTESRITADNFIEEEB N NFHL
purposes. The fair values of interest rate swaps and foreign R B RINEERE AN AT ESHBRS
currency forward contracts at end of the year are provided by the FHRITRML -

counterparty banks.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 5z SlEYN
P
HE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

29. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 29. PTHAEER T A (8)
Notes: P 7 «
(a) Interest rate swaps (@) FlRE=H
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap RZT—=F=A=+—BHRITERNRI=H
contracts at 31 March 2013 were HK$100,000,000 (2012: HK$85,000,000). AHMEERANS T REM100,000,0007T (=F
— — 4 : ##85,000,0007T) °
At 31 March 2013, the fixed interest rates vary from 0.21% to 3.0% (2012: RZT—=F=A=+—HB BEBRXE0.21%
0.07% to 2.70%), and the main floating rate is HIBOR. Gain recognised on £3.0% (ZT—=F:0.07%%£2.70% ) 2 &
the change in fair value of the interest rate swap contracts during the year B MEIBFBMNEASTBRITEERFS R
amounted to HK$3,888,000 (2012: gain of HK$3,909,000). FARFERMEON R FEZ SRR
A 13,888,0007T (T — —F S BB
3,909,0007T ) ©
(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts (b) IEERELN
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward currency forward RZB-—=F=ZA=+—BHRTEIEES
contracts at 31 March 2013 were HK$156,938,000 (2012: HK$37,440,000). AHMEZBE NS BB 156,938,0007T (=F
— Z 4 : #¥37,440,0007T) ©
Loss recognised on the change in fair value of the foreign currency forward REAFIINEEHE OO R T ELBERNE
contracts during the year amounted to HK$6,888,000 (2012: gain of 18 A% %6,888,0007T (— T ——F: kFAB
HK$6,211,000). #6,211,0007T) °
(c) The carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments are denominated in (0 TESMTAZREBENAETE
Uss.
30. Cash and Cash Equivalents 30. RERREZHEIEHR
Group Company
rEE A
2013 2012 2013 2012
=8-=f <-"ZT--Ff =B-=f <—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
Cash at banks and on hand ROFZXRFERS 110,499 77,505 33,225 32,126
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is RekREFEBEBNRAEIATIE
denominated in the following currencies: A
Group Company
rEH N
2013 2012 2013 2012
2= 2% Z=%¥-=f —T-——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT AT T
HK$ ks 85,969 54,908 33,225 32,126
Us$ X 5,440 1,243 - -
RMB ARE 18,771 21,354 - -
KzT BX 319 - - -
110,499 77,505 33,225 32,126
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A ZagEIRIEARBRAR]
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

=S =k
31. Trade Payables 31. BESEMNRIE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Trade payables E S EM3RE 47,104 12,725
Bills payables FET =, 16,972 28,848
64,076 41,573
Notes: PR -
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills payables presented based (a) AT AESENFRARENRBRERERER
on the invoice date and date of the bills at end of the year. REIRERAHEDZBRE®R DT
Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: B REMREZRERAOTET
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—2—=f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Less than 1 month TR—EA 38,385 1,540
1 month to 3 months —fERAE=@A 1,672 458
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #iE=1{EFEFE—4 6,969 10,649
Over 1 year HBiA—F 78 78
47,104 12,725
Aging analysis of bills payables is as follows: BERRBZEREROITIT
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—18A 1,418 9,617
1 month to 3 months —EAAZE=M@A 15,554 19,231
16,972 28,848

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited R 3EREIRIZAR G R A
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nv-_r\
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
31. Trade Payables (Continued) 31. EFENRIE (@)
Notes: (Continued) B aE - ()
(b) The carrying amount of trade and bills payables is denominated in the (b) BHRNRBRENERZ REEDATIIE
following currencies: HEETHE :
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—B—=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$ ks 295 28,926
us$ ET 21,495 -
RMB AR 42,286 12,647
64,076 41,573
32. Accruals and Other Payables . BEETRIERHEMMEARIE
Group Company
rEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= T ZB-=Zf C"T—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T Nk e BT T BT
Consideration payables (Note 38(b)) & (B (Fi&E38(b)) 6,245 27,164 - =
Receipt in advance ?ELBZ«TA 7.415 6,616 - =
Construction cost payables PR 12,743 11,939 - =
Other payables (Note (a)) Ho A pe 1 508 (ffsE(a)) 16,085 39,078 4,445 4,198
42,488 84,797 4,445 4,198
Notes: B & -
(a) During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group disposed of its 100% (a) BE-ZT-—ZTF=A=+—HLFE F5H

equity interests in Win Profit (Asia Pacific) Company Limited (“Win Profit”), a
former subsidiary of the Group.

Included in the other payables and other receivables (Note 24) as at 31
March 2012 were the amounts of approximately HK$29,689,000 due by the
Group to Win Profit and approximately HK$8,431,000 due from Win Profit to
the Group, respectively. The Group had been in discussion with Win Profit for
the finalisation of these outstanding amounts in prior years.

On 25 September 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with Win
Profit pursuant to which Win Profit agreed to waive the amount due by the
Group whereas the Group agreed not to demand repayment of the amount
due from Win Profit, resulting in the recognition of a gain of approximately
HK$16,258,000 (Note 7) in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

HE R EATH B ARG (BX) AR
AR ([KFBF) Z B B

K= —F=ZRA=+—H HthEMRER
HWEH& IR (Fi5E24) 2 BB 5 AN 52 B R A5 ok
175FIJTAIE%*,J/§M296890007‘E&ZKEFguﬁbk
BRI A 18,431,0007T - REEE R EE
&f—%aﬁ&iﬁrﬁﬂegﬁzwﬁéﬁw FBER -

NZTE—=—FHhA=+HB  REMEXESHET
T — 1R Bt KB RIREREAEE RS
I - i A 5 B R B B SR (B 8 R K A5 IR
B ERREBE_S—=E=A=t—HILHF
E R R A W R AR Mz 4978 16,258,000
7T (Hi5E7) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

. =1 =k =h =
32. Accruals and Other Payables (Continued) 32. FERtRRIER H At BN FIE (8)
Notes: (Continued) PR RE : (40
(b) The carrying amount of accruals and other payables is denominated in the (b) AT AR IR R H A e A BB M BREME T A T 5 E
following currencies: HEEHE
Group Company
AEE EN|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F —E-=F —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
\ HK$ TS 5,224 5,122 4,445 4,198
us$ ET 5,734 - - -
RMB AR 31,236 79,675 - -
KzT 8X 294 - - -

42,488 84,797 4,445 4,198

33. Bank Borrowings 33. SRITEE
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$000 HK$'000
kb ok A
Bank loans, secured (Note) BEHEBETER (M) 27,497 44,226
Bank overdrafts, secured BERPRITEX 9,991 9,600
37,488 53,826

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 28 aE/RIZERE AR A R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE—T—=F=A=+—HIEFE

33. Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Bank loans contain a repayment on demand clause which enables the bank
to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire balance was classified
under current liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 March 2013, the amounts represented variable-rate bank loans
at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis points per annum. The
effective interest rate for the year is 3.39% (2012: 2.76%). The borrowings
are repayable by instalments or in a lump sum payment upon maturity in
accordance with the terms set out in the respective banking facility letters.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group pledged the following assets to secure the
Group's bank borrowings:

(i) trade receivables to the extent of carrying amount of HK$25,850,000

(2012: HK$29,596,000) (Note 27(h)) as first legal charges;

(ii) 51.00% equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast Oil
(China) Development Company Limited, as a register of all monies
first share charge; and

(iii) an investment property with a carrying value of HK$24,888,000
(2012: HK$25,401,000) (Note 19(c)).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

33. #R1

B :

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 25 BRI A% 4

TEE (&)

BITERBERTAISEITEZIRERER
BER-Al - R=_T—=FR-_T—-F=A
=+—H 2BERIARDERE-

RZZ—=F=A=+—H ZEFRBZER
TEE  REBRITRAEFSMEFETELRR
MEKMEFE - FRERFIER339% (=F
—Z—%:276%) e BETIRBHNERITER
B2 GRS BEE LA B —E B

RZZE-—Z=ZF=ZA=+—RB AKEBERT
FIBE FRAEEMRITEEMER:

(i) 3 75 #25,850,0007T (=B — = 4F 8
#29,596,0007T) (HiF27(h)) B E 5
ERRIBERE —RERR:

(i) REEMBARRILAMR (FE)EE
BMRATZ51.00%8 A 1FAH—
BEEEZNEEEARERE &

(iii) R {8 A7 124,888,000 (=T —=
£ 1 #%25,401,0007T ) Z IREWE (Ht
#£19(0) °

RITERMIRAEET ST E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Number of shares

Share capital

BROEE &
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=F —T—= —B—=f T
Note '000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Tt Fh& BET T BET T
Ordinary shares of BREES0.017TH
HK$0.01 each AR
Authorised: ERE :
At beginning and RENREL
end of the year 8,000,000 8,000,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR:
At beginning of the year ~ A& 4] 4,129,952 4,129,947 41,299 41,299
Exercise of share options  17{§ B %% (@) 900 = 9 =
Placement of new shares B2 &¥7% 1) (b) 312,500 - 3,125 =
Exercise of warrants I RIRERE (© = 5 = =
Issue of new shares BN R AT
for acquisition of #AR (7
subsidiaries 38(a) 157,272 - 1,573 -
At end of the year RER 4,600,624 4,129,952 46,006 41,299
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TRRFEE AR RE RS -

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company allotted and issued
900,000 shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at the exercise price at HK$0.198

as a result of the exercise of share options.

(b) On 9 August 2012, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
437,500,000 new shares at the price of HK$0.16 per placing share (the
“placing price”). On 12 October 2012, a total of 312,500,000 new shares
were successfully placed at the placing price. Accordingly, 312,500,000
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a premium of HK$0.15 each. The
premium on issue of shares of approximately HK$45,191,000, net of
transaction cost of approximately HK$1,684,000, was credited to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing shares.

(0) During the year ended 31 March 2012, 5,000 shares of bonus warrants were
exercised at the exercise price at HK$0.48 per warrant. These shares ranked

pari passu with other shares in issue in all aspect.

Annual Report 2012-13 —T——Z—=FFERE

I B R AR EH
BREE -FTAEEBK

ERLFAER—FEMN
HRARRNORERE

EFAREEM-

W

(a)

(b)

REBE-T—=F=A=+—HLFE &Q
RIEITEBARIE AR € 128 #0.198 T 2 1T1E (8
B % 2 % 77900,000/ & IR EE A #0.0170,2 Bk

e

RZZE——F\ANB ARARHEREERE
—HEREHRE Bt RERERERER
Bl AR A0 16T 2 B8 ([EREE RS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

e PR R R MR

—=F=A=1+—HLFE

Company
NN
Share based

Share payment Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BARR 45 X A
BROEE HRERE ESy i Y]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT ok BT
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FHAB—H 1,751,622 64,067 (1,076,932) 738,757
Loss for the year ZW NEE - - (130,337) (130,337)
Recognition of equity-settled RARA G E AR 15
share-based payments iﬁZmIﬁ - 25,528 - 25,528
Exercise of warrants 1T R IR 4 2,000 - 2,004
Lapse of share options Eﬁﬂﬂ’iﬁixﬁl - (44,698) 44,698 -
At 31 March 2012 R-T—_F
=A=+—H 1,751,626 46,897 (1,162,571) 635,952
Loss for the year $¢W}§§T§ - - (171,539) (171,539)
Recognition of equity-settled RUABRA L B AR D
share-based payments ?ZHZMIE - 32,940 - 32,940
Issue of new shares for HUEEHTE A A
acquisition of subsidiaries BT RAG 24,032 = = 24,032
Exercise of share options IR R 209 (40) = 169
Placement of new shares fid & AR 45,191 45,191
Lapse of share options FERRHE R A = (2,514) 2,514 -
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%F
=A=+—H 1,821,058 77,283 (1,331,596) 566,745

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible directors

and employees of the Group and issued warrants to the
Honorary Chairman of the Company.

Under the share option scheme approved and adopted by the
shareholders on 21 October 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”),
the directors of the Company may, at their discretion, invite full-

time employees including executive directors to take up options
without vesting period to subscribe for shares in the Company
representing up to a maximum of 10% of the shares issue from
time to time (excluding shares issued on exercise of options

under the share option scheme).

REE-ERETAEEAGERES K
1@%2%%%%%\ AR [ A R B ERBEE
EITR AR

RER-_ZZ_F+A-+—HARRH
R R ARt B ([ RBAAERT )
$’AET§$EJE’U’I$‘ HEERES (2585
TER)EMNTNREBHNBRE  LARE

ﬁéé.?ﬁé%%%éT\HqE%éﬁHﬂMO% (T8
BT BT 3IA TR B R B 1TH
Befn ) B A X B Bz 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

172

. >J /A Y/aN S5 £h =
36. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 36. BAMRMD AT 2 FRIE (8)
The Company also issued warrants to an external consultant. N R JR(A — &SNS R B AT SR AR RE
Details of which are set out in Note 24(c). EFBEHRMIFE24(c) °
Details of the Company'’s share options granted under the share RER - A T ) & AR 17600 IR (IR
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements BRI T ) LRREE 2 1B R
during the year are as follows: BEHMT
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_ZT—=F=A=+-HLFE
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2012 the year the year the year the year 201;
R —8-ZF
B B “B-CF R B 7 7 S
REAH [l TiE mA-H EREH BT EPS FREN =1
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Share options
BRE
Executive directors 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to HK$0.251 100 - - - - 100
12 August 2014 )
€% “FTMENATER “ETNEN\ATZRE 7802511
“Z2-RmENATZA
29 April 2009 29 April 2009 to HK$0.206 216 = = (216) = =
28 April 2012 )
“ETNENAZTAR ZZIAFMA-THAZ 7 10,2067
—Z2-_#EWA-+/\A
28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 7,600 = = (7,600) - -
27 March 2013
“3-Z£ZA-1\R Z2-Z%¥tA-RE 7 H0.198TC
“F=f=f-1tH
24 May 2012 1July 2012 to HK$0.198 - 200,000 - - - 200,000
27 March 2015
Z2-—fRR=TMA 2 —5+f-HZ 7101987
—Z-15ZA-ttA
Independent 28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 11,400 - - - - 11,400
non-executive directors 27 March 2014 )
BUknfEs “2-Z£=A=1N\R 2%+ f-RE 7%0.1987
ZZ-MEZA-ttA
Employees 28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 48,800 - (900) (47,900) - -
27 March 2013 )
B8 S el AN "2 A-RE 710,198
—2-=F=A-ttA
68,116 200,000 (900) (55,716) - 211,500
Warants . TTTTm mmmTmm T Tmm T mmmT mmmmn e
AREE
Honorary Chairman 21 June 2010 21 June 2010 to HK$1.35 250,000 - - - - 250,000
20 June 2013
RELE Z2-ZE/ A=1-R -z ~AZT-RZE 711,35
Z2-Z§5R=TH
3 June 2011 3 June 2011 to HK$0.45 200,000 = = = = 200,000
2 June 2014
—2-—%55A=H —2--%5f=HZ 7150457
“2-MEXAZA
External consultant 29 November 2012 1 March 2013 to HK$0.180 - 350,000 - - - 350,000
. 28 November 2015
SERR Z3-Z§+-A-thB ZZ-Z§Zf-B% 7801807
i ik o e G|
450,000 350,000 - - - 800,000
518,116 550,000 (900) (55,716) = 1,011,500
Exercisable at end of the year - - - - — 1,011,500
RERATfE
Weighted average exercise price 0.851 0.187 0.198 0.198 - 0.526
MEFHRE
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited 52 8E)f
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

36. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 36. LR Y 2 FRIE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-T——F=A=+—HIEFE
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2011 the year the year the year the year 2012
B B
B ) ) 3% B R S S =5
Rl fiiid| i mA—-H FRRIL ERR FRER FREK Eqr=F
‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
Share options
BRE
Directors 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to HK$0.251 100 = = = - 100
12 August 2014
3 “2TMENRT=R Z2IMENAT=ZRE 850251
“2-MENATZR
29 April 2009 29 April 2009 to HK$0.206 216 = = = = 216
28 Aprwl 2012 )
“EENFRA-TAA NEBAZTNAZ 7 %0.2067C
ZEMAZT/\A
3 May 2010 3 May 201010 HK$1.250 58,000 = = (58,000) = =
2 May 2011
“2-ZERAZH ZZ-3FR[=A%E 7812501
—2--£8A-R
28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 = 7,600 = = - 7,600
27 March 2013
“F—E=f-t/A “Z-—#+f-BZ 701987
ZZ-ZEZAZf4H
Chief executive 3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 5,000 - - (5,000) - -
e —2-RFRIAZH 7812501
Independent 3 May 2010 3 May 2010 to HK$1.250 10,800 = = (10,800) - -
non-executive directors 2 May 2011
BUaES “3-T£1A=A -z figﬂ%ﬁﬁ 7 %1250
——%1AZH
28 March 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 = 11,400 = = = 11,400
27 March 2014
i S el AN 2+ f-RE 7019870
—Z-ME=A-ttA
Employees 4 May 2010 4 May 2010 to HK$1.248 135,000 = = (135,000) - -
3 May 2011
B8 —2-Z2£R/NA ZZ-ZERAMEZE 7512487
2——-%1A=H
28 March 2012 uly 201210 HK$0.198 = 48,800 = = - 48,800
27 March 2013
R —f=A=t/\A 7 R0.198T0
209,116 67,800 - (208,800) - 68,116
Warrants
ARER
Honorary Chairman 21 June 2010 21 June 2010 to HK$1.35 250,000 = = = = 250,000
20 June 2013
REBLE Z2-ZERAZT-H N %1357
3 June 2011 3 June 2011 to HK$0.45 = 200,000 = = - 200,000
2 June 2014
—2——%5R=H 2%/ AZRE AB045T
ZE-MERAZR
250,000 200,000 - - - 450,000
459,116 267,800 - (208,800) - 518,116
Exercisable at end of the year 499,116
RELTTE
Weighted average exercise price 1.303 0386 - 1.249 - 0851
MEFSEHEER
The weighted average closing share price at the date of exercise RZZ—=FA  RITEERESZ BN
for the share options during 2013 was HK$0.219. No share $E$i’z]ﬂx1/ﬁﬂﬁl M{EABE0.219TT - K=
options were exercised during 2012. —ZFA REEEREETE-
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited #1555
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

RERRHZ BN RIREE 2 X FE
TyPRA A E R E H EZETZ

The fair values of options and warrants granted during the year
were calculated using the Binominal Model. The inputs into the

Annual Report 2012-13 =& —=

models were as follows:

BT :

Options Warrants

BRAE RREE

Grant date 24 May 2012 29 November 2012
A S e
EAZ+MAE +—A=Z+hAH

Grantee Honorary Chairman External consultant
HARA REFE NS
Share price at grant date HK$0.184 HK$0.162
MR E BB IRE 75 #50.1847T 75 #0.16270
Exercise price HK$0.198 HK$0.180
17118 75 #0.1987T 7510.1807T
Expected volatility 66% 58.823%
T HR R 60% 58.823%
Risk-free rate 0.288% 0.165%
ERE X 0.288% 0.165%
Expected dividend yield Nil Nil
TEERR B X i i

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's share price over the previous one
year.

The Binominal Model has been used to estimate the fair value
of the options and warrants respectively. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the options and
warrants are based on the independent professional valuer’s best
estimate. The values of warrant vary with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised net aggregate share-based payment
expenses of HK$14,400,000 (2012: HK$25,528,000) and
HK$2,060,000 (2012: Nil) in relation to the share options
granted to Honorary Chairman of the Company (2012: directors
and employees of the Group) and warrants issued to an external
consultant respectively.

—=FFERE

TBHURIE DARBA R RIRERBE—F2Z
JEE 2O R 1 E

—IRHEEERNXE D IR ET B
KRR iR 2 AP E -t ERRE LR
REERN D $@%%%Z&%&F“E&%
S EFEMGERD 2 K EMFHEDL - BARER
ZBETARTETEIBREZREMmMT
HETRZEE-

AEBBREER T ARAALELE
(ZE—ZF:A5EBEFRKEE)NE
AR R BT T —BINERER Z RREE
WAt 2 RIBRZFEE XS R
A 75 114,400,0007T (=T — —F : B
25,528,0007T ) & 7% 2,060,000t ( = Z
——FE\E)



The net movements of the deferred income tax are as follows:

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE=-Z—=

BEFTBREBFRAMT

FZA=1T—HILFE

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
At beginning of the year R E ] (3.892) (473)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated ~ R&REWEERFT A (F0B)
income statement (Note 11) (MIEE11) 719 (M
Acquisition of subsidiaries WehE K B8 A 7 (MF5E38(a) )
(Note 38(a)) (6,095) (3,418)
Exchange realignment M 5, 5 B (54) =
At end of the year NG N (9.322) (3,892)

Deferred tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax

REAFERBEFE BELEHBAEBET

depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the ZRERRANINRTIBITE R LS EHH
current and prior years: AT
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year 7] (3.892) (473)
Charged to consolidated income RERE W =k (K1)
statement (Note 11) (610) (1)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 B &8 A &)
(Note 38) (BF&E38) (6,095) (3,418)
Exchange realignment M 5, 5 B (54) =
At end of the year RELR (10,651) (3,892)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

At end of the year, the Group has deductible temporary
differences, including assets impairment and unused tax
losses of HK$255,005,000 (2012: HK$$229,327,000) and
HK$213,792,000 (2012: HK$342,584,000) respectively. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Except for HK$1,329,000
of deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to unused
tax losses, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the
remaining tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The deferred tax liabilities is expected to be recovered after more
than 12 months.

Deferred tax assets mainly represent tax losses recognised and

REL AEBHANBEREZR B
REERERHRDAHEBIES A
75 #255,005,0000C (=T — ZF : B
229,327,000t ) & % #213,792,0007T
(—ZT——4 :78%342,584,0007T) ° AR
HH 3R 86 B FR AT A D RRE 2 B DA B R AR R
EA B AR K B ER A RS
AHRMEREZERAELEHIBEE -KRE
WA B A B IE B 1R R R I A 1A A E R
1,329,000 5N + E P AR 2R i 1 21 8 f
TEOR - B A% 5 H eR B TH S R R SRR T A
BEE-°

RETIRABRANES T —EARK
=D

BERBEELERERNAFEMBEFE

movements thereon during the current and prior years: ZEERRIEBERALZE:
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year N = =
Credited to consolidated income P AGRE W& (FIEE11)
statement (Note 11) 1,329 -
At end of the year NG 1,329 -

The unrecognised tax losses amounting to HK$154,261,000
(2012: HK$154,261,000) can be carried forward indefinitely
and the remaining HK$36,051,000 (2012: HK$156,256,000)
and HK$23,480,000 (2012: HK$32,067,000) will expire in 2018
(2012: 2017) and 2023 (2012: 2022) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

On 15 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
("Vendor”) to acquire approximately 46.77% equity
interests in Topact for a consideration of US$3,600,000
(approximately HK$27,900,000). The Group shall pay the
consideration to the Vendor by procuring the allotment
and issue of 157,271,702 new ordinary shares (Note 34) of
the Company to the Vendor at issue price of approximately
HK$0.1774 per share. Topact and its subsidiary, Global
Songkaer Petroleum Co. Ltd. (together, the “Topact
Group”), are principally engaged in the provision of
exploration drilling in the Republic of Kazakhstan. Pursuant
to the sales and purchase agreement, all assets and
liabilities, except for the property, plant and equipment,
of the Topact Group were undertaken by the Vendor and
therefore, were excluded from the acquisition transaction
and accounted for as a receivable of approximately
HK$12,102,000 (Note 24(b)(iv)). Details of the acquisition
are as follows:

e R R MR

BEZ—=—F=-A=1t—HLFE

RZZ—=—F+—A+HA ~5EH
H—ZBYE=H ([BEAH])FTx—
7 B E W - LA{E3,600,000% 7T
(4976 #27,900,0007T ) U B Topact
#946.77% 2 B A - AL B A
TRE AT B 47 ¥50.1774 7L 2 84T
8 & 5% & E17157,271,702
RARARFEBRGD (M5E34) A
YR EFEH o Topact & H K B
ARRFDRFRAHEAREEAR
(%78 [Topact®= B | ) T = B MGEE
FHTIE B IR R
7% o IRIR B E 17 5% - Topacte B 2 Fr
BEAENRBE (W BEERERER
SN R E R EE - B EEKRE
R 5 A i A BR 5V FE U R IB 40 7B
12,102,0007T (Fff 5E24(b)(iv)) o
fE BT

HK$°000
BET T
Consideration satisfied in issue of LA B 1T 3 iR 17
new shares 25,605
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets P& B%ZTE%%%J%E&F)’U%%E%Z
acquired and liabilities assumed: EHERES
Property, plant and equipment L/ E @%&ﬁﬁ (Mt3E17)

(Note 17) 62,832
Deferred income tax (Note 37) REFTSR (M5E37) (6,095)
Non-controlling interests FEFE G (29,176)

Total identifiable net assets AR & E R EAERE 27,561
Discount on acquisition (Note 7) Wk 2 Hrig (MIsE7) 1,956

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W RS PTEE A4 2 38 & 3 88 -
BEEsRe RBReEEIER -

Cash and cash equivalents acquired
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE=-_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

The fair value of the 157,271,702 ordinary shares
issued as the consideration paid for Topact amounted to
approximately HK$25,605,000 which was based on the
published share price on 27 November 2012 and net of
new shares issuance cost.

The revenue included in the consolidated income
statement since 27 November 2012 contributed by Topact
was HK$2,703,000. Topact also contributed profit of
HK$2,977,000 over the same period.

Had Topact been consolidated from 1 April 2012, the
consolidated income statement would show pro-forma
revenue of HK$38,744,000 and profit of HK$22,303,000.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15
November 2012, the Vendor is required to reimburse
the Group 46.77% of the shortfall if Topact is unable
to achieve a profit after income tax expenses and non-
controlling interests of approximately HK$20,000,000
for each of the years ending 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015. The potential undiscounted amount of all
future reimbursements that the Group could receive from
the Vendor under this arrangement ranges from nil to
HK$28,062,000.

The Board of Directors considered that Topact is probable
to achieve a profit after income tax expenses and non-
controlling interests of approximately HK$20,000,000
for each of the years and accordingly, no reimbursement
receivable from the Vendor was recognised on 27
November 2012 and 31 March 2013.
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fE B TopactFT X RE 2
157,271,702k B BT L BR A FE
#) 575 1625,605,0007T * H IR ER
—E——HF+—-—HA=ZtEBAMHZ
ARAB M HIBR SRR D A TR A& FT 1S

BE-ZT——-F+—A=+tHE7

AR A W 28R Z Topact & Ef 2 WA
475 #2,703,0007T ° Topact7N A [E
HA 2 A A1) 78 #2,977,0007T ©

WE_-_ZT——_FNMA—BEH
Topactér & AR - BlfR& Wzt & A55)
TR W %5 B 538,744,000 &k
F76#22,303,0007T °

BEASMA—ZE——F+—A+H
Bz B=E W HTopactRENEZE
—E—=F - ZZT-NFER=ZT—F
F+ZA=+—RALFESFEERE
B P15 BB s e FE I o 1 R 2 18 0

A 4975 #20,000,0007¢ * B &= 5 7B
AR EEE N ERAIELZ46.77% °
BIEZZHE ANEE A E 5 WA
ZEHTAERKENRIEZBERTR
SN T EHE%28,062,0007T °

EEZERA Topacti] BEN X EFE
& FEVS R TS B 5 S R 3R 4R Il 1
T 75 18 '3 A1 497 #20,000,0007T
A - R—E——F+—A=-++
BR-ZFE—=F=A=+—HB#E
TEREWREH 2 EBFKRIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

38. Acquisitions (Continued) 38. UEE ()

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year (b) BE=Z—-F=A=+—HL

ended 31 March 2012

FEHAB2WE-—BHREBEQF

On 14 March 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity RZZE——F=RF+WMBE  KEEK
interests in Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical BRI RHERN AR I AR AR
Limited JRINTAIZHEF LML THER AR ("Galali”) for (THBHA1)100% WM A RS - BE
a cash consideration of RMB28,000,000 (equivalent to KRB & A R#28,000,0007T (%
HK$34,496,000). The principal activities of Galali are R H34,496,0007T ) ° /& HF 2 =
the trading of fuel oil and chemical products in the PRC. EEBRNTFBERESERm R TE
Details of the acquisition are as follows: mE S - WEEEHZFBEOT:
HK$'000
BT
Cash paid BEfEE 7,332
Consideration payable (Note 32) FERRE (Ft5E32) 27,164
Consideration satisfied in cash WBRESH2Z2RE 34,496
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets FTUEE Z Al R B E RFTAEEEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed: BEEREE :
Other intangible assets (Note 21) HEama & E (MsE21) 15,221
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE ~ 2 & I H b FE R IE
other receivables 212
Cash and cash equivalents RekBELEFBEIEE 6,049
Tax payables FE B 1A (25)
Deferred income tax (Note 37) REFTSH (H5E37) (3,418)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEFEEE 18,039
Goodwill (Note 20) & (FfsE20) 16,457
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: BB FTEE A& 2 30 & 1 F 58 -
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (7,332)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEEsReRRSEFEBHER 6,049
(1,283)
Goodwill is attributable to the acquired workforces, the AEDNEERERNFEANMES
profitability and the synergies expected to arise from the WMok TERESHEE2FTKE
acquired business generated from trading of fuel oil and EBzELE N BN R
chemical products in Mainland China. 1 B Az o
PetroAsian Ene Holdings Limited 7 FIER AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

On 6 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to
dispose of its entire 100% equity interests in Huge Power Group
Limited and together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wing
Shing Chemical Company Limited (together, the “HP Group”)
for a cash consideration of HK$13,800,000. As at the date
of disposal, the HP Group has paid Hong Kong profits tax of
HK$16,203,000 in advance in respect of previous years, in which
the Group has raised objections against its tax assessment with
the IRD with an amount of HK$11,198,000, and is pending for
the final determination of the profits tax payable. The Purchaser
undertakes to pay back the Group upon receipt of tax refund
notices issued by the IRD.

On 3 October 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its
business within the chemical products segment in the PRC
for a cash consideration of approximately RMB7,891,000
(approximately HK$10,208,000).
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MR-ZB——E XA A ANEEE—ZF
VE=F(TEFDTL—mMEEBZEN
%I £ KR (E%%13,800,000T HHEER
Huge Power Group Limited % B 2 & [ B
RBKKICTER AR (57 HPEE])
ZEE100% R E- A E BB HPEE
MBEFEEHE%16,203,0000 2 F
BAERH HPASEERETH AL
11,198,000 T M & BB H IR B R & - 3R
FEFEHENZFIE %ﬁf’ﬁﬁ&?&moaﬁ
EHRWE AR BT LR BNER
PSR-

R-F——F+A=H AEEE—FF
NE=ZFITVEBERZE URERELHA
R #7,891,0007T (4% #10,208,0007T )
HEERPHA I TERD B2 ERS-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-ZT—=F=A=+—HIEFE
39. Disposal of subsidiaries/business (Continued) 39. HEWB AR %% (@)

The aggregate net assets of the HP Group and the business at RELEBM HPEBRZEBZEETF
the respective dates of disposal were as follows: HEEENT :
Total
A
="
HK$'000
BT
Consideration satisfied in cash LReZ M zRE 24,008
Net assets BEFE r
Property, plant and equipment VI WE MR 1,065
Investment properties wEYHE 10,000
Inventories FE 7,200
Trade receivables E 5 W RIE 18,182
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE ~ R & R H A fE Y RIE
other receivables 2,604
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBELFEIEE 7,491
Trade payables Z 5 IR (4,015)
Other payables H i FE A5 RIE (12,305)
30,222
Losses on disposals of subsidiaries/ HEWBRAR, %K
business, net (Note 7) E518 - JFEE (FIRE7) (6,214)
Total consideration wRE 24,008
Satisfied by: YRR
Cash consideration RERE 13,800
Consideration receivables (Note 24(b)(iii)) FEUARAE (BT EE24(b)(Gii) ) 10,208
24,008
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of EEWBAR EBEEZ
subsidiaries/business: REMAFRE
Cash consideration received BWHESRE 13,800
Cash and cash equivalents disposed HEReRBESEFEEE (7,491)
6,309
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR ZngEiRIEAR B R AR m
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

40. Capital Commitments BAREIE

Group

EHE
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT IT

Contracted but not provided for FEABREA -

— property, plant and equipment —WE WEREE 43,090 39,378

The Company does not have any capital commitments as at 31

March 2013 (2012: Nil).

R-E—=F=ZA=1+—H AQaLE
REFMNEARE(ZS—ZF:F)-

41. Operating Leases 41. KERE
The Group and the Company as lessee AEBRAABEREEA
At end of the year, the Group and the Company had future RER » AN E R AR ARIE T A s &
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases EHEMHANBARRKEESNAT
which fall due as follows:
Group Company
rEE P N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —T--F CZB-=f —T—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 1,978 7,979 753 4,521
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ RBEZEAF
(BREEMF) 383 2,350 - 753
Over five years AR F - 21,697 - -
2,361 5,274

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

and the Company for certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated in a range from 1 year to 50 years. No arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A 25 EIR1ZEAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-—ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

41. Operating Leases (Continued) 41. REHEE @)
The Group as lessor AEEEREEA
During the year, the Group earned properties and machinery iW’ﬁE@ﬁﬁﬁvﬁﬂlﬂﬁ%¥&%%§fﬁé§%
rental income totalling HK$13,343,000 (2012: HK$4,765,000), A 113,343,000 (=T — =4 :
in which HK$80,000 (2012: HK$4,765,000) and HK$13,263,000 /;Pf #4,765,0007T ) + H % #80,0007T
(2012: Nil) are recognised within “Other income” and ZT — ZF:%%4,765,00070 ) & &
“Revenue” in the consolidated income statement. 13,263,0007C ( =& — =% : &) 5 Rl R4ER

Bl ER 2 [EMUA] K [ | R -

At end of the year, the Group had contracted with tenants for RER  AEB B THIBERKRMTH ﬁ
the following future minimum lease payments: IR S EBESETA
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within one year —F R - 1,909
In the second to fifth years inclusive MFERF (BIEEEMTE) - 2,919
- 4,828
42. Related Party Transactions 42. BREABEALRS
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEE A SR
All members of key management personnel are the directors and FIEFEERBABRARAINEEREE
other members of key management of the Company. Details of EEENHMKE - BEHMOFEES B
their remuneration are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13 respectively. B EE12 R 5E 134 55
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Short-term employee benefits EHEEBERET 11,202 11,307
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 71 90 72
Share-based payments VAR 17 2 1+ 2 53R 14,400 23,750
25,692 35,129
The remuneration of the directors and key executives is E%&Igﬁﬂl/\ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ@ﬂ Ty FIE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the BeZREARBERMEGBAEEE -
performance of individuals and market trends.
PetroAsian Ene Holdings Limited 7 R B R AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

On 17 December 2012, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Fame Achiever Holdings Limited, an
independent third party, to dispose of its entire 100% equity
interests in China Oil Resources Company Limited, which is
the immediate holding company of PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia)
Limited, for a consideration of US$700,000 (approximately
HK$5,425,000). Subsequently, on 2 April 2013, the disposal
has been completed where all the terms and conditions have
been fulfilled as per the sale and purchase agreement, resulting
in a gain on disposal of approximately HK$5,424,000 to be
recognised in the next financial year.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013
and 2012 are set out as follows:

R_FE——F+_A++tH ~EEE—
BENE=SBEERERAFEIN —
m%é%ﬁvuﬁﬁmommiﬁ(%ﬁm
5,425,00070) tHEE R HERER A

(ERMEaR (READ)BRA TZE
BERRR) 2 2 E100% % - BE % - 20

—E-=FNAZH WELEERHME
GRRIGHIREB BR R EEKRZER
TERK BT — B IR R RS s
#9785 #5,424,0007T, ©

RZE-—=FR-F-—-F=A=+—
H: RARARMEABFBEHIINT :

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRIRER BRITREER RATAMBERITRE
WEARER TEwE BR RAEE EMBRATENED L TEER
2013 2012
-g-= —T--F
Subsidiaries directly held by
the Company:
ANREEFENNELR:
China Oil Resources BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Group Limited US$1 each
FREREBARRA KBRZHES 100l &R EE REZR
(B0l 4]
Wing Shing Group Limited BVI 52,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
US$1 each
KKEEERAF REBRUHS 52,000k Bk EE REZR
(B0l 801

Annual Report 2012-13 —Z——Z&—=FFF



Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

e PR ERR MR

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/registered

—=F=A=1+—HLFE

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIRER BRITRE MR AAFAMBERITRE
WEXRERE few® BxR REAEE EMRAEENE DL TEER
2013 2012
—E-= —ZE-—-F
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company:
AARHEFENRELR:
America Archi Colors Group BVI 50,000 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holding
Limited US$1 each and contract service
in the PRC
ZEGHEER (£E) RERRES 50,000/ B R EE R B EREER K
BRRAE 0k <0 BRI
Beijing Arch Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 51.00% 51.00% Provision of painting
Company Limited' service, sale and
distribution of
painting products
and contract service
in the PRC
IREHEEMBERAR AR #3,000,0007T R B 1R At 2 R AR -
HERDHERER
A RIRT
China Oil Resources Company ~ Hong Kong 1 share of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each
RHBRARAR BB REREE REEK
BEITRRG
Creative Sense Industrial Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Coal trading
Limited HK$1 each
BIEEEXBRAA £ 10,000 & AR (B RxE5
BEITARA
RYIET B 3 0m B 5T AR % PRC RMB12,500,000 100.00% 100.00% il exploitation and
ARAA exploration service
in the PRC
R E 00 E R AT R I AE#12,500,0007T TR B A i BR
BRAR BRBR TS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIRER BRTRE MR AQRFABERITRE,
WEXRERE K BxR REAEE EMRAEENE DL TEER
2013 2012
—2-= =F==%
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
AREBEEENNELR: (&)
Easyrich Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holding
HK$1 each
EIEEEZERERAR 0 1008 & AR E B REER
BE1TE RN
Grand Fund International Hong Kong 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each
REBRRERAR BB 100l SR EE REER
ABE1ITE R
Grand Rich Human Hong Kong 500,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Resources Limited HK$1 each
EANBRBERAR B 500,000/ & AR E & REEK
BEITRRR
Goal Green Limited BVI 1,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
US$1 each
BRERAA EBRELES 1,000/ B R EE REER
(B0 4%)
Go Wealthy Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
HK$1 each and property
investment
MEREBRAR BB IREREE REZR K
BEITE R MERE
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
US$1 each
BRERAF HEERES 100l &R EE REZR
1ETHRA
AL
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Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

e PR R R MR

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

CE—=F=A=+—HILFE

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRIREM BRITREZR AQRFABERITRE,
WEXRERE K BxR REAEE HMRAEENED T TEXEH
2013 2012
—E-= —ZE—-F
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
AREBEEENNELR: (&)
Hai Yue Chemicals Company Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each
BELIRMBRAF B 1,000,000 & R & REER
RBE1ITE R
Honour Bright Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Limited
REREERAF EY REREE REER
1E TR
Jin Long Group Limited BVI 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holding
US$1 each
RESEERANR EBRTHES 100/ B R E & REZR
(Eyl:0l ) 3%)
Merry Boom Investment Hong Kong 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each
REREFRAA B 100l &R EE REZR
BEITRRR
Northeast Oil (China) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Development Company HK$1 each
Limited
RitAdm (PR #E & 10,0008 B AR E {E REZR
ARAA BEITRRR
PetroAsian Energy Exploration Hong Kong 100 shares of 51.00% 51.00% Investment holding
Development Limited HK$1 each
o B IR A B IR BB 100l B R EE REZR
BRARA BEITHRR

Annual Report 2012-1
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z=F—=F=A=+—HIFE

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIRER BRITRE MR AQRFMBERITRE,
WEXRER Lew® BxR REAEE EMRAEENE DL TEER
2013 2012
—E-= —ZE-—-F

Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)

ARRHBESENHELR: ()

PetroAsian Energy Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding

HK$1 each
hE R R AR AR B 10,000k Bk E A REER
BE1ITE R

PetroAsian Energy USA 75,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
(North America) Corporation US$1 each

PetroAsian Energy xHE 75,0000k &R E E BEER
(North America) Corporation [EFH:0L G

PetroAsian Energy BVI 1,000 shares of 92.00% 92.00% Exploitation and sale of
(Tunisia) Limited US$1 each crude oil in Tunisia

R ( eeFTE) KBRAHES 1,000 & AR E (& RREFAERFHER
=12 (El:0l ) 4%) HE R

PetroAsian Energy Group BVI 1,000 shares of 59.00% 59.00% Investment holding
Limited US$1 each

RLEREBARRAA EBERIHS 1,000/% & i 1 {8 REZR

(0l 4h)

Wing Shing Chemical BVI 1 share of 100.00% 100.00% Inactive
International Limited US$1 each

Wing Shing Chemical HBETES 1REREE R
International Limited (Eyl:0l ) 4h)

Wing Shing Chemical Macao Macau MOP500,000 100.00% 100.00% Sale of paints and
Commercial Offshore blended solvents
Company Limited in Macau

KA TR = B % R B JRFT#500,0007T PORPISHE R R
BRAR BARHE

Wing Shing Colours Limited Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Inactive

HK$1 each
KKEAR B IR A &) E 100,000/ B R EIE EX
BEITRRR
AL

—E-CFFER



Place/
country of
incorporation

or registration/

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE=Z

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

e PR ERR MR

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/registered

CE—=F=A=+—HILFE

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIRER BRITRE MR AAFAMBERITRE
WEXRERE few® BxR REAEE EMRAEENE DL TEER
2013 2012
—E-= —ZE-—-F
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
ARRHBESENHELR: ()
It REIEA R PRC HK$28,000,000 49.98% 49.98%  Investment holding
BRARR3
1R B RA R e 751#28,000,0007T REEK
BRARR3
BERBTRILAHEE PRC US$8,000,000 95.00% 95.00%  Exploitation and sale of
AREERA crude oil in the PRC
75 B T sk o B 3 e 8,000,000% 7T P B B R R
AREERA $HE R
EIMRNESERAR PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% 100.00%  Coal trading
HITRMEZERAR e AR #5,000,0007 RxE5
GalaiLi PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% 100.00% Trading of fuel oil and
chemical
TR EA i AR #5,000,0007T BaktIERES
Winner Trend Enterprises BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 56.00% Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RICEERAF EBERTES 100/ & R E & REEK
1E TR
Huge Power BVI 100 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
US$1 each
Huge Power RBRLES 100 SR EE REER
(0l 3]
PetroAsian Energy Cayman Islands 10,000 shares of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
International Limited US$0.01 each
PetroAsian Energy Re#HsS 10,0008 B iR E E REERK
International Limited 0.01E &I BR 17
Jin Xin Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
HK$1 each
REREERDF BB REkEE REZR
BT R R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HLFE

Annual Report 2012-13 =

Place/
country of

incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operations share capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRIREMR BRITRAZR RATAFMBERITRE
HEAREE cEnd BR RAEE AMBRAEENE S L TEEH
2013 2012
-g-= —T-ZF
Subsidiaries indirectly held by
the Company: (Continued)
ARARBESENHELR: (&)
Topact* Cyprus 1,223 shares of 46.77% - Investment holding
1 Euro dollar each
Topact* EH A 1,223 BRAE REERK
1B T AR 1D
Global Songkaer Petroleum Kazakhstan 100 shares of 46.30% - Exploitation drilling
Co., Ltd* KZT1,030 each in the Republic of
Kazakhstan
REIMRBAM RER AR 1008 & AR E 8 AIES A £ A E
BREEAA! 1,030B X R 15 BRE

L Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance with relevant laws L

and regulations.

Z Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC in accordance with 2

relevant laws and regulations.

2 The Group holds 98.00% equity interests in this subsidiary through a 3
51.00% owned subsidiary, Easyrich Group Holdings Limited. Therefore, the
Group has control over this entity and it is considered as a subsidiary of the

Company.

@ In accordance with the shareholders’ agreement dated 27 November 2012, @
the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies of
Topact. As a result, Topact is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.
Since Topact owns 99% equity interests of Global Songkaer Petroleum Co.,
Ltd., which is also accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

RBAAERZOERR P BRI NBRARS SR
#,

RBAARERERR P BRI ZINERES
X

ANEEE B —E#AE51.00% s 2 T E A

B @Ak A PR A A A MR R ‘198.00%2
FRARE o Rl L - AN SR [ 52 R MR A 4R A - R
BRIDEARRAZHERR

BIEESHA-S——F+—A=+tAZK
Rk ANEE A B Y Topactz BT 1§ R 4iE
SRR 245 HIHE - E It - Topact HEAARAR]Z
— FEI BB 2 R AR © B M Topacti A 3R BRA
REBAMAREEDEZ99%MHE  E IR
ERARAR 2 — M E AR AR -



Five Years Financial Summary

A FHHEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENFE —T-—F —E——F 2= —2-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB TIT  E%TIT O AB¥TI BETR

REVENUE Wz 399,409 307,982 282,398 339,967 991,810

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE RATEB A

TO OWNERS OF FE(G ES1E
THE COMPANY (71,639) (262,280) (305,507) (176,864) (115,255)
REVENUE ﬁ
HK$000 g
AT 991,810
10,000,000 —
800,000
600,000
399,409
400,000 339,967
307,982 282,398
200,000 ‘ \ ‘ |
L 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
RRATEE AEBIEEE

H
BT T 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
0

-50,000

-100,000 (71,639)

(115,255)
-150,000

-200,000 (176,864)

-250,000
(262,280)
-300,000
(305,507)
-350,000

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR ZngEiRIEAR B R AR
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Five Years Financial Summary

A FNBEE

2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNF —T—THF T——F T =ZB-Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT BET T
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 722,284 1,065,923 1,020,766 888,124 885,144
TOTAL LIABILITIES FN= (456,476) (257,401) (175,781) (190,140) (162,371)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 265,808 808,522 844,985 697,984 722,773
TOTAL EQUITY
HK$'000 BT
BT
900,000 o 844,985
800,000 o e 722,773
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
265,808
300,000
200,000
100,000
g 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited = 25 &E/RIZERE A IR
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NRERD GBI B E6E3601E

Tel E3E: (852) 2698 6093 Fax {£H: (852) 3580 7793

Website A94E: www.petroasian.com
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